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1.1 Chairman’s Message

il W

A Word On Our Corporate Accountability Report

In being consistent with our committed approach towards becoming a sustainable company,
PowerSeraya has decided to incorporate both its annual print financial report and online sustainability
report into a single online copy.

This consolidated report pulls together the company's financial and non-financial performance (of which
the latter includes environmental performance, corporate sustainability and social responsibility, among
others) for easy reading. Adopting this measure to produce an online report also falls in line with our
environmental efforts to go green and reduce the use of paper for production of hard copy annual
reports.

By integrating our two reports, we hope readers will be able to gain a better understanding of PowerSeraya’s
business strategy that takes into account our commitment to the environment and community, as well
as the needs of all our stakeholders.

The Business Performance
| am pleased to report that PowerSeraya has performed well in the last financial year, by maximising
profitability through strategic management of assets and implementation of key business projects.

Revenue for the company rose 21.5% to $4,677 million in FY2010/2011 while Net Profit After Tax
(NPAT) increased to $374.2 million, a 38.9% increase from the annualised figures of $269.4 million for
Fy2009/2010.

Total generation units sold was 11,987GWh, an 8.4% increase over the last financial year. At the same
time, PowerSeraya’s retail subsidiary captured 28.3% of the contestable retail market and continued to
retain its market leader position for the fourth consecutive year.

Maintaining Growth

The last fiscal year saw a steady growth of PowerSeraya as it continues to expand on its multi-utilities
portfolio. Sale of steam and potable water added significant revenue to its non-regulated business
portfolio. The investment in new co-generation technology, of which the units were officially launched
during the last financial year, has already allowed the company to gain a step ahead of its competitors.

The first ever cross-border electricity sale to Tenaga Nasional Berhad, Malaysia's largest electricity
group, has not only boosted PowerSeraya's financial position, but also opened up the possibility of
future collaboration opportunities to capitalise on energy growth in both countries.

Also, our subsidiaries Seraya Energy and PetroSeraya continue to contribute strongly to the company’s
profits.
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For corporations to thrive in the long-term, they should see sustainability as being essential to their
business. Yet true sustainability is more than working within the constraint of resources in a business
environment. It goes beyond being 'green’ and encompasses the company’s wider social efforts and
subsequently, impact to society. Evidently, a company's collective actions can make a greater difference
than an individual,

That is why at PowerSeraya, we press on with our sustainability efforts, while keeping in mind the need
to return to the community in which we have grown our business.

The future outlook of the energy sector in Singapore and the region is set to be competitive. However,
PowerSeraya's continued strong show of performance has already proven the management team's
strategic foresight and resilience. For that, | am confident that the company will be able to maximise
opportunities and its strategic assets to continue its contributions to its parent company, YTL Power
International.

Acknowledgement and Thanks

| would like to give thanks to the Management team of PowerSeraya who have contributed greatly to
the success of the company. My appreciation also goes to the supportive Union of Power and Gas
Employees (UPAGE) who have forged a good working relationship with the Board and Management to
ensure that the interests of employees are looked into.

Sincere thanks as well to our business partners and associates for their continued show of support.

Of course, the company would not have succeeded without the strong backing of a pool of talented
and dedicated employees. Their steadfast commitment to PowerSeraya, for which | am grateful for, has
enabled the company to progress.

| am pleased to present the first Corporate Accountability Report of PowerSeraya together with the
audited financial statements for the year July 2010 ending June 2011.

Thank you and God bless all of you.

TAN SRI DATO’ (DR) FRANCIS
YEOH SOCK PING
Chairman
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1.2 CEO’s Message

“PowerSeraya is prepared for uncertainty in the economic outlook and emerging challenges in the coming
year ahead, and will continue to maximise growth through our integrated business strategies.”

Performing Well

The past financial year saw the efforts of the company bearing fruits as we achieved higher market share
and profitability. PowerSeraya achieved revenue of 34,677 million in FY2010/2011, a 21.5% increase
over the annualised figures for FY2009/2010. Net Profit After Tax (NPAT) also rose to $374.2 million in
comparison to the NPAT of $269.4 million on an annualised basis for FY 2009/2010. Return on Equity was
significantly higher at 30.2%, a 9.5 percentage point increase over FY2009/2010's annualised 20.7%.
Return on Total Assets is at 12.8%. The positive results can be attributed to the prudent strategies
undertaken by the company, the commissioning of new assets as well as the growth of our non-regulated
business.

Leveraging on Opportunities

PowerSeraya's performance in the last financial year can be attributed to several factors which helped
the company maximise its margins, The commissioning of the Co-Generation Combined Cycle Plant
(Co-Gen CCP) in October 2010 enabled the company to produce electricity with higher efficiency. At the
same time, the availability of high pressure steam through the Co-Gen CCP has allowed us to supply
neighbouring companies on Jureng Island with it, adding steam sales to our multi-utilities portfolio. Being
self-sufficient in our water needs through our own desalination plant has also reduced our reliability on
external sources.

In the last fiscal year, it was opportune for PowerSeraya to be given a chance to supply electricity to
Malaysia in the first ever cross-border electricity deal between Singapore and Malaysia. It paves the way
for future collaboration, allowing greater reliability for electricity supply and technical support. During this
FY 2010/2011 period, the company also provided support to other generation companies which had to
shut down for maintenance.

On our retail front, we achieved 28.3% share of the contestable retail market for FY2010/2011 and
retained cur position as market leader four years in a row. There was also a slight increase in sales
volume, up to 7,714GWh from last FY, This would not have been possible without the support from our
customers. The trading and fuel management arm of PowerSeraya performed steadily in the last FY
despite volatile economic conditions, contributing revenue of $869 million and NPAT of $5 million to the
campany.

Driving Productivity and Strengthening Capabilities
Cur people form the heart and soul of the organisation. In efforts to nurture our human capital, the company
has placed a greater emphasis on learning and development to upgrade our skills, raise productivity and
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foster a culture of positive employee engagement. To ensure our employees are equipped with the skills
and mindset for a challenging future, PowerSeraya has invested more than $700,000 in training and
development, 25% significantly higher than the last financial year. Cross-functional taskforces are also
set up to look into productivity and talent engagement within our workforce.

The company continues to keep our safety standards at a high level in the plant and we currently
stand at two million accident-free man-hours for employees and three million accident-free man-hours
for contractors. Regular safety programmes and an annual safety campaign are held in our plant to
emphasise the importance of working safely.

PowerSeraya works closely with the Union of Power And Gas Employees (UPAGE) to elevate the well-
being of our employee and to ensure the continued success of the company. Our recent employee
engagement survey revealed that a high proportion of our staff recognise the need for our company
to balance our environmental and social responsibilities with economic success. Staff interactions with
the community through the various environmental and social initiatives play a complementary role in
fostering staff togetherness to a common purpose or cause.

Competition and Challenges Ahead

The next few years will prove to be exciting and challenging for energy players in Singapore as
competition sets to become stiffer. The liberalisation of the energy market in Singapore has brought
about a competitive landscape which no doubt, will ensure greater market growth and benefits for
consumers. The precise planning of the Energy Market Authority (EMA) to bring in Liquefied Natural Gas
(LNG) into Singapore will set the scene for an equally robust gas market, come 2013. Support rendered
by EMA to all industry players from the liberalisation of the market to the divestment of generation
companies has been excellent and unwavering. We continue to look to and support EMA in nurturing
a vibrant energy industry.

Facing the upcoming challenges of the market, PowerSeraya will focus on value-adding to our non-
regulated business portfolio and take a cautious approach to gain momentum in a competitive market.
What's more important, the company will focus internally to align our strategies and be more prudent
in risk-taking. Emphasis will be placed on building up the capabilities of our employees, increasing
productivity and reducing costs. This will place the organisation in good stead to meet the challenges
of increased competition with the impending changes in the energy landscape.

Our Sustainability Efforts

For the past two years, the company has managed to lower its carbon footprint. The newly launched
BOO MW Co-Gen CCP allowed the company to achieve higher thermal efficiency and increase the
use of natural gas to fulfill its 10% carbon footprint reduction target. Our use of water resources also
saw a marked improvement with over 90% of our power plant water needs coming from our in-house
desalination plant and recycled water (i.e. NEWater), Compared to two years ago, the use of desalinated
water and recycled water for our power plant operations increased by a significant 27%. The company
is also embarking on an energy management system to extract greater energy efficiencies from the
power generation operations at our plant. This will prepare the company well to meet the requirements
of the upcoming Energy Conservation Act in 2013, and further enhance the sustainability focus in the
organisation.

Our efforts in reaching out to the community in the areas of environmental sustainability continue. REAP
(Responsible Energy Advocates Programme) which is developed by PowerSeraya in partnership with
the National Environment Agency and South West Community Development Council saw an increased
outreach in 2011 with doubled the number of tertiary students and tripled the number of households
participating in the program since its pilot launch in 2010. Our company will continue to strengthen
existing partnerships with the public and people sector and seek out new collaborations in the future.
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| am also pleased to share that we have widened our social outreach with the formal adoption of GROW
(Goodwill Rehabilitation & Occupational Workshop), a charitable programme under the Spastic Children's
Association of Singapore. In supporting GROW, the company hopes to provide greater opportunities
for GROW to actualise their social enterprise activities for the personal growth and development of the
cerebral palsy individuals.

The company remains committed to its journey on sustainability despite the economic challenges ahead
and will endeavour to pursue opportunities to enhance its environmental and social responsibilities while
fulfiling our financial obligation to our shareholders. It is my hope that PowerSeraya continues to build
a sustainability culture where our employees are change agents within the organisation and also to the
people they have interactions with.

Words of Appreciation

The stellar performance of the company will not be possible without the unwavering support of our parent
company, YTL Power International Berhad, our Board of Directors and Senior Management Team, and
the commitment of all our employees. | would also like to give my thanks to the support given by our
customers, business associates and UPAGE during this challenging period.

Despite the uncertain economic outlook and the increasingly competitive energy industry, I'm confident
that with the support of one and all, PowerSeraya will be able to emerge through challenging times with
resilience and strength,

j\{¢i£

JOHN NG
Chief Executive Officer



2.1 Overview of Report

2.1.1 Introduction

This is PowerSeraya's first integrated report — termed the Corporate Accountability Report, which
combines our previous print annual report and online sustainability report. In this integrated report,
linkages are drawn between our business and CSR strategy so that our stakeholders are able to better
appreciate the connection and relevance of sustainability in PowerSeraya's business.

In our pursuit towards greater transparency and disclosure in reporting our sustainability initiatives, we
have increased the number of performance indicators from 57 to 91 and explained in greater detail
our management approach to bring this report to A+, the highest reporting level based on the GRI
(Global Reporting Initiative Framework). As with previous years, we continue to add greater depth and
breadth to the reported items and to draw its relevance and application both in the global as well as the
Singapore context.

We have increased our coverage of the environmental performance of our business operations, including
new items such as the input chemicals used in power plant operations. On product responsibility, we
have expounded on the importance of ensuring the quality of our water and steam sold to customers. It
also covers the important relevance of condition monitoring which keeps the key machine components
of the power plant in tip-top condition so that our plant continues to supply reliable electricity and steam
to our customers.

We continue to disclose our internal and external initiatives on the environmental and social fronts in this
report. In particular, we are pleased to cover details of our company’s sustainability programme REAP
(Responsible Energy Advocates Programme) and our newly adopted charitable programme GROW
(Goodwill Rehabilitation and Occupational Workshop).

It is our hope that this year's integrated report will give readers a balanced and considerable view of the
company's strategy and initiatives with sustainability playing a significant role.

Reporting Standard

The Corporate Accountability Report is based on the Sustainability Reporting Guidelines of the GRI
(Global Reporting Initiative), the de facto global standard for sustainability reporting. It has undergone
an independent third party assurance process and a GRI Application Level check. This is a G3: A+
report covering 91 performance indicators and encompasses all the six indicator categories (Economic,
Environmental, Society, Labour, Human Rights and Product Responsibility).
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2.1.2 How this Report was Compiled

The Sustainability Reporting Team (SRT), which was formed for the purposes of compiling our very
first sustainability report in 2009, continues to be relevant for this integrated report. The Sustainability
Department (previously known as the Environmental Dept) of the Corporate Services Group tock the
overall lead.

As with the previous year, we adopted a cecentralised approach to the reporting process. Separate
discussions (via emails and meetings) were held with the SRT members to gather information and inputs
on sustainability areas that are specific to their area of work. This approach is possible as the reporting
teamn, who had gone through the previous years' rigour of determining report materiality, were familiar
with their areas of contribution to the report content.

An additional process was conducted with the Corporate Communications department to deliberate on
the content flow and form that should be taken for the integrated report, taking into consideration the
reporting information that different stakeholders would be interested in.

In general, all SRT members went through the following reporting process stages:

1. Determining report content (i.e. materiality)

2. Collation of Global Reporting Initiative (GRI)
performance indicators, management approach
and information on standard disclosures

3. Report drafting

4., Vetting report draft

5. Assurance process by a third-party and GRI check

Report Form and Format

This year, we decided to integrate the annual report and sustainability report into a single online report.
The sustainability performance of our company is reported using the GRI (Global Reporting Initiative)
framework. Conscious efforts were also made to include more visual representations of our company's
performance in the form of graphs and charts.

The online report is available 24/7 on our corporate website. Readers can select sections and make
hardcopies of them, or download a PDF version of the entire report.

Report Boundary

The report boundary covered entities PowerSeraya Ltd, Seraya Energy Pte Ltd and PetroSeraya Pte
Ltd (the latter two are wholly owned subsidiaries of the former - see diagram 2.1). Seraya Energy (SE)
is the retail arm of PowerSeraya for the contestable electricity market and is one of the main players in
the contestable market. It is material that SE be included in the reporting boundary. PetroSeraya, being
the oil trading and oil bunkering arm of PowerSeraya's business, forms an important, growing revenue
stream in the company’s overall integrated energy growth strategy. PetroSeraya is thus material to the
report content.
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Seraya Energy and

Seraya Energy Pte Ltd

Investments Pte Ltd

PetroSeraya Pte Ltd

Diagram 2.1: Corporate structure of PowerSeraya showing all the report entities

Report Application Level

This report covers 91 Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) performance indicators, a more than 60% increase
compared to the previous year's report. In addition, 33 Electric Utility Sector-Specific Commentaries
and Management Approaches are included in the report. In summary, it covers all core G3 and Electric
Utility Sector Supplernent indicators across all six categories (Economic, Environmental, Labour, Society,
Human Rights and Product Responsibility).

PowerSeraya appointed an independent third party, Ere-S Pte Ltd, to provide assurance on this report.
This is a GRI Level A+ report.

Reporting Period
This integrated report continues from the 2010 Sustainability Report (FY0E8/07 to FY08/09) to cover a
new reparting period from April 2009 to June 2011, a 27-month period.

The ending date of the financial year (which used to be the month of March every year) was extended
deliberately by a further three months to align with our parent company's financial year which ends in
the month of June. As such, financial year FY09/10 spans a 15-month period from April 2009 to June
2010. Thereafter, subsequent financial yvears start in the month of July every year and ends in the maonth
of June the successive year.



2 » ABOUT THE REPORT CORPORATE ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT 2010/ 2011 9

2.1.3 Defining the Report Content
The following factors were considered in determining the report content:

Materiality

As this is the company’s first integrated report, we have made an attempt to explain in greater detail our
CSR Strategy and how it links to our business. Being a power generation company, we are conscious
of our role in climate change mitigation and use of resources for business operations. With this in mind,
the environmental section of this report covers an extensive overview of the environmental performance
of our plant operations as well as the staff initiatives we carry out to inculcate a culture of sustainability
within the organisation.

We continue to report what we have done so in the previous report as they are relevant and material.
Below is a summary of what is featured in this report:

a) Economic Data
Besides providing key data on the company's financial performance, we have included our
community investments on the environmental and social fronts in this integrated report. Our
community investments include donations, sponsorships for environmental and social causes as
well as investments in company-led initiatives or programmes for sustainability.

b) Environmental Data

Similar to previous year's report, we continue to disclose environmental aspects that may pose
public health risks or are related to climate change. Examples include reports on the company’s
sulphur dioxide emissions and trade effluent discharge to the sea. For the first time, we have
included sulphur hexafluoride (in addition to carbon dioxide) in reporting the company's greenhouse
gas emissions. Besides the environmental performance at our power plant operations, this report
also covers our staff's efforts in conserving office resources as well as the environmental initiatives
they have taken part in — of which, some involved collaborations with external parties.

c) Social Data
On the social aspects of our business, we have included the company's important role it plays
in staff's development through its emphasis on traning, employee engagement and worklife
harmony. It also covers our various programmes that seek to nurture the community. We also
highlight the important role of the union, UPAGE, in promoting employee welfare as well as its
collaborative relationship with management in delivering company goals. Details of the recent
collective agreement sealed between union and the management are covered in this report.

On the external front, our company has also taken a more active stance to encourage greater
staff participation to engage communities on social causes. Details of our community outreach
activities are featured in detail under Section 7 of this report.

d) Corporate Governance
We believe that good corporate governance has an important role to play in the company’s
sustainable growth. Corporate risk management, coupled with our corporate governance
philosophy, has always been a strong emphasis in our company. Our risk exposure to fluctuating
oil prices has made enterprise risk management an important aspect of business operations.
Our corporate governance structures and processes embedded within the organisation also help
ensure that our management and staff conduct their daily business activities in a responsible and
ethical manner to serve the interests of our shareholders, customers and other key stakeholders.

e) Product Responsibility
We continue to cover the important role our company plays in ensuring a fair and level playing field
in the electricity market under the local regulatory framework. We believe that fair market practices
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ensure healthy competition that ultimately benefits end-consumers in the form of reliable electricity
at competitive prices. We have also included two new iterns in this report: the important role of
condition monitoring that enables the power plant to operate at high reliability; and the processes
undertaken to ensure that our power plant delivers high quality water and steam products to our
custormners,

Stakeholder Inclusiveness

Our Corporate Accountability Report is meant for all our stakeholders, which includes parties with whom
the company has interaction with or over whom it has an influence. As such, our employees, customers,
major shareholders, board of directors, potential investors and suppliers, as well as the community in
which we operate, are all stakeholders. In this report, we have included our engagement activities and
processes with these stakeholders in Section 4.3.2; Stakeholder Engagement. Where possible, we have
also included the voices of our customers and suppliers through the disclosure of survey findings covering
the feedback and inputs of these stakeholders.

Sustainability Context

In this report, we have made conscious efforts to explain in detail how our company operates and how
aspects of sustainability are incorporated and viewed in our company. This gives our stakeholders a
deeper understanding of the sustainability philosophy of the company. How our company views carbon
risk in relation to the issue of energy security in Singapore's context has been further elaborated in this
report. On the social front, our organisation views human capital as an important asset of the company
and believes in nurturing and engaging its employees. This belief extends beyond the organisation to
include engagement initiatives, scholarship programmes and contributions to social causes. We also
maintain good union-management relations, which contributes to growing our social capital.

Completeness

The report has taken into account materiality, sustainability context and its stakeholders. All entities of
PowerSeraya, including its subsidiaries, have been included. Close references were made to the Global
Reporting Initiative G3 Sustainability Reporting Guidelines and the recently released final version of
Electric Utility Sector Supplement (Final Version) to achieve a GRI Application Level A+ report. We have
also endeavoured to draw linkages between the company’s CSR strategy and the core business so that
our readers can better appreciate how sustainability is incorporated within the organisation and thus gain
a complete picture.

Quality

We strive to provide a balanced view of our company’s performance by including performance indicators
that cover all GRI indicator categories. Both positive and negative results are presented and to capture
trend analysis, charts and graphs are used where appropriate. We feel that a company’s performance
is governed not only by its economic achievements, but also its environmental and social performance
which collectively give readers a balanced view.

Comparability

We have included content covering a three-year reporting period (and in some areas, five years’ of
data) so that there can be a basis for comparison of the company's economic, environmental and social
performance. Where appropriate, we have compared our performance against industry or equivalent
standards/benchmarks.

Financial year FY09/10 spans a 15 month period from April 2009 to June 2010. This extended financial
year period was applied deliberately to align with the start and end date of the parent company's financial
year, With this in mind, year to year comparisons are made with FY09/10 on an annualised basis.

Accuracy
All content is backed by supporting documentary evidence provided by members of the reporting team,
which comprises employees representing every major business unit in PowerSeraya. Where possible, we
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included methodologies and assumptions explaining how the performance was calculated. Anindependent
body was appointed to conduct third party assurance on the report content. This further lends credibility
to the accuracy of the report’s key data via an audit process which is based on a recognised, international
standard AA1000.

Timeliness

In previous years, the company had the annual report and sustainability reports produced separately.
These two reports not only covered slightly different reporting periods but were also made available to
stakeholders at different timeframes. With this integrated report, our stakeholders will have a consolidated
view of our company’s performance and be able to easily co-relate our financial performance with our
sustainability performance.

Clarity

The report is meant for all stakeholders and is written in a clear, concise manner to cater to all readers.
We have made an effort to avoid information that is too technical so that the report will be accessible to
readers without a technical background. In some sections, we have set the local context and provided
readers with background knowledge to assist them in their understanding of the report content.

We Value Your Feedback
We welcome all feedback and queries relating to this report. In particular, we are interested to gather your
suggestions on how we can improve the reporting of our company’s performance.

Our Sustainability Manager would be glad to hear from you at this email address:
csr@pseraya.com.sg.



2.2 Assurance Statements

Please see Appendix A for GRI Application Level Check Statement.

Please see Appendix B for Third Party Assurance Statement.



POWER
SERAYA

a YTL Company

Appendix A

GRI APPLICATION LEVEL CHECK




\ Global
Reporting
Initiative™

Statement
GRI Application Level Check

GRI hereby states that PowerSeraya Limited has presented its report "Corporate Accountability Report
2010/2011" to GRI's Report Services which have concluded that the report fulfills the requirement of
Application Level A+

GRI Application Levels communicate the extent to which the content of the G3 Guidelines has been
used in the submitted sustainability reporting. The Check confirms that the required set and number of
disclosures for that Application Level have been addressed in the reporting and that the GRI

Content Index demonstrates a valid representation of the required disclosures, as described in the GRI
G3 Guidelines,

Application Levels do not provide an opinion on the sustainability performance of the reporter nor the
quality of the information in the report.

Amsterdam, 5 January 2012

< GRI REPORT
GRI CHECKED

Nelmara Arbex
Deputy Chief Executive
Global Reporting Initiative

The “+" has been added to this Application Level because PowerSeraya Limited has submitted (part of)
this report for external assurance. GRI accepts the reporter’s own criteria for choosing the relevant as-
surance provider,

The Global Reporting Inithabive (GRI) is o network-bosed erganization thot hos ploneered the development of the world's mose widely used
sustainability reparcting jrnmﬂmrk and is committed ta its continuus impravement and applicalion worldwide, The GRI Guidelines set aut
the principles ond indicators thot arganizotions con use to measure and repart their econamic, environmentol, and social performance.
www, globalreparting.org

Disclaimer: Where the relevant sustoinobility reporting Includes external links, ingluding to audie visual material, this statement only con-
cerns materigl submitted to GRY ot the time of the Check on 19 December 2011, GRI explicitly excludes the statement being opplied to any
later changes to such material,

,
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INDEPENDENT ASSURANCE STATEMENT

EEAWOorks

To the management and stakeholders of PowerSeraya Limited

PowerSeraya Limited has commissioned
C5RWorks International to provide
independent assurance of its online Corporate
Accountability Report (the “Report”}). The
Report for the first time attempts to integrate
elements of PowerSeraya’'s Annual Report and
Sustainability Report and presents
PowerSeraya's sustainability performance for
the period April 2009 to June 2011.

Management responsibility

The management of PowerSeraya s
responsible for preparing, approving and
presenting the Report as well as for the
collection, collation, analysis and presentation
of all information and data provided in the
Report. Management's responsibility included
establishing and maintaining internal contrals
over systems and processes that generate
data and infarmation included in the Report,

Our responsibility

Qur responsibility is to  undertake an
assurance engagement on this report, in
accordance with terms of reference agreed
with PowerSeraya, and our respensibility
regarding this assurance engagement is to the
management of PowerSeraya only. CSRWorks
does not accept or assume any responsibility
or liability for any other purpose or to any
other person or organisation resulting from
this assurance,

Assurance standards
The assurance engagement has been carried
out using the following criteria:
¢« The principles and requirements
established in the  AAT000
Assurance Standard 2008
(AAT000AS)
e Global Reporting Initiative (GRI)
Sustainability Reporting Guidelines
[ G3), 2006

« The GRI Electric Utilities Sector
Supplement, Final Version 2009

Assurance type and scope

CSRWorks has provided Type 2 assurance in
accordance with the AALD000AS (2008) which
involves an assessment of the nature and
extent of PowerSeraya's adherence to the
AALO00 AccountAbility Principles (2008), and
an  assessment  of  the reliability of
sustainability performance information
described in the Report as specified. The
scope of our assurance engagement, as
agreed with PowerSeraya, included the
verification of sustainability policies, practices,
initiatives, goals, targets and performance
presented in the Report, and an assessment of
underlying management and reporting
processes in accordance with the GRI G3

guidelines.

Assurance lavel

CSRWorks has provided a Moderate level of
assurance which involves gathering evidence
mainly from internal sources and parties with
evidence gathering largely restricted to
corporate and management levels in the
organisation. The depth of assurance provided
is as defined by the scope, objectives and
methodology described in this statement.

Limitations
Our assurance engagement and scope of work
did not include verification of;

+ Financial data other than that related
to environmental, social and general
economic performance

¢ The adequacy or effectiveness of
Powerseraya’s strategy or
management of sustainability issues

+ Content provided by PowerSeraya
other than in its Report such as
information contained on its website
and web links in the Report



*  Any historical data and information
presented in the Report for the
purpose of comparisons

+ The GRI Application level check other
than reviewing all the indicators
included in the GRI Index in the
Report

Assurance objectives
The assurance engagement’s objectives were
to:

* Review adherence to the AA1000AS

Accountability Principles of
Materiality, Inclusivity and
Responsiveness.

s Review adherence to the principles
set out in the Global Reporting
initiative (GRI) Sustainability
Reporting Guidelines (2006) including
the GRI Electric  Utilities 3ector
Supplement Final Version 2009.

« Review of sustainability policies,
initiatives, practices and performance
presented in the Report.

« Verification of the reliability,
accuracy and completeness of FY
2009/10 to FY 2010/11 gualitative
and quantitative sustainability
performance data included in the
Report.

# Review and assessment of the
processes, methods and tools for
gathering, collating, analyzing and
reporting quantitative and gualitative
sustainability information presented
in the Report.

Methodology

This engagement was carried out between
Movember 14, 2011 and December 09, 2011,
and was undertaken in accordance with the
AAL000AS (2008). Onsite wverification was
conducted at  PowerSeraya's  corporate
headquarters at HarbourFront Place and the
Pulau Seraya Power Plant at Jurong Island.
Both  sites  are located in Singapore,
Additionally, desk review was performed from
the CSRWorks office in Singapore.

CSRWorks adopted a risk-based approach to
carry out the assurance engagement by
concentrating on the issues that are most
material to PowerSeraya's business and its
stakeholders. The  verification process
included challenging the sustainability related
statements and data presented in the Report
to seek supporting evidence. We also assessed
the robustness of the underlying data
management processes, focusing on gquality
contrals, and the reliability of data provided in
the report,

In erder to obtain sufficient evidence for us to
give a moderate level of assurance, and to
arrive at conclusions and recommendations,
we undertook the following activities:

1. Desk review of the report provided
by PowerSeraya to identify the most
material data, statements and
assertions presented in the report for
verification.

2. Development of a detailed
assessment plan that included maore
than 110 data peints, statements,
assertions, policies and practices
contained in  the Report for
verification,

3. Visits to PowerSeraya headguarters
at HarbourFront Place, and its power
generation facility Pulau  Seraya
Power Plant at Jurong Island to
review the specified social and
environmental performance data and
underlying data management
processes and practices.

4. Conducting 21 interviews that
included interviews with the Chief
Executive Officer, senior
management executives and key
personnel  from  wvarious business
units and  functions, including
Sustainability, Corporate  Services
Group, Internal Audit, Corporate
Finance, Procurement & Contracts,
Enterprise Risk Management,
Marketing, Human Resources,
Contact Centre Operations, Legal &



Regulatory Affairs, Utilities Group,
contractors and the President of
Union of Power and Gas Employees,
Interviews with senior management
involved  assessing PowerSeraya's
policies, processes and procedures in
place  to manage sustainability
performance. Interviews with key
personnel and data owners from
various  departments invalved
assessing  PowerSeraya's  processes
for collecting and  monitoring
performance  data  during  the
reporting period and substantiating
assertions made in the Report.
Interviews with stakeholders involved
evaluating how PowerSeraya engages
stakeholders to  identify  material
issues and to assess effectiveness of
PowerSeraya's response to the issues
important to stakeholders.

A review of sampled documents,
records and information, including
but not limited to the following
material areas to collect and evaluate
evidence to support the assurance
engagement undertaken :

a) Corporate Governance and
Stakeholder Engagement
and Risk Management

b) Environment: Environment
Management System,
Certifications, Fuel
consumption, MNatural gas
consumed, Indirect energy
consumption, Air emissions,
Water  intensity, Trade
effluent, Waste and
disposal, Spills, Use of
chemicals, Biodiversity,
Climate Change and Direct
and Indirect GHG emissions,
and Engaging staff and
COMmmunity in
environmental
sustainability,

c) Workplace  safety  and
health: Certifications, Work-
related fatalities and

7.

Accident-free
Rate of Injury, Rate of Loss,
Safety survey, and
Occupational health.

man-hours,

d) Human capital: Training and
Development, PFromaoting
work-life  balance, Labor
practices and basic human
rights, and Employee
turnover.

e] Contributing to the society.

fl  Product responsibility:

Customer satisfaction,
Products to enhance
customer sustainability,

Helping  customers  to
conserve  energy, and
PowerSeraya’s role in an
Efficient and Competitive
Electricity Market.
A review of samples of source data
for verifying PowerSeraya's data and
information management systems
and processes focusing on  the
reliability of data reported, in
accordance with the requirements of
AA1000AS (2008) and GRI G3
reporting guidelines. The assessment
of reliability of data included a review
of completeness and accuracy, and of
the methods, practices and tools
used in the collection, collation,
analysis, and reporting of data and
information. The assessment also
included a review of internal quality
control, data traceability and testing
of calculations.
A review of the process of acquiring
economic information and financial
data reflected in the FY 2010/11
audited financial statements.
Examining a selection of internal
communications, stakeholder
engagement reports, media reports,
employee  survey  results, and
customer satisfaction survey results
relating to
sustainability  management  and
performance.

PowerSeraya’s



Conclusion

In CSRWorks" opinion, based on
engagement carried out, PowerSeraya's
2010/11 Corporate Accountability Report
provides a fair and reliable representation
of the company’s sustainability strategies,
management approach and performance,
Based on our work, PowerSeraya's
2010/11 Corporate Accountability Report
has met the conditions for adherence to
the AA1000 Principles and the GRI G3
Guidelines including the GRI Electric
Utilities Sector Supplement.

Observations and recommendations

Qur observations and recommendations,
within the scope of this engagement, are
presented  below  specifically  with
reference to the adherence to AA1000
Principles of materiality, inclusivity and
responsiveness. We have also made
additional recommendations in  a
separate report to the management of
Powerseraya. Some of these
recommendations were implemented by
PowerSeraya, and verified by CSREWaorks,
before this assurance statement was
issued.

Adherence to AAI000 Principles

Materiality

PowerSeraya has appropriately identified
issues that are most material to its
business and stakeholders, As a power
generation company that relies on oil and
gas as input material, PowerSeraya has
correctly identified climate change and a
range of environmental issues as
material. We  have noted that
PowerSeraya has expanded reporting on
greenhouse gas emissions this year by
including sulphur hexafluoride emissions.
Reliability of power plants, offering
products and services that help
customers  save  energy,  customer
satisfaction, risk management particularly

in relation to fluctuating oil prices,
occupational health and safety, employee
development, and promoting
environmental awareness among staff
and community are also identified as
material issues which are eqgually
important  to business  and  its
stakeholders.

PowerSeraya is 3 member of Singapore
Compact for CSR, and has been actively
participating in sustainability conferences,
seminars  and industry forums, and
engages with regulators, customers and
industry bodies to understand wider
sustainability issues most material to the
power generation sector. PowerSeraya's
management periodically discusses and
updates material issues  in internal
meetings including at the Board of
Directors level,

Going forward, PowerSeraya should
consider a formal, broader and deeper
assessment of risks and opportunities
arising from climate change to better
articulate its response and strategy.

Inclusivity

PowerSeraya has identified a range of
stakeholders  that  include customers,
labor union, government agencies,
market regulators, employees, suppliers
and community. PowerSeraya has an
ongoing  engagement  process  to
understand stakeholders” needs and to
address them. Examples include customer
satisfaction survey, employee opinion
survey, quarterly  staff-management
dialogue, periodic meetings with the
labor union, and regular interaction with
voluntary welfare organizations.

Going forward PowerSeraya should
consider deeper engagement  with
suppliers to  share its  sustainability
knowledge, build their sustainability
capahilities and include sustainahility
criteria in the procurement process. This
will help expand reporting on supply
chain issues,



Establishing a formal engagement
framework, enhancing organization-wide
capabilities to engage stakeholders and
increasing employees’ awareness about
the wvalue of stakeholder engagement
could be another area of further
improvement,

Responsiveness

PowerSeraya demonstrates commitment
to respond to feedback received from
stakeholders. For example, based on
customer feedback, PowerSeraya has
introduced innovative products that help
customers enhance their sustainability
and has organized orientation programs
for customers and provides tips on saving
energy. Another key example includes
PowerSeraya's  Collective  Bargaining
Agreement with the Union of Power and
Gas Employees in January 2011 that
includes adopting a re-employment
framework, ahead of legislation, to
benefit  employees reaching  the
retirement age.

PowerSeraya’s Enterprise Risk
Management department works closely
with warious risk owners to collect
relevant data and information in order to
respond to potential issues in a timely
manner.

PowerSeraya has  reported  actual
performance  on  various  sustainability
indicators. Going forward, PowerSeraya
should establish, and report on,
measurable targets and goals related to
material issues,

PowerSeraya has significantly expanded
the number of GRI  sustainability
performance indicators in this year's
report from 57 to 91, and has also
included disclosure on 33 Electric Utilities
Sector-specific commentaries and
management approaches. The next step
for PowerSeraya is to deepen and widen
the level of disclosures for each of the
indicators to provide greater insight into
its performance,

Our independence

C5RWorks was not involved in preparing
any part of the report, with the exception
of this Assurance Statement. CSRWorks
has not undertaken any prior work with
PowerSeraya or any of its stakeholders on
any engagements that could impair the
independence, impartiality or objectivity
of our findings, cbservations, conclusions
and recommendations.

Our competency

C5RWorks is a leading name in the region
in sustainability consulting with particular
expertise and track record in social and
environmental assessments,
arganizational carbon footprint, water
footprint, health and safety, sustainahility
reporting and assurance. PowerSeraya's
assurance engagement was led by a
senior assessor with over 14 years of full
time experience in corporate
responsibility and sustainability that
includes  conducting or  overseeing
hundreds of social and environmental
audits in a range of industry sectors,
sustainability reporting, GHG reporting,
stakeholder engagement and
development of sustainability standards.

December 09, 2011
Singapore

e,

Rajesh Chhabara
Director and Lead Assessor

For CSRWorks International

+ AA1000

Licensed Assurance Provider
Doo-113
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3.1 Corporate Information

Name: PowerSeraya Ltd

Wholly owned subsidiaries

Seraya Energy Pte Ltd

1 HarbourFront Place

#16-06 HarbourFront Tower One
Singapore 098633

Telephone: +65 6363 6688
Facsimile; +65 6363 6600

Website: wwwi.serayasnergy.com.sg

Seraya Energy and Investments Pte Ltd
1 HarbourFront Place

#17-01 HarbourFront Tower Cne

Singapore 098633

Telephone: +65 6363 1010

Facsimile: +65 8363 1212

PetroSeraya Pte Ltd

1 HarbourFront Place

#17-01 HarbourFront Tower Cne
Singapare 098633

Telephone: +65 6363 1010
Facsimile: +65 6213 8673
Website: www.petroseraya.com

Primary services

Electricity generation

Steam generation

Electricity retailing

Oil trading and bunkering (since April 2007)

Headquarters

Registered office

1 HarbourFront Place #17-01
HarbourFront Tower One

Singapore 098633

Telephone: +65 6363 1010
Facsimile: 465 6363 1212

Website: www.powerseraya.com.sg

Power Plant Stations

Pulau Seraya Power Station
3 Seraya Avenue

Singapore 628209

Telephone : +65 6890 4308
Facsimilie : +65 6266 1955

Jurong Power Station
16 Jurong Pier Road
Singapore 618175
Telephone : +65 B660 0205
Facsimilie :+65 6268 1214

Countries of operation /

Place of incorporation
Singapore

Company registration Number
199504468H

Date of incorporation
27 June 1995

Ownership

Powerberaya Ltd is now wholly owned subsidiary
of YTL Power International Berhad since 6 March
2009. (see diagram 3.1)
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Board of Directors

Tan Sri Dato’ (Dr) Francis Yeoh Sock Ping
Dato’ Yeoh Seok Hong

Dato’ Mark Yeoh Seok Kah

Joseph Tan Choong Min

Edwin Harald Burchardt

John Ng Peng Wah

Company Secretary
Jessica Lien Mei Jin

Auditors
PriceWaterHouseCoopers LLP
8 Cross Street

#17-00 PWC Building
Singapore 048424

Principal Bankers

Bank of America N.A.

CIMB Bank Berhad

Citibank, N.A. Singapore Branch

Credit Agricole, Corporate & Investment Bank
DBS Bank Ltd

ING Bank N.V., Singapore Branch

Malayan Banking Berhad

Owversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.
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The company changed ownership during the re-
porting period which resulted in an organisational
restructuring exercise in 2009, The Utilities Group
underwent a major restructuring exercise in Q3
2009 to align its modus operandi with that of its
parent company to enhance synergises between
subsidiaries of the parent company.

Market served
Singapore

Employees (full-time)

417 (for year ending June 11). This is a 2.9% in-
crease in the number of full-time employees over
the previous FY.

Revenue
S$4.7 billion (for year ending Jun 11)

Net profit after tax
S$374.2 million (for year ending Jun 11)

Earnings per share
S30.42 (for year ending Jun 11)

Return on assets
12.8% (for year ending Jun 11)

Licensed generation capacity

_ o 3,100 MW
Changes in organisational
structure during reporting period
YTL Power International Berhad
100%

PowerSeraya Ltd

Diagram 3.1: PowerSeraya is a wholly owned subsidiary of YTL Power International Berhad
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3.2 Strategic Profile

The PowerSeraya Group, a wholly-owned subsidiary of YTL Power International Berhad, is in the busi-
ness of producing, wholesaling, trading and retailing of energy, with a primary focus on electricity. With
a licensed generating capacity of 3100MW, PowerSeraya is one of Singapore’s largest electricity gen-
erators, supplying about 30% of the country’s energy needs. Through its retail arm, Seraya Energy, it
has been providing a wide range of innovative products and services to meet the diverse needs of its
customers. As part of our vision to become an integrated energy company, the company entered into
the fuel-trading and oil-bunkering business through our wholly-owned subsidiary PetroSeraya Pte Ltd in
2007, further complementing PowerSeraya’s power-generating business and Seraya Energy's electricity
retail business.

PowerSeraya has since been growing its business beyond its core competency of an electricity provider
to become a leading integrated energy company in Singapore with operations in physical oil trading,
steam and domestic potable water sales.

Part of our diversification strategy to become a leading integrated energy company required
the integration of new infrastructure with existing power generating assets. The modifications
to our existing natural-gas fired combined cycle power plants has enabled the company to
produce steam (through the application of waste heat recovery principles) for our customers
with sustainability in mind.

As an expansion of PowerSeraya's business to offer multi-utility services that include electricity, steam
and water, the company’s 800MW Co-Generation Combined Cycle Plant (Co-Gen CCP) was launched
in October 2010. The Co-Gen CCP which is capable of increased thermal efficiency has also further
reduced the overall carbon footprint of the company.

The PowerSeraya Group remains committed to maximising value to its shareholders and customers
while maintaining high standards of operational excellence and delivery without compromising its com-
mitment to the environment and the community.

Our Business Case for Sustainability

In 2008, a CSR Strategy was developed to take into account the company’s corporate strategy, the
sustainability issues affecting our company and our key stakeholders. In fulfilling the corporate vision of
being a leading integrated energy company, we are consciously aware of the important role that CSR
has in balancing our profits with the planet and people.

Our five 'CSR Strategic Thrusts’ as outlined below goes beyond conducting a responsible business. It
aims to build a culture where employees think and practice sustainability in the company and how the
culture can be extended to influence the community around us. It represents our continuous strive to be
on top of sustainability issues and our pursuit of sustainable energy solutions for the future - ‘Energy for
Sustainable Growth'.

#1 CSR Thrust: Investing in Green Capabilities

It is about our continuous endeavour to explore new technologies and ideas for cleaner energy.
Some projects we have explored included seeking a CDM registration for our 800MW Co-Gen
plant and tender bids for electric vehicle test-bedding. We continue to strive forward on this front to
explore newer and cleaner energy options in the medium to long-term.

#2 CSR Thrust: Incorporating Greenhouse Gas in Management Agenda
It is about embedding operations/practices with Greenhouse Gas (GHG) in mind. We started the
process about three years ago with our annual sustainability report. By highlighting the GHG emis-
sions and initiatives tied to this in the report, we had kick-started the cycle of improving upon our
GHG performance. Looking into the future, we are looking at putting in place an energy manage-
ment system where we can track, monitor and improve on our energy footprint which is related
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to our GHG footprint. An annual report of our sustainability performance also aims to provide our
customers and business partners with a transparent view of how we conduct our business and
eventually, build trust and credibility with these stakeholders.

#3 CSR Thrust: Building Strategic Partnerships

This means building our social capital. We live in a highly globalised and interconnected world where
companies are increasingly looking to our stakeholders for business ideas, solutions and growth.
We recognise the need to develop strong partnerships with not only our business partners but the
government, civic society and customers to help us grow, innovate and develop new solutions/
products.

#4 CSR Thrust: Growing With the Community

It is more than giving back to society. It is also an opportunity where we can engage our staff on a
commeon social mission. The company recognises that employees who identify with the social mis-
sion of the company are likely to be motivated, committed and more prepared to make sacrifices as
a team member. Community involvement can play a complementary role in developing new skills,
encouraging participation and sharing, as well as build team spirit in the workplace. Increasingly,
the newer generation of employees aspires to join companies that are socially responsible. The
company’s engagement with the community thus helps to attract new talent into our workforce
and provides an avenue for new employees to pursue their aspirations/passion outside of work via
corporate-organised social initiatives.

#5 CSR Thrust: Nurture Human Capital

It recognises that our employees are an important resource of the company. It is our talent within
that enables us to move in tandem with changes, develop new ideas/solutions to grow the compa-
ny over time. Nurturing human capital in PowerSeraya is more than just developing our employees
to be productive units for economic performance. It is also about embedding a workforce culture
that embraces the philosophy of sustainability for sustainable growth over the long-term. Our be-
lief in nurturing human capital extends outside the company where our employees act as change
agents to families and the community around them e.qg. Energy Savers Contest. The company also
provides opportunities to develop promising tertiary students through our regular schelarship and
internship programmes that lend strength to employee branding over time.

CSR Vision

Environmental Policy Community Policy

Integrated Challenges

Nurture

Diagram 3.2: The Five CSR Strategic Thrusts
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3.3 Board of Directors

TAN SRI DATO’ (DR) FRANCIS YEOH SOCK PING

Chairman

Tan Sri Dato' (Dr) Francis Yeoh Sock Ping joined the PowerSeraya Board on 12 November 2009. He is
presently Managing Director of YTL Corporation Berhad, YTL Power International Berhad, YTL Cement
Berhad and YTL Land & Development Berhad as well as the Executive Chairman and Managing Director
of YTL e-Solutions Berhad.

Tan Sri Francis is also Chief Executive Officer of Pintar Projek Sdn Bhd, the Manager of Starhill Real Estate
Investment Trust; and the Executive Chairman of YTL Pacific Star REIT Management Limited.

Under his stewardship, the YTL Group has grown into a leading integrated infrastructure developer with
international interests in utilities, construction, cement manufacturing, property development and invest-
ment, hotel development and management and information technology.

DATO’ YEOH SEOK HONG

Dato’ Yeoh Seck Hong was appointed to the PowerSeraya Board on 6 March 2009, He is an Executive
Director of YTL Corporation Berhad, YTL Power International Berhad, YTL Cement Berhad, YTL Land &
Development Berhad and YTL e-Solutions Berhad.

Dato’ Yeoh Seok Hong is responsible for developing the YTL Power's utilities business, which has grown
from its base in Malaysia of two power stations with a generation capacity of 1,212 MW into an inter-
national multi-utility provider with businesses encompassing power generation (in both contracted and
merchant markets) in Malaysia, Indonesia and Singapore, power transmission in Australia and water and
sewerage services in the UK,

DATO’ MARK YEOH SEOK KAH

Dato’ Mark Yeoh Seok Kah was appointed to the PowerSeraya Board on 6 March 2009. He is an Execu-
tive Director of YTL Corporation Berhad, YTL Power International Berhad, YTL Cement Berhad, YTL Land
& Development Berhad and YTL e-Solutions Berhad.

Dato’ Mark heads the hotels and resorts division of the YTL Group, which owns and manages a portfolio
of award winning premier properties comprising of 5-star hotels (The Ritz—Cariton, Kuala Lumpur and the
JW Marriott Hotel Kuala Lumpur), luxury resorts (Pangkor Laut RBesort, Tanjong Jara Resort, Cameron
Highlands Resort, The Majestic Malacca and Spa Village Resort Tembok Bali) and the Vistana chain of
business hotels in Malaysia.

JOHN NG PENG WAH

Besides serving on the PowerSeraya Board, Mr. John Ng Peng Wah is also the Chief Executive Officer of
the PowerSeraya Group, an appointment held since May 2009, An industry veteran with more than 20
years of commercial and engineering experience under his belt, he transitioned with the Company from
its PUB days to the current PowerSeraya Group.

Prior to his current appointment, Mr. Ng was the Group's Senior Vice President of Retail & Regulations.
During his tenure, Seraya Energy - the Group’s retail arm - witnessed rapid business growth and made it
to the list as one of Singapore's 50 fastest growing companies for two consecutive years.

Until his appointment, Mr. Ng has also held other management positions within PowerSeraya, including
General Manager of Business.
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HARALD BURCHARDT

Mr. Harald Burchardt is the Managing Director of YTL Power Services Sdn Bhd and has overall respon-
sibility for the Operation and Maintenance of YTL Power's Paka and Pasir Gudang power stations in
Malaysia and PT Jawa Power's 1,220 MW power plant in Indonesia,

Mr. Burchardt is a Nuclear Engineer with over 45 years of experience in the international power sector
including 30 years with Siemens and 15 years with the YTL Group. He was formerly a Senior Director in
the Erection & Commissioning Division of Siemens PG Group KWLU in Germany. He was also the project
manager for Killinghome and Rye House combined-cycle power plants in the UK in the early 1990s.

JOSEPH TAN CHOONG MIN

Mr. Joseph Tan Choong Min is the Director of Projects for YTL Power International Berhad and is respon-
sible for the YTL Group's new projects and investments, including M&A acquisitions and greenfield project
development.

Mr. Tan has over 25 years’ experience in the construction and infrastructure sectors, as well as in corpo-
rate planning and business development for large industrial groups. Prior to joining YTL Power, he was
Manager for Corporate Planning & Business Development with Singapore Technologies Industrial Corpo-
ration Limited in Singapore.

He obtained his Bachelor of Science (Hons) degree in Civil and Structural Engineering frormn the University
of Bradford, UK and a Masters of Business Administration degree from the National University of Singa-
paore.
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3.5 Business Operations Review

Seraya Energy

The financial year saw high volatility in the energy market that posed great challenges for the electricity
market. Seraya Energy supported its customers in facing these challenges by offering innovative prod-
ucts and customised solutions.

Armed with a good knowledge of customers' business needs, Seraya Energy managed once again to
retain its market leader position for the fourth year running with a 28.3% share of the contestable retail
market. Sales volume was 7,714GWh, a slight increase from the annualised figures of 7,658GWh in
FY2009/2010.

To facilitate its customers in making their buying decision under the highly volatile market, regular updates
on market conditions were provided. A new product was also introduced, which called upon Seraya En-
ergy to manage customers’ electricity prices over a longer time frame, thus creating added value.

Moving ahead, the competition in the market is set to become more intense with the entry of new gen-
eration units and players. This means the team having to step up on efforts more than ever to re-invent
itself and build on customer value propositions.

Seraya Energy will continue to draw customer feedback and look at offering bundled products together
with flexible electricity plans to give customers greater options and convenience.

PetroSeraya

Against a backdrop of market volatility and slow growth in the industry in the last financial year which
contributed to a challenging year, PetroSeraya, the trading and fuel management arm of PowerSeraya,
continued its strong contributions to the company with a revenue of S$869 million and overall Net Profit
After Tax (NPAT) of S$5 million.

This strong performance was contributed mainly from its physical oil trading and tank leasing business
activities. The team's proactive search for new business opportunities and new sources of fuel, as well
as expansion of its counter-party networks has also boosted the company's position.

Leveraging on its terminal facilities centred on the petrochemical hub of Singapore and efficient cargo
handling activities, PetroSeraya completas the Group's energy value chain.

In the last financial year, PetroSeraya leased out a total storage tank capacity of up to 270,000 metric
tonnes. Meanwhile, its own 25,000 cubic meters oil blending tanks continue to enhance its trading activi-
ties and complement its existing storage tank capacity of 860,000 cubic meters.

In addition, retrofitting works were carried out on the existing oil storage and jetty facilities for greater
operational efficiency.

Moving forward, PetroSeraya aims to be the leading oil terminal in Singapore and will continue to explore
new initiatives to reach this vision.

Utilities
The completion and official launch of PowerSeraya's 800MW Co-Generation Combined Cycle Plant (Co-
Gen CCP) in October 2010 marked a significant milestone for the company. Replacing three oil-fired
steam units, the Co-Gen CCP produces electricity and steam simultaneously with higher efficiency and
reliability.

The availability of steam through the Co-Gen CCP has also enabled PowerSeraya to supply high pres-
sure steam to neighbouring customers on Jurong lsland. With already one steam customer on board
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- Petrochemical Corporation of Singapore - the company continues to grow its customer base in steam
sales and will be supplying steam to its second customer for 15 years starting February 2012.

On another aspect of its plant operations, the chemical laboratory under PowerSeraya was accredited
with the ISO/IEC17025:2005 SAC-SINGLAS Accreditation in June 2011 for water testing. This achieve-
ment made PowerSeraya the first power generation company to be accredited in fuel oil and water listed
on the SAC-SINGLAS directory.

In order to improve its plants' reliability and availability as well as extend its lifecycle, PowerSeraya com-
pleted major overhaul projects of over 75,000 Equivalent Operating Hours (EOH) for two blocks of com-
bined cycle plants during the financial year under review.

As part of the company’s journey towards continuous improvements, the team will seek to establish pro-
cesses for obtaining the newly created ISO50001 - a standard for energy management systems - in the
new Financial Year. This standard aims to help companies improve their energy performance throughout
the supply chain, including energy consumption and efficiency.

With an aim to optimise the use of resources and further reduce the company's environmental footprint,
a water conservation programme within the plant will also be explored.

Energy Markets

PowerSeraya was able to maintain its leading position despite a competitive environment and volatile
oil and currency markets over the last financial year. For the period ending June 2011, it registered a
generation market share of 28%, the highest among Singapore's generation companies. PowerSeraya
sold 11,987 GWh of electricity, representing a 8.4% increase compared to the 2009/2010 financial year
on an annualised basis.

With prudent bidding and hedging strategies that were implemented in accordance to market condi-
tions, the company was able to continue providing cost-competitive products to its customers.

In May and June 2011, PowerSeraya supplied electricity to Malaysia's largest electricity group Tenaga
Nasional Berhad in the first-ever commercial sale of power supply from Singapore to Malaysia. Appropri-
ate bidding and hedging measures were also put in place to cater to this electricity export move.

Following two new Combined Cycle Plants (CCPs) commissioned from end of 2009, PowerSeraya was
able to obtain more than 65% of the generation output from its CCPs for the financial year under review.
These natural gas-fired plants generate electricity at a higher level of efficiency and at lower costs com-
pared to oil-fired plants.

Process & Innovation

Far the year in review, PowerSeraya's Process & Innovation (P&I) team continued to focus on business
efficiency and productivity — mainly enabling the various business units’ success through the effective
and reliable use of technology and maximising the use of its assets.

In supporting the business groups, P&l identified infrastructure gaps and implemented strategic systems
to enhance the growth of the business. Working with various depariments, P&| created a convenient
one-stop reference data warehouse which gave different departments access to enterprise information
stored in a central location.

As part of its continuous effort to enhance the company's system reliability, maximise existing physical
space and reduce energy consumption as well as carbon footprint, the team continued to pursue the
use of virtualisation technology. To date, the company runs more than 150 virtual servers on 11 physical
Servers.
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To maximise the use of assets, P&l upgraded the functionality of a trading system used in electricity bid-
ding so as to prolong its shelf life by another three years.

In response to external changing market demands, projects were also carried out in the last financial year
to replace obsolete software or hardware.

More system upgrades and improvements are expected in the new financial year, involving existing
Finance and Human Resources systems and customer billing solutions. Working in hand with other de-
partments, P&l will continue to develop and ensure the effective use of IT assets in the company,

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and Human Capital
The company organises many corporate social responsibility (CSR) initiatives throughout the year. Every
year close to 12 initiatives were organised for staff as well as the community, These initiatives seek to
inculcate a culture of corporate citizenry where staff can engage in meaningful work for the environment
and the community. In galvanising employees to a common purpose through such initiatives, positive
working relations are strengthened, thus creating a happy and highly engaged workforce.

From managing office resources under the Eco Office Label certification system to participating in the
annual Energy Savers Contest, staffs are given opportunities to voluntarily actualise erwironmental sus-
tainability. Our external environmental programmes that involve the community include the Responsible
Energy Advocates Programme (REAP). Through REAP, tertiary students are groomed to be energy ad-
vocates through home energy conservation initiatives with residents and working on energy conservation
projects targeted at different stakeholders.

Our investments on enhancing human capital increased over the past two years (FY09/10 to FY10/11).
These investments took mainly the form of staff training to enable them to acquire technical knowledge
and skills to operate new power generation machines. In addition, the company also sought to develop
a strong leadership culture through greater employee engagement. Our labour practices are consistent
with the ILO conventions (ratified by Singapore).

Coupled with our pro-family practices, the company provides a conductive work environment that en-
courages staff to adopt a healthy work-life balance and lifestyle. Our fast aging workforce has highlighted
succession planning and human capital renewal as a key focus in the coming years. In response to this,
the company introduced the READY programme in 2011 to help employees approaching the retirement
age to assess whether they should consider re-employment or retirement.

The company is also branding itself as an employer of choice to attract new staff to replenish a retiring
waorkforce. All the above human capital initiatives are aligned with our CSR Strategic Thrust of ‘Nurturing
Human Capital' which also extends beyond the organisation to the community.

Since 2008, the company has held the PowerSeraya Scholarship programme with Nanyang Technologi-
cal University for tertiary students. The Nithiah Nandan Book Prize which was also set up in the same
year, recognises the talents of our employee’s children in non-academic fields.

In early 2011, the company expanded its social initiatives to include the disadvantaged in society by
adaopting the Goodwill Occupational & Rehabilitation Workshop (GROW) a charitable programme of the
Spastic Children’s’ Association of Singapore. The company hopes that its support for GROW will provide
opportunities for these individuals to undertake more social enterprise initiatives that are beneficial for
their personal growth and development. Through GROW, the company also hopes to instill in its em-
ployees a sense of ownership to this charitable programme, as well as develop a nurturing spint from
the experience gained.



The company is also a keen supporter of environmental and social initiatives/causes. Our sponsorship
for the Clean and Green Singapore event and the annual fund-raising Semakau run dates back to 2007
and 2008 respectively. We recently renewed our support with the Waterways Watch Society in 2010 by
sponsoring another five patrol bikes from the initial ten bikes in previous years. Our company is also on
the SHARE scheme under the Community Chest where staff voluntarily donates a portion of their monthly
salary to the needy in society.
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3.6 Milestones for FY 2010/2011
July 2010 to June 2011

1. Official Opening of B00MW Co-Generation Combined Cycle Plant

The official opening of PowerSeraya's 800MW Co-Generation Combined Cycle Plant (Co-Gen CCP) on
20 October 2010 marked the expansion of PowerSeraya's business to offer multi-utility services which
include electricity, steam and water. The Co-Gen CCP with increased thermal efficiency has also further
reduced the overall carbon footprint of the company.

2. Winner of ACCA’s Singapore Awards for Sustainability Reporting

PowerSeraya was awarded the top winner of the 2010 ACCA's Singapore Awards for Sustainability Re-
porting on 22 October 2010. It was PowerSeraya's second consecutive win since it started its sustainabil-
ity reporting in 2008, The company was commended on its transparency, completeness and credibility in
the quality of information disclosed during the reporting process.

3. Asian Power Plant of the Year 2010 (Silver)

PowerSeraya's B00MW Co-Gen CCP was awarded Silver in the category of Asian Power Plant of the
Year at the Asian Power Awards 2010 ceremony organised by Charlton Media. Launched since 2005,
the Asian Power Awards aims to recognise power industry players in Asia for significant contributions in
the region.

4. WorkLife Achiever Award 2010

For the company's commitment in promoting work-life integration in the workplace and creating a condu-
cive environment to bring out the best in its employees, PowerSeraya was awarded the WorkLife Achiever
Award 2010 by the Tripartite Committee on Work-Life Strategy (TriCom).

5. Most Technologically Advanced Power Plant of the Year

The 800MW Co-Gen CCP of PowerSeraya received the award for Most Technologically Advanced Power
Plant of the YYear at the Power & Electricity Awards 2011 held in March. Competing with other plants
across Asia, PowerSeraya's Co-Gen CCP came out tops for its ability to make use of technologies to
produce cost-effective electricity in an environmentally-friendly manner.

6. Eco Office Label

PowerSeraya was awarded the Eco Office Label on 16 February 2011 by the Singapore Environment
Council for demonstrating good environmental practices in the office setting. To date, only 73 companies
in Singapore have received this award since its inception in 2005 - with PowerSeraya being the country's
first power company to join the ranks.

7. Collective Agreement 2010-2013 Signing

The signing of the Collective Agreement for 2010 to 2013 was concluded on 19 January 2011 and is
another testament of the strong partnership between PowerSeraya and the Union of Power And Gas
Employees (UPAGE). In concluding the agreement, the company also became the first power genera-
tion company to formally adopt a re-employment framework for mature workers beyond age 62. This is
ahead of the re-employment legislation intended for 2012, which aims to allow mature workers to stay
economically productive.

8. First Generation Company to Import Electricity To Malaysia

A deal between PowerSeraya and Malaysia’s largest electricity group, Tenaga Nasional, was sealed for
the export of electricity for a month in May 2011, This marked the first-ever commercial deal for cross-
border electricity export between Singapore and Malaysia. An ‘exemption relating to export of electricity’
under Singapore's Electricity Act was given to PowerSeraya by the Energy Market Authority (EMA) and
Ministry of Trade and Industry to proceed with the deal.



9. Achievement Of Accreditation For Water Testing

PowerSeraya's laboratory was accredited with ISO/IEC17025:2005 SAC-SINGLAS in June 2011, making
PowerSeraya the first power generation company to be accredited in fuel cil and desalination water listed
on the SAC-SINGLAS directory. It has also enabled the laboratory to become a full-fledged testing centre
able to do both oil and water testing services.
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4.1 Introduction

A robust corporate governance system ensures that the company's business practices are carried out in
a responsible and ethical manner. It serves to protect the interests of our shareholders as well as other
stakeholders that have interactions with our company.

We believe firmly that integrity, excellence and commitment by our people, supported by sound policies,
practices and internal controls are the success elements that will create long-term value and returns for
shareholders.

The following guestions serve to give readers an in-depth understanding of the company’s corporate
governance structure and how issues concerning sustainability are considered and decisions made.

What is the governance structure of PowerSeraya, such as the committees
for specific tasks like setting strategy or organisational oversight?

The highest governance body in PowerSeraya Ltd is the Board of Directors (BOD) which provides or-
ganisatiﬂnal oversight on areas such as business strateqy, risk management, emﬁloyee compensation
and company policies, The BOD has three committees to assist in the execution of its responsibilities:

a) Audit Committee - responsible for the financial reporting, internal controls and compliance
issue (operations and finance)

b) Human Resources and Remuneration Committee — responsible for human resources
policies and compensation matters.

¢) Risk Management Committee — responsible for paolicies on manitoring and managing of risk
EXposures.

The compaosition of the BOD as well as details of each BOD member can be found under Section
3.3: Board of Directors.

What is the composition and function of the BOD?

The BOD consists of six members, two of whom are non-executive members. The BOD is headed by
a Chairman who is not an executive officer of the company. Qut of the four executive members of the
BOD, one of them is the Chief Executive Officer of PowerSeraya with the remaining three also in execu-
tive positions outside PowerSeraya. For details, refer to Section 3.3: Board of Directors.

A non-executive director is generally considered a director who has no involvement in the day-to-day
running of the company and is not employed by the company. As such, a non-executive director will
usually devote part of his time to the affairs of the company as an independent adviser on matters of
policy and strateqy.
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What mechanisms do you have for the shareholder and employees to pro-
vide recommendations or direction to the BOD?

PowerSeraya isa wholly—c:wned subaidiaw of YTL Power International Berhad from & March 2009. There
are no minority shareholders, and PowerSeraya's sole shareholder appoints the directors on the BOD.

Employees have the right to raise concerns anonymously through a whistle-blowing policy which is cov-
ered under the company's Code of Ethics.

UPAGE (Union of Power and Gas Employees) represents our employees who are union members, which
make up more than half of the company's staff. UPAGE and the management of the company meet on
a regular basis to discuss topics relating to the welfare of the union members as well as areas of col-
laboration where the union and the management can work together to achieve company goals, among
other issues.

What internal controls and systems are in place to assure the integrity and
reliability of the company’s financial performance data and also to safe-
guard company assets?

The Management provides all Directors with accounts and reports on the operational performance on a
monthly basis. Apart from the periodic updates provided by the Management, the Directors may at any
time seek further information from or have discussions with the management on the Group's operations
and performance.

The Group maintains internal controls and systems designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the
integrity and reliability of its financial statements and to adequately safeguard, venfy and maintain ac-
countability for its assets. Established procedures in operations and finance ensure adequate internal
controls exist.

The effectiveness of these controls and systems are subject to periodical reviews by Internal Audit. In
addition, the external auditors also review the effectiveness of key controls as part of its audit plan for
each year.

The Internal Audit function serves to provide independent and objective assessment of the Group's sys-
tem of internal controls. In assessing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal
controls, Internal Audit:

1. Adopts a risk-based approach integrating efforts with top priority risks
and develops the internal audit plan;

2. Evaluates the design and cperating effectiveness of key controls
of business processes under review,

3. Becommends improvement to internal control procedures and promotes effective
and efficient business processes within the Group.

Internal Audit reports directly to the Audit Committee and meets with the Audit Committee quarterly to
report ite activities and observations.

Is there any link between compensation for BOD members, senior manag-
ers, and executives and PowerSeraya’s performance, including social and
environmental performance?

All of our employees are covered in an established and structured performance management system

where bonus and salary remuneration are tied to group and individual performance targets aligned to
our overall performance goals — which include social and environmental performance. This is reflected
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in the environmental performance of the power plant operations as well as the environmental initiatives
organised or supported by the organisation for employees and the community. The establishment of the
Sustainahility Department (previously known as Environmental Department) in late FY0B/07 shows our
emphasis on sustainability with a focus on the environment. The bonus and increment of the Sustain-
ability Department employees and group heads concerned are tied to the performance of the sustaina-
bility goals which include targets for environmental and social items. Our social performance includes the
various community programmes covered under the corporate social responsibility goals. These goals
form part of the corporate performance targets which are tracked and rewarded under the company's
compensation system.

There is no link between compensation for BOD members and PowerSeraya's performance. While the
Executive Directors are paid a remuneration for their involvement in guiding the operations of the com-
pany, the BOD members do not receive any non-executive director's fees. Nonetheless, the BOD mem-
bers do contemplate issues covering financial, environmental and social subjects, For dedicated atten-
tion, three committees (Audit Committee, Human Resources and Remuneration Committee and Risk
Management Committee) are set up to scrutinise issues in greater detail, such as business planning
and strategies; corporate governance and risk management; and human resource matters including
industrial relations. The BOD appoints directors to head and be members of the three committees. The
Risk Management Commitiee also includes company executives who are not members of the Board of
Directors.

What processes are in place for the BOD to ensure conflicts of interest are
avoided?

If there is any conflict of interest, the individual BOD member who is in a position of conflict of interest
will not vote on the matter. Our annual report (now integrated with the Sustainability Report to form the
Corporate Accountability Report) includes annual financial statements which require directors 1o declare
whether they have any interest in the shares or debentures of the company or its related corporations in
accordance with the Singapore Financial Reporting Standards.

Qur tender award process for the procurement of products or services include procedures that require
members of the Board of Directors to declare whether they have an interest in the suppliers or service
providers recommended for award.

Is there a process for determining the qualifications and expertise of the
BOD members guiding PowerSeraya’s strategy on economic, environmen-

tal and social topics?

In sourcing and considering the candidates for appointment as directors to the Board, his gualifications
and experience will be scrutinised by our Shareholder in relation to the prevailing composition of the
Board expertise and the desired profile.

How does the BOD oversee PowerSeraya’s identification and management
of economic, environmental, and social performance, including relevant
risks and opportunities, and adherence or compliance with internationally
agreed standards, codes of conduct and principles?

The BOD meets at least quarterly for progress updates on the company’s performance which includes
economic, environmental as well as social aspects. They also provide advice and direction on issues fac-
ing PowerSeraya and how to move the company forward. From time to time, the BOD appoints external
consultants and auditors to augment expertise and provide advice on specific company matters. The
BOD is supported in this by two main committees: the Audit Committee looks into the risk management
aspects of the organisation with the Risk Management Committee which provides quarterly reports to
the Audit Committee; and the Human Resources and Remuneration Committee looks into HR policies
as well as the Code of Conduct.
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What internally developed statements of mission or values, codes of con-
duct, and principles do you have that are relevant to economic, environmen-

tal, and social performance, and what is the status of their implementation?
Our vision is to be the leading integrated energy company based in Singapore.

Our mission statement is: "At PowerSeraya, our relentless pursuit is to maximise value for our sharehold-
ers, customers, employees and the community.”

Our guiding business principles include:

a) Optimal development and utilisation of resources
b) Sound environmental practices

¢) Product/service differentiation

d) Creative and vibrant workforce

Qur core values are “Venture, Innovation, Best Practices, Respect, Accountability, Nurture and Teamwaork”
(VIBRANT for short)

QOur Code of Conduct covers areas such as fraud which is covered in detail under Fraud Risk Manage-
ment Policy, Section 4.2.3. Our Code of Ethics covers areas such as responsibility of maintaining a safe
workplace and whistle-blowing.

Each employee has access to a copy of the Employee Handbook which covers the Code of Ethics, Code
of Conduct and Employee Welfare, The corporate website and intranet also communicate these corporate
messages.
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4.2 Risk Management

4.2.1 Introduction

Risk Management for Organisational Value Optimisation

At PowerSeraya, we view risk management as a necessary and important function that serves to protect
the enterprise value of the company. Taking a precautionary approach through the various risk manage-
ment practices within the company helps to mitigate the multiple risks that the company encounters
in its daily operations. Due to the interdependences of the business operations of PowerSeraya and
its subsidiaries, prudent risk management aims to minimise the risk impacts that affects the business
ecosystemn of the PowerSeraya Group. This thus contributes towards the optimisation of the value chain
across the various business entities.

We have a corporate risk management framewaork that covers the different types of enterprise risk. Un-
der this framework, enterprise risks are identified by the respective business units and significant risks
are documented in the Corporate Risk Register and monitored. The business risks are expected to
identify mitigation measures to address the enterprise risks and implement them accordingly in efforts
to reduce the risk exposure. We employ risk monitoring and reporting systems to enable early detection
and escalation of risks to various levels for review to take appropriate actions. Diagram 5.1 shows the
risk-management cycle practiced in the company.

Reporting - Monitoring -

Dhiagram 4 2. (8) RisSk-management cye/e

PowerSeraya has put in place a structure to manage the risks of the entire company. The committees
and their respective roles in risk management are shown in Diagram 4.2 (b). The Board of Directors is
responsible for determining the type and level of risks that the Company undertakes in achieving its cor-
porate objectives. This is achieved through the enterprise-wide corporate risk statements, framework
and policies approved by the Board. Because of a changing business environment and for company
strategy, a risk posture statement defining the Group's risk appetite is submitted and approved by the
Board of Directors on an annual basis.

The Board has delegated the authority to formulate, review and approve non-major policies on monitor-
ing and managing risk exposures to the Risk Management Committee. The Risk Management Com-
mittee (RMC) will propose and recommend major risk-related policy decisions to the Board for approval.
The committee meets regularly to deliberate on enterprise-wide risk matters,

During FY2010/2011, the committee was chaired by the Chief Executive Officer. Members inclucle Ex-
ecutive Director, Chief Risk Officer, Head of Legal & Regulatory Affairs and Enterprise Risk Manager.
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Reporting to the RMUC are the various risk owners who are responsible for managing and monitoring risks
of their business units. The Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Department collates all reports from the
risk owners on a guarterly basis. The ERM Department primarily manages the overall market risk of the
company and works with the different risk owners to manage other types of enterprise risks that include
{but are not limited to) the following:

*  Market Risk »  (Credit Risk
* Liquidity Risk * Regulatory and Legal Risk
* Project Risk * Health and Safety Risk
*  QOperational Risk * Integrity Risk
L]

Human Capital Risk Business Continuity Risk

Board of Directors

Audit Committee
(Internal Controls,
Financial Reporting
Compliance)

Enterprise Risk Risk Management Risk Office headed
Management Dept Committee by Chief Risk Officer

Risk Owner, Risk Owner, Risk Owner,

Diagram 4.2(b): Organisational structure for risk managernent

How Risk Management Has Protected Our Enterprise Value

During Uncertain Economic Times

When faced with economic uncertainties, the company's risk exposure increases. Events causing eco-
nomic uncertainties such as the 2008 financial crisis may cause strong fluctuations in oil prices. Taking
into account the close correlation between oil prices and our business operations, the company’s profit-
ability can be impacted adversely if there are no established risk management systems,

The company is able to mitigate the impact of oil price volatility by having a robust risk management
gystemn in place. The exposure to the company from the oil price fluctuations is limited by setting a
minimum hedge ratio and capping the open positions of our oil traders. The company's Enterprise Risk
Management (ERM) team provides daily reports on the day's open positions and mark-to-market profit
and loss numbers to the management who then makes informed decisions to deal with the company's
risk exposure. A system of alerts enables the management to be notified of any trading positions that
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have exceeded a certain allowable threshold and this triggers precautionary measures to be taken to
limit losses. The limits and alert triggers are reviewed by ERM at least annually based on the company's
strategy, risk appetite as well as market conditions,

Besides strong oil fluctuations, another risk that may surface during economic uncertain times is the
credibility of counterparties, During the 2008 financial crisis and on-going European sovereign debt
crisis, a number of counterparties’ credit limits were frozen after ERM’s review. Besides a few reputable
counterparties which ERM deems as still being financially strong and sound to trade with, PowerSeraya
turns to the Exchange (ICE, SGX and NYMX) to complete its hedging requirement which has virtually no
credit risk.
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4.2.2 Managing Emergencies & Crises

PowerSeraya adopts a three-level response framework for handling emergencies. As a responsible com-
pany, we are committed to safeguarding the well-being of our employees, contractors, customers, the
public and the environment. Having an established emergency response framework better equips the
organisation to deal with emergencies (Level 1 and 2) which may potentially escalate into a crisis situation
(Level 3).

Three-Level Response Framework for Handling Emergencies
» Level 1 - The Site Incident Response Team responds and controls minor incidents.

* Level 2 - The Emergency Management Team handles more serious operational incidents with
wider potential implications.

» Level 3 - The Crisis Management Team, which is responsible for the protection of the
company’s value and image, deals with strategic issues and high-level shareholder communica-
tions during an escalated incident.

Within the organisation, ten major incidents have been identified that may potentially escalate to a crisis
(below). Each major incident has a corresponding response/contingency plan to deal with the associ-
ated emergency situation when it occurs. These plans are reviewed regularly to ensure they are updated
against changes in business operations and regulations.

Major Incidents Response/Contingency Plans
Generation Failure Major System Failure

Transmission Switching Failure Major System Failure

Fire and Explosion Plant On-Site Emergency Response Plan
Safety Hazards On-Site Emergency Response Plan
Environment Incidents (Oil Spill) Oil Spill Plan

Fire - HarbourFront Office Fire Emergency Plan for HarbourFront Towers
System/IT/Communications issues |IT Disaster Recovery Plan

Infringement of Port Security Port Facilities Security Plan

Contagious Disease Business Continuity Plan (Pandemic Flu)
Fuel Supply Disruption Natural Gas Disruption - SOP

Diagram 4.2 (c): Ten major operalional incidents and response/contingency pians



4.2.3 Managing Fraud Risk

The management of PowerSeraya recognises the significance and impact of fraud risks if these are not
well managed. The company has a Fraud Risk Management (FBM) framework which it views as important
in protecting the interests of shareholders, employees as well as other stakeholders who have dealings
with the company. The overall responsibility of implementing and overseeing the FRM framework lies with
the Fraud Control Officer (FCO), who reports directly to the Audit Committee.

In 2007, the Fraud Risk Management (FRM) Folicy was formalised and approved by senior management
and the Audit Committee. The FRM Policy summarises all the preventive, detective and resolution, and
reporting initiatives adopted by PowerSeraya and aims to:

= promote awareness of potential high fraud risk areas
* develop appropriate strategies and controls to minimise the risks of fraud and consequent losses.

At PowerSeraya, all business units are periodically analysed for fraud risks. Since the formulation of the
FRM Palicy in 2007, there have been no confirmed incidents of fraud arising from allegations received
and investigated. Fraud risk assessments are conducted on business processes which are identified for
internal audit based on universal risk assessment approach.

Complementing the FBM Paolicy are the Code of Ethics and the Code of Conduct. The former serves to
guide employees in making sound and ethical decisions while the latter aims to uphold the integrity and
image of the company through employee's diligence and due care in the discharge of their duties.

Fraud risk awareness workshops are also conducted periodically to help employees identify potential red
flags. In FY10/11, two fraud awareness workshops were conducted involving close to 25 employees.
New staffs are also educated on fraud risks through the orientation programmes organised for all new
hires. In FY10/11, 34 new employees attended the fraud risk awareness presentation conducted during
the orientation programme. The workshops covered topics like the fraud risk policy, potential activities
leading to fraud and the role that employees have on fraud detection. Employees are also encouraged
to report known or suspected incidences of malpractice in accordance with the Employee Handbook.
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4.3 Stakeholder Engagement & External Commitments

4.3.1 Introduction

Our interactions with our stakeholders, be it our business partners, our customers, our suppliers or the
community enable us to increase our financial capital, nurture our human capital and at the same time
provide us with the opportunities to enhance our social and environmental capital. Our stakeholders thus
include groups that directly or indirectly contribute to a healthy balance of the company’s economic, en-
vironmental or social performance.

PowerSeraya takes its direction from our Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Strategic Thrusts to iden-
tify and target our stakeholder engagements. The CSR Strategy was developed in consideration of the
challenges and cpportunities facing the company as well as our integrated energy strategy. These cover
five main areas, leading to the following stakeholders’ involvement as shown in the diagram below.

Investing in
Green Capabilities

(Shareholders,
Customers, Businass
Partners)

Incorporate
Greenhouse Gas
in Management

Build Strategic
Relationships

(Customers, NGOs, Practice
Government Agencles) Stﬂkﬁhﬂ[dﬂm (Employses,
: Shareholders,

n UL_“' CSR Customers)

Strategic Thrusts

Murture Human Grow with the
Capital Community

(Union, Employees - (Schools, Wider
Current & Fulure, Community)
Youths)

Diagram 4.3 Stakeholders Engagements driven by the & CSH Strategic Thrusts

In addition to the C5R Strategy driving our engagement with stakeholders, our economic performance is
driven by our vision and mission statement. These will involve the engagement of stakeholders such as
business partners, service providers for various economic related activities/initiatives.

Our engagement with the government agencies for environmental performance is in relation to compli-
ance to environmental laws and regulations. For raising environmental awareness and social work among
employees and the community, we work closely with the government agencies, NGOs and schools for
our CSH initiatives. For details on the CSR Strategy and how it is connected to our business, please go
to Section 3.2 : Strategic Profile.
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4.3.2 Stakeholder Engagement

The company builds its social and human capital through constructive stakeholder engagement. Pow-
erSeraya believes in on-going stakeholder engagement to keep abreast of the latest developments and
to communicate our views to all parties with whom we have interaction or interests in, Through the pro-
cess of interaction with our stakeholders, new ideas flow, new opportunities are found and innovation
takes place. Our stakeholder engagement allows us to gain input and feedback on our business, clarify
perceptions of our company and foster constructive relationships for the benefit of our business as well
as the community.

We engage our stakeholders in various ways ranging from formal meetings, dialogue sessions, customer
events and initiatives with the community. These are just some of the more specific ways in which Pow-
erSeraya engages its main stakeholders.

Shareholders, Management and Staff

The Board of Directors holds quarterly meetings with the senior management team to update themselves
on the progress of company performance, discuss and develop the business strategy, develop medium-
to long-term plans and provide advice on problems and challenges. Sustainability issues are discussed at
PowerSeraya management meetings as well as at the newly established YTL Group Sustainability Com-
mittee meetings (since 2011). The latter is chaired by YTL Corporation which wholly owns PowerSeraya
through YTL Power International.

In late 2010, the company conducted an Employee Opinion Survey to gather perceptions from staff about
how they felt about specific employee engagement factors and the company. Based on the survey find-
ings, at least 70% of the staff that participated in the survey agreed or strongly agreed that the organisa-
tion:

a ) Has co-workers that respect their thoughts and feelings
b) Is responsive to customer needs
¢) Recognises the need to balance the social, environmental and financial responsibilities

Building on the positive staff perceptions mentioned above and addressing the lowest-rated employee
engagement factors such as career opportunities as well as verbatim feedback given in the survey, the
company formed a taskforce comprising senior management team with the Human Resource depart-
ment, as the Secretariat, to recommend programmes and initiatives to better increase staff engage-
ment and enhance the company's value proposition to employees in the areas of People, Work, Total
Rewards, Company Practices Opportunities and Quality of Life, within the Hewitt's Model on employee
engagement.

Besides the quarterly staff management dialogue which is a means for the management to update staff
on the company’s performance, implementation of new initiatives as well as to gather staff feedback,
the company has also initiated several programmes to promote greater alignment with the company’s
direction and to also foster communication and engagement across all levels of staff.

a) Skip level meetings between CEO and managers.
b) Quarterly engagement sessions between senior management team and managers.
c) Quarterly engagement sessions between senior management team and executives.

Communities

PowerSeraya sees itself as being a part of the climate change solution and proactively engages the
community through environmental events organised, supported or participated in by the company. Our
engagement with the community includes nurturing young talents and also extends to meaningful causes
that benefit the disadvantaged in society.
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Throughout the years, we have involved the community in both environmental as well as social initia-
tives, For example, our joint initiative with our landlord on the *1 Degree Up Challenge’ is an annual event
aimed at getting office tenants to conserve energy by raising their office temperature by 1°C on World
Environment Day. Under the Corporate and Schools Partnership Program (CASP) administered by the
National Environment Agency of Singapore, the company has been able to engage our adopted school
Greenridge Secondary School to educate students on energy and climate change issues through the
Energy Learning Hub. In early 2011, the company formally adopted GROW (Goodwill Rehabilitation & Oc-
cupational Workshop) of the Spastic Children's’ Association of Singapore to reinforce our contribution to
the disadvantaged in society. The PowerSeraya Scholarship programme with the Nanyang Technological
University of Singapore since 2008, seeks to nurture talented undergraduate students.

Our support for community work also comes in the form of donations to NGOs that work to enhance
the lives of the socially marginalised or to provide care for the enwvironment. Details of our community
engagements can be found in Section 6.3.5: Engaging and Supporting Communities on Environmental
Sustainability, Section 7.2.5: Nurturing Youths and Section 7.3: Our Contributions to Society — Nurturing
and Caring for Communities.

Government Agencies and Non-Governmental Organisations (NGOs)

Our main engagement with the government bodies is our contact with the National Environment Agency
(NEA), the National Electricity Market, JTC, the Energy Market Company and the Energy Market Authority
(EMA). Be it a change in environmental regulations or an amendment to the electricity market rules, Pow-
erSeraya’s views are often consulted by the relevant government agencies prior to any new legislation or
regulation being implemented.

Besides government agencies, the company also engages with societies and NGOs such as the (Sin-
gapore Environment Council, the Singapore Compact, Waterways Watch Society and the Singapore
Polytechnic Environmental Club to collaborate on CSR activities that benefit the environment and society.)
In 2009 to 2011, we have been working closely with NEA and the South West Community Development
Council to develop and implement the Responsible Energy Advocates Programme (REAP) that reaches
out to students and the household community, Details of the BEAP can be found in Section 6.3.5: Engag-
ing and Supporting Communities on Environmental Sustainability.

Customers

Besides conducting regular surveys to gather feedback from customers on our products and services,
the company organises programmes to help customers understand their energy bills better and thus
empower them with the information required to conserve energy. The company also actively participates
in the Industry Feedback Forum organised by EMA where customer support service issues are raised
and deliberated upon. For example, a proposal to reduce the time taken to transfer a consumer from one
electricity retailer to another is one issue discussed in the feedback forum.

Throughout the year, the company organises several customer events to develop strong customer rela-
tionships, At such events, customers gain an insight into the challenges of the power generation business
and learn about energy conservation solutions. It is also through these events that PowerSeraya gath-
ers customer feedback informally, learn about their concerns and innovate our products to tailor to their
varied needs. Further details of what we do with our customers can be found in Section 7.4: Product
Responsibility.

Suppliers, Contractors

PowerSeraya has gradually been trying to introduce sustainability criteria in certain  products/services
being procured for the company. As the concept of sustainable procurement is relatively new to local sup-
pliers in Singapore, the challenge is to find common ground on the sustainable aspects of the products/
services the company is seeking to procure and what the suppliers are able to deliver. The Sustainability
Department actively participates in meetings or correspondences with suppliers/vendors to help them



understand the company’s requirements. It is through such engagements with the suppliers and the Pro-
curement Department that the Sustainability Department gaing an appreciation of the knowledge gaps as
well as the availability of goods/services with green or social features in the local market.

Safety is an important emphasis in the company. We recognise that the responsibility of safety does not
rest with the company alone but also with the contractors whom our employees work closely with for
the day-to-day operations and maintenance of the power plants. Throughout the year, the company will
involve contractors in a number of safety-themed initiatives such as the Annual Safety Week, the emer-
gency evacuation drill and regular safety programmes to achieve a high standard of safety performance
at the power plant. Details of these initiatives can be found in Section 7.1: Workplace Safety & Health.

Employees and their trade unions

PowerSeraya takes a highly consultative approach, engaging UPAGE to share information, discuss busi-
ness strategies and plans, taking into consideration each other's constraints, concerns and interests and
seeking win-win solutions. A close and productive working relationship exists between the management
of the company and UPAGE where both parties are committed to working together in a strategic alliance
to meet challenges, resolve issues and seize opportunities with a view to enhancing business competi-
tiveness and the well-being of employees. On average, UPAGE and the management meet four times
a year. Two of these meetings discuss bonus payout and salary increment for employees. In addition,
the Management will share with UPAGE the business plans and goals for the year during the start of the
financial year so that both parties are aligned. On an informal basis, these two parties also hold meetings
to discuss and resolve issues that may arise.

All employees of PowerSeraya and its subsidiaries have the freedom to join the UPAGE (Union of Power
and Gas Employees). There is also freedom for collective bargaining by UPAGE on matters concerning
employees. In FY10/11, about 51% of the workforce is covered by the collective agreement and about
73% of PowerSeraya’s workforce are UPAGE members,

In 2010, management and UPAGE held several meetings to discuss the terms and conditions of the new
Collective Agreement (CA) for period 1 July 2010 to 30 June 2013, A number of changes were made 1o
the new CA which resulted in several positive outcomes such as the re-employment palicy for older work-
ers beyond the official retirement age, expanded long service awards and the greater alignment between
variable bonus and the company's profitability for non-executive staff,

PowerSeraya's Re-employment Framework

The Collective Agreement (July 2010 to June 2013) sealed between PowerSeraya and the Union of
Power and Gas Employees (UPAGE) included a re-employment framework for older workers. In conclud-
ing the agreement, the company also became the first power generation company to formally adopt a
re-employment framework for mature workers beyond age 62. This is ahead of the re-employment legis-
lation intended for 2012, which aims to allow mature workers to stay economically productive.

Under the terms of Re-employment Framework, PowerSeraya employees beyond the age of 62 years are
eligible for re-employment, provided their performance is assessed to be ‘Good/Competent’ or above and
that they are medically fit to continue working. In general, employees whose past 3 years’ performance’s
average rating is 'Outstanding/Top’, they will enjoy the same monthly salary upon re-employment in the
same job. Those with lower performance ratings (based on past 3 year's average performance) will see
their monthly salary adjusted by up to 15% for the same job, subject to the mid-point of the salary scale.
Those whose salaries are below the mid-point of the salary scale will not be cut. For employees being
offered re-employment or re-deployed to another job, the new wage will take into account the value of
the job, the emplovee’s relevant experience and other attributes. This is in line with the company’s merit-
based remuneration philosophy and aligned to the tripartite guidelines on re-employement of older work-
ers. Refer to Section 7.2.3. on our labour practices. In FY10/11, 8 employees reaching 62 years of age
were offered re-employment by the company. All 8 employees accepted the offer.




AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Under the Collective Agreement, there is no mention of a minimum notice period regarding significant
operational changes. However, there is a mutual understanding on how significant matters (affecting
employees) are handled under the guidance of Singapore's unique tripartite industrial relations. The Sin-
gapore Government, the employees and unions work together to address the challenges of maintaining a
productive workforce in today’s competitive, globalised world for the mutual benefit of employers, work-
ers and society. Singapore’s industrial relations system is governed by the values of tripartism and this has
worked well for the country for many decades.
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4.3.3 External Commitments

What externally developed economic, environmental, and social charters, principles or
other initiatives does PowerSeraya subscribe to or endorse?
PowerSeraya is a member of the Singapore Compact, which is a participant of the UN Global Compact.

PowerSeraya also subscribes to the principles of fair employment practices under the Tripartite Alliance
for Fair Employment Practices. (http://www.fairemployment.sg/)

What associations (such as industry associations) and/or national/international advocacy
organisations is PowerSeraya involved in, is on the governing bodies of committees of,
funds or views membership as strategic?

PowerSeraya's external commitments include the following:

a) Singapore Compact (Member)
b) Sustainable Energy Association of Singapore (Member)
¢) National Environment Agency — Corporate and Schools Partnership (CASP) Programme
d) Singapore Work Skills Qualification (WSQ)-our CEQ is Steering Committee member of the WSQ
&) Singapore National Employers Federation-our CEQ is a Council member
f) Singapore Business Federation (Member)
g) Singapore Manufacturers’ Federation (Member)
h) Gas Industry Structure Implementation Steering Committee (GISISC)
- our CEO represented the company in the GISISC till June 2009

Does the company share issues relating to sustainability with others?

Our CED has been an elected council member of the Singapore Mational Employers Federation (SNEF)
since 23 September 2010. In this role, he can channel his inputs towards SNEF's mission of achieving
excellence in employment practices to enhance worker productivity and competitiveness as well as the
quality of employees' worklife. Our CEO brings with him many years of experience in dealing with the
Union of Power & Gas Employees (UPAGE) on labour issues, and thus contributes towards SMNEF's role
of improving the existing tripartite partnership (government, employer and union) to enhance harmonious
industrial relations in Singapore.

The company also assigns representatives to sit in working committees led by government-linked agen-
cies such as the WSQ for skills upgrading and the GISISC to shape the country's gas industry. From time
to time, the company participates in forums to share and discuss views on sustainability. For example,
our CEOC was invited by the Nanyang Business School to share his views on energy and sustainability to
the 2011 MBA class at one of the Business Leadership Seminar Series. The company has also sent a
representative from the Sustainability Department to participate in the ACCA Roundtable Dialogue ses-
gions on sustainability reporting in 2010 and 2011.
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5.1 Financial Highlights

Operating Revenue

The group's operating revenue for the year ended 30 June 2011 grew by S$828 million, a 21.5% in-
crease over FY09/10 (annualised) to S$$4.7 billion, contributed mainly by higher electricity, steam and oil
trading revenue.

Generation Units Sold was 11,987 GWh, 8.4% higher than FY09/10 (annualised). The growth in Genera-
tion Units Sold is higher than the growth in system demand, which was a growth of 3.6% from FY09/10
{annualised).

Retail Volume was higher at 7,714 GWh compared with FY08/10 (annualised) of 7,658 GWh.

FY2010/2011 FY2009/2010
(12-month period) | (Annualised)
Revenue (S$ mil) 4 677 3,849
Return on Equity (%) 30.2% 20.7%
Earnings Per Share (S$) 0.42 0.30
Net Profit after Tax (S$ mil) 374.2 269.4
Return on Assets (%) 12.8% 10.3%
Generation Units Sold (GWh) 11,087 11,080
Retail Volume (GWh)
Retail Volume (GWh) 7,714 7,658
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Diagram 5.1 (b): Net Profit After Tax (S$ mil)
Profitability
The group's net profit after tax for the year ended 30 June 2011 was $374.2 million or $105 million higher
than FY09/10 (annualised). This was mainly due to higher generation units sold and the sale of electricity
to Malaysia.



Return on Equity & Earnings Per Share . _

The Group's Return on Equity (ROE) for the year was 30.2% and Earnings Per Share (EPS) amounted to
42 cents for the year or 12 cents higher than FY09/10 (annualised). The increase is in line with the higher
profits after tax for the Group.

Return on Equity was 30.2% in FY10/11. This represented an increase of 9.5% over FY09/10 (annualised)
of 20.7%.
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I Competitors

Market Share Retail Contestable Switch Load: Market Share Generation:
PowerSeraya = 28 3% Competitors = 71.7% PowerSeraya = 28% Competitors = 72%



5.2 Financial Report

The financial statements of the company can be found in Appendix C.



V * FINANCIAL AND
ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE

5.3 Infrastructure Investments and Energy Planning

Planning long-term infrastructure investments takes into account the regulated electricity market, com-
mercial considerations as well as envircnmental legislation/regulation. Because of the huge capital and
construction costs involved, it is important that prudent decisions be made on infrastructure invest-
ments as it may have significant financial implications on the company as well as the community. Poorly
planned and executed infrastructure investments may result in poor BOI (Return On Investments) and
environmental pollution, thus affecting nearby communities.

When planning for new infrastructure projects or re-modification of existing infrastructure, the company
would consider the different technologies available, fuel types as well as other factors such as financing
requirements, fuel supply, construction lead time, the site, as well as environmental aspects (compliance
and non-compliance). One important aspect to be taking into account is the demand for new genera-
tion capacity in Singapore which is driven by peak demand in the country. As infrastructure projects are
long-term in nature, a fair share of uncertainties is involved when forecasting future electricity demand.

Factors affecting future electricity peak demand include projected electricity prices, macro-economics,
evolution of changing technologies and their likely market adoption as well as cost of competing fuels
(e.g. LNG and biomass). All these factors can have a substantial effect on consumer electricity usage
and presents uncertainties for the planning of any infrastructure. The company takes into account
these uncertainties by first identifying the assumptions that might affect future electricity demand. This
is followed by a sensitivity analysis on different load forecast scenarios. Projections of future electric-
ity demand (which tracks Singapore's GDP and population growth) from publications released by the
Energy Market Authority Singapore, is often used as a reference. Besides looking at demand, the com-
pany would also consider the supply side of the equation by performing capacity planning. In this, the
company reviews EMA's projected reserve margin® and evaluate the likelihood and schedule of all other
gencos' indicative new generation plants that is coming on stream in the coming years.

Once the demand and supply considerations are taken into account and the plant technology is de-
termined, the securitisation of fuel supply through long-term supply contract will proceed. Throughout
the capacity planning process, PowerSeraya develops its physical generating asset mix by focusing
on adequacy in terms of reliability and total cost. In short, PowerSeraya's generation planning typically
begins with finding an optimum portfolio of generation assets adequate to meet the forecasted demand
at the required reliability level.

"This refers to the Minimum Reserve Margin which is the level set by EMA to adequately meet annual
peak demand taking into account scheduled maintenance as well as forced outages of the power gen-
grating assets in the country’s electricity grid system.

Stakeholders Involved in Energy Planning Process

At various stages of the energy and infrastructure planning process, other stakeholders (mainly govern-
ment agencies) are involved. The company's future plans for power plant investments would serve as
input to the yearly reviewed Ten Year Transmission Development Plan that is prepared by the SP Pow-
erAssets Ltd (i.e. Transmission Licensee) and subsequently approved by the Energy Market Authority of
Singapore (EMA). The company'’s projected LNG demand reguirements are also provided to PowerGas
(i.e. Gas Transporter) for the planning of gas pipeline networks that would deliver LNG from the state-
owned LNG terminal to the various gas offtake points. Under the Gas Network Code, shippers such as
PowerSeraya can submit applications to the Gas Transporter for capacity rights (i.e. rights to ship gas
from an injection point to an offtake point). The Gas Transporter will use these applications as inputs for
future gas pipeline developments that are subject to EMA's approval.
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5.4 Financial Assistance from Government
and Community Investments

Financial Assistance from Government

Owver the years, the company has benefited from financial assistance provided by the government. The
financial assistance comes mainly in the form of tax rebates/allowances or government grants on infra-
structure projects. In FY10/11, PowerSeraya received close to $2.0 million in government assistance
from tax allowances for the company's capital investment in the new 800MW co-generation plant (of-
ficially launched in Oct 2010).

At the height of the financial crisis in US, the Singapore government introduced a special, one-off ‘Jobs
Credit' scheme to save jobs by subsidising part of the employer’s wage bills. The Job Credit Scheme
which was implermented in the period March 2009 to June 2010, saw 5%4.3 billion paid out to 100,000
employers in six tranches. PowerSeraya benefitted from the Jobs Credit scheme and received a total of
$1.697 million in the period FY08/09 to FY09/10.

| Jobs Credit Scheme [l Tax Allowance (on capital expenditure)

$1,995,000

$973,000
$724,000

FYO08/09 FY09/10 FY10/11

Diagram 5.4(a) : Financial Assistance Received from Government

Community Investments
Decisions on community investments are largely governed by our two CSR focus areas, which are envi-
ronment and education, as well as contributions to social causes involving our key stakeholders such as
the union. From time to time, ad-hoc contributions are made to the community on social causes — apart
from those focused on education.

PowerSeraya regards the community as one of its important stakeholders and has organised several
activities to engage them on environmental issues. Our activities with the community are aimed at rais-
ing environmental awareness among the general public. It also presents opportunities for us to share
with the community about our business and how we deal with the environmental impacts of our plant
operations. Through our engagement with the community, they better understand how we deal with the
day-to-day environmental issues as well as our role in climate-change action. Our social investments are
largely channeled towards providing assistance to union members and their families, as well as to nurture
the talents of youths through our annual book prizes and our on-going scholarship programmes.



Our community investments (comprising cash or in-kind donations and sponsorships for environmental
and social causes, as well as expenditure on environmental and social programmes/initiatives that benefit
the community) rose by 20.5% in FY10/11 compared to the previous year. This rise is due to the increase
in donations to ad-hoc social causes (in addition to our regular social investments on a yearly basis) and
the company's investment in our sustainability programme called REAP (Responsible Energy Advocates
Programme). In May 2010, Seraya Energy, the retail arm of PowerSeraya, sponsored® a free concert fea-
turing Italian tenor Andrea Bocelli for an audience of 12,000 at the Singapore Botanic Gardens. This free
concert, called the YTL Concert of Celebration 2010, was open to the public and held to share the gift of
music with the local community.

*sponsorship amount is excluded from the community investment figures as it is a one-off event

Details on our community investments for the environment can be found in Section 6.3.5 Engaging and
Supporting Communities on Environmental Sustainability.

Details on our investments that nurture the community can be found in Section 7.2.5 Nurturing Youths.

Details on our community investments on social causes can be found in Section 7.3 Contributing to the
Society-Nurturing & Caring for Communities.
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Diagram 5.4(b) : Past 5 years Community Investments on Environmental and Social Initiatives
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5.5 Proportion of Local Spending and Contributions
to the Local Economy

PowerSeraya’s and its subsidiaries’ operations are based in Singapore. None of these companies
have overseas operations. A high proportion of the goods and services that is purchased by
PowerSeraya and its subsidiaries are from local suppliers based in Singapore even though the
organisation does not have a policy or common practice for preferring local-based suppliers.

Our procurement practices are based on 'best buy' principles (i.e. procuring 'value for money'
product and services). Supplier selection is based on price, lead time, service levels, payment
terms and quality (i.e. meets specifications, compliant with legislation including environmental
regulations). Prior to supplier selection, suppliers are required to declare whether they are certified
with recognised environmental systems/standards as such I1SO 14001 before they are granted
‘Approved Vendor' status.

Based on goods receipts for the five-year period FY06/07 to FY10/11, an estimated 93.1% of the pur-
chases are from local suppliers®. These figures highlight the company's significant amount of spending
that is being made to support local businesses in the supply chain and contributions made to the local
Economy.

With PowerSeraya's power generation operations based in Singapore (a country with no natural resourc-
es), it has to import oil and gas from other countries for its power generation business.

Based on Goods Receipt (Non-0il)

Year % Local % Overseas
FY06/07 89.8% 10.2%
FY07/08 94.1% 5.9%
FY08/09 95.4% 4.6%
FY09/10 96.6% 3.4%
Fy10/11 94.4% 5.6%

5-Year Average 94.1% 5.9%

* Local suppliers are those to which the purchase order is issued to a Singarean Company.
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5.6 Development and Impact of Infrastructure Investments
for Public Benefit

The company's last capital contribution (beyond the organisation’s own business) to the local economy
was through its S$170,000 investment (spread over FYO7/08 and FY08/09) to establish the Energy
Learning Hub (ELH) in Greenridge Secondary School. The ELH serves as a resource centre for students
to learn about energy and its association with climate change. It has a potential outreach covering 11,000
students, 770 teaching staff, and the larger Zhenghua community where Greenridge is located.
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5.7 Contributions Towards Employees’ Social Security

Required by law, working Singaporeans and their employers make monthly contributions to the Central
Provident Fund (CPF), a compulsory comprehensive savings plan for working Singaporeans and perma-
nent residents primarily to fund their retirement, healthcare and housing needs.

This CPF scheme is unlike other jurisdictions where the employee’s retirement funds are met by the or-
ganisation’s pension funds.

Every month, PowerSeraya makes contributions to its employees® CPF. The employer CPF contribution
rate, which is a percentage of their prevailing wages, varies according to age (from 6.5% to 16.0% as of
1 Sep 2011), as stipulated by the CPF Board. In FY10/11, the company’s contributions to its employees’
CPF totaled $$3.46 million, covering 98% of its workforce.

The Government makes changes to the CPF contribution rates from time to time. A recent adjustment
by the Government to help Singaporeans save more for their retirement and medical needs was the in-
crease in the employer CPF contribution rate implemented on 1 Sep 2011, 1 Mar 2011 and 1 Sep 2011
to bring it to 16%. Another change implemented on 1 Sep 2011 was an increase in the amount of salary
that attracted CPF contribution, from $4,500 to $5,000 per month, to keep pace with income growth in
recent years,

*Employee is any person (excluding foreigners with no PR sfatus in Singapore) who is employed in Singapore
and any Singaporean seaman who is employed by an employer under a contract of service or other agreement
entered into in Singapore.
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POWERSERAYA LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
For the financial year ended 30 June 2011

The directors present their report to the shareholder together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the financial year ended 30 June 2011 and the balance sheet
of the Company as at 30 June 2011,

Directors
The directors of the Company in office at the date of this report are as follows:

Tan Sri Data’ (Dr) Francis Yeoh Sack Ping
Dato' Yeoh Seok Hong

Dato' Yeoh Seok Kah

Mg Peng Wah

Edwin Harald Burchardt

Tan Choong Min

Arrangements to enable directors to acquire shares and debentures

Meither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to
any arrangement whose object was to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate, other than as disclosed under “Share options" in this report.

Directors’ interests in shares or debentures

According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, the interests in the shares or
debentures of the Company or its related corporations of the directors holding office at
the end of the financial year are disclosed as follows:

Holdings registered in name Holdings in which a director
of director or nomines is deemed to have an interest
At At At At
30.06.2011 30.06.2010 30.06.2011 30.06.2010

Intermediate holding corporation
= YTL Corporation Berhad #

{Mo. of ordinary shares of RMOD.10/RM0.50
each) ##
Edwin Harald Burchardt 1,281,120 256,224 .
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Directors’ interests in shares or debentures (continued)

Holdings registered in name Holdings in which a director
of director or nominge is deemed to have an injerest
At Al At At
30.06.2011 30.06.2010 30.06.2011 30.06.2010

Intermediate holding corporation
- ¥TL Power International Berhad #

(Mo, of ordinary shares of RM0.50 each)

Edwin Harald Burchardt 252,565 252 565 - -
Tan Choong Min 1,087,038 TB4 700 4 5B4 3450
{Mo. of warrants 2008/2018)

Edwin Harald Burchardt 26,100 26,100 - -
Tan Choong Min 177,848 255,186 - 1,125
(Share options — No_ of ordinary shares of

RMD.50 each)

Tan Choong Min 975,000 1,200,000 = -
Mg Peng Wah 1,200,000 1,200,000 - .

Related corporation
-¥TL Land & Development Berhad #

(Mo, of ordinary shares of RM0.50 each)
Edwin Harald Burchardt 0,000 60,000 - -

Related corporation
- YTL e-Selutions Berhad #

(Mo, of ordinary shares of RM0.10 each)
Tan Choong Min - - 3,000 3,000

#  Incorporated in Malaysia
## Share =pil exercize of every 1 existing ardinary shares of RM0 50 held into 5 shares of RMO. 10 aach was completed
in the fimancial year

The directors holding office at the end of the financial year, Tan Sri Dato’ (Dr) Francis
Yeoh Sock Ping, Dato’ Yeoh Seok Hong and Dato' Yeoh Seck Kah, are also directors
of the intermediate holding corporation, YTL Utilities (S) Pte. Limited. In compliance with
section 164 (3) of the Singapore Companies Act, their interest in the shares of the
Company and related corporations are shown in the Directors’ Report of the
intermediate holding corporation.

Directors’ contractual benefits

Since the end of the previous financial period, no director has received or become
entitled to receive a benefit by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related
corporation with the director or with a firm of which he is a member or with a company in
which he has a substantial financial interest, except as disclosed in the accompanying
financial statements and in this report and except that certain directors have an
employment relationship with related corporations and have received remuneration in
that capacity.
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Share options

(a)

Employees' Share Option Scheme

At the Extracrdinary General Meeting of the intermediate holding corporation, YTL
Power International Berhad held on 16 October 2001, the shareholders of the
intermediate holding corporation approved an Employees’ Share Option Scheme
{'ESOS' or ‘Scheme’) for employees and Executive Directors of the intermediate
holding corporation and its subsidiaries who meet the criteria of eligibility for
participation in the ESOS.

As PowerSeraya Limited is a subsidiary of YTL Power International Berhad, the
employees of PowerSeraya Limited and its subsidiaries (the "Group™) are eligible
to participaie in the YTL Power International Berhad ‘ESOS'.

(i)

{ii)

(iii)

The maximum number of shares, which may be made available under the
Scheme, shall not exceed ten per cent (10%) of the total issued and paid
up share capital of YTL Power International Berhad at the time of offering
the option.

Any employees (including Executive Directors) of the Group shall be
eligible to participate in the Scheme if, as at the date of offer for an option
(‘Offer Date’) the employesa:

(a) has attained the age of eighteen (18) years;

(b} is employed by and on the payroll of a company within the Group;
and

(c) has been in the employment of the Group for a period of at least
one (1) year of continuous service prior to and up to the Offer Date,
including service during the probation period, and is confirmed in
service.

The ES05 Committee may, at its discretion, nominate any employee
(including Executive Directors) of the Group to be an eligible employee
despite the eligibility criteria under Clause 4.1(iii) of the bye-laws not being
met, at any time and from time to time.

The price payable for shares under the Scheme shall be based on the five
(5)-day weighted average market price of the underlying shares at the time
the option is granted, with a discount of not more than ten per cent (10%),
if deemed appropriate.
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Share options (continued)

(a)

Employees' Share Option Scheme (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Subject to Clause 14, the ESOS Committee may, at any time and from
time to time, before or after an option is granted, limit the exercise of the
option to a maximum number of new ordinary shares of YTL Power
International Berhad and/or such percentage of the total ordinary shares of
¥YTL Power International Berhad comprised in the oplion during such
period(s) within the option period and impose any other terms andlor
conditions deemed appropriate by the ESOS Committee in its sole
discretion including amendingfvarying any terms and conditions imposed
earlier, Notwithstanding the above, and subject to Clauses 11 and 12, the
option can only be exercised by the grantee three (3) years afler the Offer
Date, by notice in writing to YTL Power International Berhad, provided
however that the ESOS Committee may at its discretion or upon the
request in writing by the grantee allow the option to be exercised at any
earlier or other period. In the case of PowerSeraya Limited Group, the
option can be exercised by the grantee two (2) years after the Offer Date.

The grantee shall be prohibited from disposing of the ordinary shares of
¥TL Power International Berhad so allotted to him for a period of twelve
(12) months from the date on which the option is exercised. However, the
ESOS Commiitee may at its discretion or upon request in writing by the
grantee allow the disposal of such ordinary shares of YTL Power
International Berhad at any earlier or other period.

The person to whom the option has been granted has no right fo
participate by virtue of the option in any share of any other company.

On 1 July 2009, the intermediate holding corporation granted options to
subscribe for 22,600,000 ordinary shares in the intermediate holding
corporation at an exercise price of RM 1.87 per share ("2009 options™).
The 2009 Options are exercisable from 1 July 2011 and will expire on 29
November 2011, The total fair value of the 2009 Options granted was
estimated to be $866,000 (2010: $1,103200) using the Trinomial
Valuation Model.

Details of the options granted to an executive director of the Company are
as follows:

Aggregale Aggragate
Granled in granted since  exercised since Aggregate
financial commencement commencement  outstanding
year ended of scheme to of scheme to as at
Mame of directior 30 June 2011 30.June 2011 30 June 2011 30 June 2011
Mg Peng Wah - 1,200,000 - 1,200,000
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Share options (continued)

{b) Share options outstanding

The number of unissued ordinary shares of the intermediate holding corporation
under option in relation to the ESOS, outstanding at the end of the financial year
was as follows:

Mo of unissuad

ordinary shares
under aplion
at 30.05.2011 Exercise price Exercise perind
200% Options 19,555,000 R 187 1.07.2011 = 29.11.2011

Independent Auditor

The independent auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, has expressed its willingness to
accept re-appointment.

On behalf of the directors

IK{IJ&LL‘F’

YEDH SEE 5 NG PENG WAH
Director Diractor

21 September 2011
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In the opinion of the directors,

{a) the balance sheet of the Company and the consolidated financial statements of
the Group as set out on pages 8 to 68 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 30 June 2011
and of the results of the business, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group
for the financial year then ended; and

{b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the
Company will be able fo pay its debis as and when they fall due.

On behalf of the directors

NG/ j&‘““j“‘;"’”
-
— _J"f
YE NG PENG WAH
Director Director

21 September 2011




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF
POWERSERAYA LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of PowerSeraya Limited (the "Company”) and
its subsidiaries {the "Group”) set out on pages B to 88, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet
of the Group and the balance sheet of the Company as at 30 June 2011, the consolidated income
staternent, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consclidated statement of cash flows of the Group for the financial year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatery information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statemants

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act (the "Act”) and Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls
sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from
unauthonsed use or disposition, that transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as
necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair profit and loss accounts and balance sheets and to
maintain accountability of assets,

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility 15 to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounis and disclosures in
the financial staterments. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
emmor, In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intermal contrals relevant to the entity’s
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinjon on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the balance sheet of the
Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Act and Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the

Company as at 30 June 2011, and the results, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group for the
financial year ended on that date.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by

those subsidiaries incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors, have been properly kept in
accordance with the provisions of the Act.

| Frabdousn Gope CLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Pubtic Accountants and Certified Public Accountanis

Singapore, 21 September 2011
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Sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Other gains - net

Expenses

- Distribution and marketing
- Administrative

- Finance

- Other

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

Net profit

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Mote

oo o 3

The Group
Financial
Financial period from
year ended 1 Aprl 2009
30 June to 30 June
2011 2010
£'000 000
4,677,076 4 811,641
. (4,177,222)  (4,368,172)
499,854 442 469
21,711 56,724
(1,629) (7,990)
(35,893) (43,135)
(16,364) (18,714
(18,703) (22,341)
448,976 407,013
(74,779) {70,257
374197 336,756
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The Group
Financial
Financial period from
year ended 1 April 2009
30 June to 30 June
2011 2010
$'000 F000
Met profit 374197 336,756
Cash flow hedges
- fair value gains o e 22B13
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 37,694 - 22613
Total comprehensive income 411,891 359,369

fﬁe_ accompanying noles form an mf;gra_n'_;:varf_t;-f these financial sfateméﬁfk. I
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BALANCE SHEETS
As al 30 June 2011

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Loan receivables

Darivative financial instruments
Inventories

Income tax recoverable

Other current assets

Non-current assets

Loan receivables

Derivative financial instruments
Investments in subsidianies
Praperty, plant and equipment
Other non-cument assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Derivative financial instruments
Current income tax liabilities
Bonds

Borrowings

Deferred income

Non-current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Derivative financial instruments
Bomowings

Deferred income tax liabilities
Deferred income

Total liabilities
WET ASSETS

EQUITY

Share capital
Capital reserve
Hedging resenve
Retained profits
Total equity

Mote

12
13
16
17
18

19
13

(b)
20
71
23

19
13
21
22
23

24
24(b)
25

The Group The Company
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 Juns
2011 2010 2011 2010
5000 000 000 5000
288,058 323,649 232,660 314 064
483,279 396 485 270,852 156,252
- 2 - 2
39,022 15,100 39,145 15,109
162,316 211,576 161,490 203,711
- - - 105
26473 20,064 25,709 19,503
999,148 966,885 729,896 708,746
572,450 520,627 584,265 532 442
1.062 725 1,062 725
- . 5,400 5,400
1,357,655 1,385,700 1,357 448 1,384 855
17,181 25844 17,181 25,844
1,948,348 1,832,896 1,965,356 1,049,366
2,947,496 2,858,781 2,695,252 2,658,112
448,583 426,971 259,980 320,61
29,266 28,968 29 418 30,124
52,578 10,162 42,499 -
- 350,000 - 350,000
375,000 - 375,000 -
1,975 1,734 1,975 1,734
907,402 818,835 708872 702,489
8,557 9,448 . ;
8,133 7,231 8,133 723
725,000 450,000 725,000 450,000
185,363 166,909 185,340 166,797
43,885 40093 43885 40,083
870,938 673,681 962,358 564,121
1,878,340 1,492 516 1,671,230 1,366,610
1,069,156 1407 265 1,024,022 1,291,502
584,971 884,871 884,971 884,971
10,000 10,000 . .
11,714 (25,983) 11,714 (25,983)
162,474 538,277 127,340 432,514
1,069,156 1,407,265 1,024,022 1,291,502

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

10
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the financial year ended 30 June 2011

Group
Share
Share Capital  Hedging option  Retained Total
Mote  capital reserve TESEMVEe resenve profils equity
000 000 000 £'000 000 3000
2011
As at 1 July 2010 B84 971 10,000 {25 983) - B3BZTT 1,407 265
Employes Share Option
Scheme
- Walue of employes
Senices 24 - - - BBE - 866
- Recharges by

intermediate holding
corparation on fair

value of share options 24 - - - (B66) - {B66)
Total comprehensive

income for the

financial year - - 37.684 - 374197 411,801
Dividends 26 - - - - {750,000} (750,000)
As at 30 June 2011 884,971 10,000 11,711 - 182,474 1,069,156
2010
As at 1 April 2009 B84 971 10,000 (48,596) - 351521 1,197 898
Employee Share Option

Scheme
- Value of employee

sernvices 24 - - - 1,013 - 1,013
- Recharges by

intermediate holding

corporation on fair

value of share options 24 - - - (1,013) - (1,013)
Total comprehensive

income for the

financial period - - 22813 - 336756 350380
Dividends 26 - - - - (150,000) (150,000
As at 30 June 2010 _ BB4,971 10,000  (25983) - 538277 1,407.265

The accompanying noles form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the financial year ended 30 June 2011

Financial
Financial period from
year ended 1 April 2009
30 June to 30 June
Mote 2011 2010
£'000 000
Cash flows from operating activities
Met profit 374197 336,756
Adiusiments for;
Income tax expense 74,779 70,257
Depreciation of property, plani and eguipment 136,306 104,327
Inlerest income (2,311) (2,796)
Interast expense 16,364 168,714
Allowance for spares inventory obsolescence 1,445 2,749
(Write-back ofifallowance for impairment of tfrade receivables {257) 257
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) of fugl inventory to
net realisable value 2,118 {70,280)
Met lossf{gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 593 (&)
Unrealised loss/{gain) on derivative contracts 985 (1,535)
Amortisation of deferred income relating to investment allowance {1,995) (275)
Unrealised loss on foreign exchange differences 9,548 7.249
Share option expense BEE 1,013
Mat fair value (gainsifosses on inventories {60) 62
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 612,578 466,400
Change in operating assets and liabiliies
Trade and other receivables (67,915) (106, 842)
Inventories 45,757 106,161
Trade and other payables 21,375 200,870
Net amount due from other related corporations {1,072} {1,003)
Receipt from staff loans 2 4
Cash generated from operations 616,725 665,480
Income tax (paidirefund (7,B81) 22,400
Interest income received 473 1.4583
Net cash provided by operating activities 609,323 689373
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment T 1.111
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (114,345) (283 683)
Met cash used in investing activities (114,338) _(282,572)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid (750,000) {150,000)
Loan to immediate holding corporation (51,151) {319,572)
Loan to intermediate holding corporation (672) {1,055}
Interest paid (19,919) (14,733)
Proceeds from borrowings 650,000 170,000
Repaymeni of borrowings - (13,000)
Repayment of bonds (350,000) -
Net cash used by financing activities _(521,742) {328,360)
Net (decrease)fincrease in cash and cash equivalents (26,757) 78,441
Effects of currency transiation on cash and cash equivalents (8,834) (3,2300
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year/period 10 323,649 248,438
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year/period 10 288,058 323 840

The accompanying nuféé.;fafﬁ;;rr..integmf part of these financial statements.
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POWERSERAYA LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 30 June 2011

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying financial statements.

2.1

General information

PowerSeraya Limited (the "Company”) and ils subsidiaries (the “Group") are
incorporated and domiciled in Singapore. The address of the Company's
registered office is 1 HarbourFront Place #17-01, HarbourFront Tower One,
Singapore 098633,

The principal activities of the Group are those relating to the full value chain
involved in the generation of electricity. This includes the trading of fuel related
derivative instruments, tank leasing aclivities and sale of by-products from the
electricity generation process. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set
out in Note 16,

On 6 March 2009, the Company was acquired by YTL PowerSeraya Pte Limitad
(*YTL PowerSeraya") which has its accounting year end on 30 June. The
Group had changed its accounting year end from 31 March to 30 June
commencing from the financial period 1 April 2008 to 30 June 2010 to be
co-terminus with YTL PowerSeraya.

Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore
Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS"). The financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except as disclosed in the
accounting policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. It also requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates
and assumptions. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 3,

Interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in current
financial year

On 1 July 2010, the Group adopted the new or amended FRS and Interpretations
to FRS ("INT FRS") that are mandatory for application from that date. Changes to
the Group's accounting policies have been made as required, in accordance with
the transitional provisions in the respective FRS and INT FRS.

13



POWERSERAYA LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
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2.1

22

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of preparation {continued)

Interpretfations and amendments to published standards effective in current
financial year (continued)

The following is the new or revised FRS that is relevant to the Group:

Amendments to FRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement -
Eligible Hedged Items (effective for annual years beginning on or after 1 July
2010). This amendment clarifies how the principles that determine whether a
hedged risk or portion of cash flows is eligible for designation should be applied in
particular situations.

The adoption of this amended FRS did not result in substantial changes to the
Group's accounting policies and had no material effect on the amounts reported
for the current financial year or prier financial period.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for
the sale of electricity, physical fuel oil and steam in the ordinary course of the
Group's activities and the eaming of interest income on invested funds, Revenue
is presented, net of goods and services tax and after eliminating sales within the
Group.

The Group recegnises revenue when the amount of revenue and related cost can
be reliably measured, when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow ta
the entity and when the specific criteria for each of the Group's activities are met
as follows:
{a) Sale of electricity
Revenue is recognised upon delivery of electricity.
(b} Sale of physical fuel oil
Revenue is recognised when the risks and rewards of ownership of the oil
have been passed to the customers which occurs when the oil has been
delivered and the coliectability of the related receivable is reasonably
assured.
{c) Sale of steam

Revenue is recognised upon delivery of steam.

14
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the ﬁnanc:‘ar_ year ended 30 June 2011

2,

2.2

2.3

2.4

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
{(d) Interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

Group accounting
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has power to govern the financial
and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from ils activities, generally
accompanied by a shareholding giving rise to a majority of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another
entity. Subsidiaries are consoclidated from the date an which control is transferred
to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date on which control ceases.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on firansactions between group entities are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated but are considered an impairment indicator
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary for consistency with the policies adopted by the Group. Please
refer to Note 2.6 for the Company's accounting policy on investments in
subsidiaries.

Property, plant and equipment
{a) Measurement

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost
and subsequently camied at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment initially recognised
includes its purchase price and any cost that is directly attributable to
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Cost also
includes borrowing costs incurred for property, plant and equipment under
construction. The projected cost of dismantlement, removal or restoration
is also recognised as part of the property, plant and equipment if the
obligation for the dismantlement, removal or restoration is incurred as a
consequence of acquiring or using the asset. Cost also includes any fair
value gains or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency
purchases of property, plant and equipment that are transferred from the
hedging reserve.

15
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 30 June 2011

2.

2.4

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(b}

(c)

(d)

Depreciation

Construction-in-progress is not depreciated. Depreciation of other items of
property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their depreciable amounts over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Useful lives
Leasehold land lease term ranging from 18 to 30 years
Leasehold buildings 18 to 25 years
Plant and machinary 3to 25 years
Other fixed assets 3to 5 years

The residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation method of
property, plant and equipment are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate,
at each balance sheet date. The effects of any revision are recognised in
profit or loss when the changes arise.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment that has
already been recognised is added to the carrying amount of the asset only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other repair and maintenance expense is recognised in profit or loss
when incurred.

Major overhauls are performed at regular intervals for the Group's
generating plants. When each major overhaul is performed, its cost is
recognised in the carrying amount of the item of plant and equipment as a
replacement if the cost can be reliably measured and the overhaul will
provide future economic benefits to the Group. Any remaining camying
amount of the cost of the replaced items of the averhaul is derecognised.
The capitalised cost is depreciated over the period to the next scheduled
major overhaul.

Disposal
On disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment, the difference

between the net disposal proceeds and its carrying amount is recognised
in profit or loss.

16



POWERSERAYA LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 30 June 2011

2.5

2.6

2.7

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing cests are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest
method, except for those costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
construction of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
prepare for its intended use. These borrowing costs are capitalised as described
in Note 2.4{a).

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses (Note 2.7) in the Company's balance sheet. On disposal of investments in
subsidiaries, the difference between disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts
of the investments will be recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries

Property, plant and equipment and investments in subsidiaries are tested for
impairment whenever there is any objective evidence or indication that these
assets may be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of
the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual
asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. If this is the case, the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating units ("CGU") to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of the asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. The difference between the carrying amount and recoverable
amount is recognised as an impairment loss in profit or loss.

An impairment loss for an asset is reversed if, and only if, there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying amount of an asset is
increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
accumulated depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of impairment loss for an asset is recognised in profit or
loss.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets

(a)

Classificafion

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair
value through profit or loss and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. The
designation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
irrevocable.

(i

(i)

Financial assets, at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for
trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss at
inception. A financial asset is classified as held for trading if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term.
Financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss at
inception are those that are managed and their performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
Group investment strategy. Derivatives are also categorised as
held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in
this category are presented as current assets if they are either hald
for trading or are expected to be realised within 12 months after the
balance sheet date.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing
later than 12 months after the balance sheet date which are
presented as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are
presented as “trade and other receivables’, "loan receivables®,
“cash and cash equivalents” and "other current assets” on the
balance sheet, except for loan due from a subsidiary company
included within non-current “loan receivables”, which in substance,
forms part of the Company's net investment in the subsidiary
{("quasi-equity loan”), and has been accounted for in accordance
with Note 2.6.
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2. Significant accounting pelicies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Recognifion and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

On disposal of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying
amount and the sale proceeds is recognised in profit or loss,

Initial measurement

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, which are
recognised at fair value. Transaction costs for financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss are recognised immediately as expenses.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets, at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Changes in the fair values of the financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss including the effects of currency translation are recognised in profit
or loss when the changes arise.

impairment — Loans and receivables

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired
and recognises an allowance for impairment when such evidence exists.

Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy and default or significant delay in payments are objective
evidence that these financial assets are impaired.
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2,

2.8

2.9

2.10

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

(e)

Impairment - Loans and receivables (continued)

The carrying amount of these assets is reduced through the use of an
impairment allowance account which is calculated as the difference
between the carrying amount and the present vailue of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. When the
asset becomes uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account,
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are recognised
against the same line item in profit or loss.

The allowance for impairment loss account is reduced through profit or
loss in a subsequent period when the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the related decrease can be objectively measured. The
carrying amount of the asset previously impaired is increased to the extent
that the new carrying amount does not exceed the amortised cost, had no
impairment been recognised in prior periods.

Borrowings

Borrowings are presented as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settflements for at least 12 months after the balance
sheet date,

(a)

(b)

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value (net of transaction costs)
and subsequently carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised
in profit or loss over the peried of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Bonds

Bonds issued by the Group are recognised initially at fair value (net of
transaction costs incurred). Bonds are subsequently stated at amortised
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the tenure of the
bonds using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value, and subsequently
carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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2.1

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

Derivative financial instruments are used by the Group to manage exposure to
foreign exchange risk and fuel oil price risk. Derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value on the date the contract is entered into and are
subsequently carried at fair value. The method of recognising the resulting gain or
loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument,
and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. Derivatives are designated as fair
value through profit and loss at inceplion unless they are designated as hedges.

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between
hedaging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective
and strategies for undertaking various hedge transaclions. The Group also
documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, on
whether the derivatives designated as hedging instruments are highly effective in
offsetting changes in fair values cor cash flows of hedged items.

The carrying amount of a derivative designated as a hedge is presented as a non-
current asset or liability if the remaining expected life of the hedged item is more
than 12 months, and as a current asset or liability if the remaining expected life of
the hedged item is less than 12 months. The fair value of a trading derivative is
presented as a current asset or liability.

{a) Fuel oil swaps

The Group has entered into fuel oil swaps that are used to hedge forecast
fuel requirements. Such hedges are accounted for as cash flow hedges.

The fair value changes on the effective portion of fuel oil swaps designated
as cash flow hedges are recognised in the hedging reserve within equity
and transferred to the cost of inventory of fuels upon acquisition or cost of
sales upon consumption of natural gas. They are subsequently transferred
ta profit or loss in the pericds when the underlying fuels are consumed for
the production of electricity. The fair value changes on the ineffective
portion of fuel oil swaps are recognised immediately in profit or loss. When
a forecasted transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gains or losses
that were previously recognised in the hedging reserve are transferred to
profit or loss immediately.

(b) Currency forwards

The Group has entered into currency forwards that qualify as cash flow
hedges against forecasted payments for highly probable forecasted
purchases of fuels, property, plant and equipment and maintenance
contracts denominated in foreign currencies.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.11  Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Currency forwards (continued)

The fair value changes on the effective portion of the currency forwards
designated as cash flow hedges are recognised in the hedging reserve
within equity and transferred to the cost of inventory of fuels upon
acquisition or cost of sales upon consumption of natural gas; subsequently
to profit or loss in the perods when the underiying fuels are consumed or
where relevant in the cost of property, plant and equipment or the recorded
value of payments for maintenance contracts. The fair value changes on
the ineffective portion are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When a forecasted transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gains
and losses that were previously recognised in the hedging reserve are
transferred to profit or loss immediately.

Interest rate swaps

The Group has entered into interest rate swaps that are cash flow hedges
for the Group's exposure to interest rate risk on its borrowings. These
contracts entitle the Group to receive interest at floating rates on notional
principal amounts and oblige the Group to pay interest at fixed rates on the
same notional principal amounts, thus allowing the Group to raise
borrowings at floating rates and swap them into fixed rates,

The fair value changes on the effective portion of interest rates swaps
designated as cash flow hedges are recognised in the hedging reserve.
The fair value changes on the ineffective portion of interest rate swaps are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Derivatives that are not designated or do not qualify for hedge accounting

Fair value changes on these derivatives are recognised in profit or loss
when the changes arise,

2.12  Fair value estimation of financial assets and liabilities

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as
exchange-traded and over-the-counter derivatives) are based on quoted market
prices at the balance sheet date.
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212

213

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Fair value estimation of financial assets and liabilities {continued)

The fair values of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are
determined by using valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods
and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each
balance sheet date. Where appropriate, quoted market prices or dealer quotes for
similar instruments are used, Valuation techniques, such as estimated discounted
cash flows analyses, are also used to determine the fair values of the financial
instruments.

The fair values of forward currency contracts are determined using actively quoted
forward currency rates. The fair values of interest rate swaps are calculated as the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at actively guoted
interest rates.

The fair values of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost are estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rates
that are available to the Group for similar financial liabilities,

The fair values of current financial assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost
approximate their carrying amounts.

Leases
(a) When the Group is the lessee:

Leases of property, plant and equipment where substantially all risks and
rewards incidental to ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessors) are recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Contingent rents are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when
incurred.

{b) When the Group is the lessor

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group retains
substantially all risks and rewards incidental to ownership are classified as
operating leases. Rental income from operating leases (net of any
incentives aiven to lessees) is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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2.15

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
ib) When the Group is the lessor (continuad)

Initial direct costs incurred by the Group in negotiating and arranging
operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense in profit or loss over the lease term on the same
basis as the lease income.

Contingent rents are recognised as income in profit or loss when earned.
Inventories

inventories for plant consumption are camied at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted average cost formula and
comprises all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of inventories includes
transfers from the hedging reserve of any gains or losses on qualifying cash flow
hedges relating to purchases of inventories. Allowance for obsolete, slow-moving
or defective inventories is made where the carrying values exceed the recoverable
amounts. Fuel and diesel oil held for generation of electricity are not written down
below cost if the electricity generated is expected to obtain a gross margin at or
above cost. Caost for this purpose includes the applicable costs required to enable
the fuel and diesel oil to be used for the generation of electricity.

Inventories for oil trading are acquired with the purpose of selling in the near
future and generating a profit from fluctuations in price. These are at fair value
less costs to sell, with changes in fair value less cosis to sell recognised in profit
or loss in the period of change.

Income taxes

Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognised at the amount
expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance
sheet date,

Deferred income tax is recognised for all temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liabilty in a transaction that is not a business combination and
affects naither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.

A deferred income tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and tax losses can be utilised.
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215

216

217

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Income taxes (continued)

Deferred income tax is measured:

(i)

(if)

At the tax rates that are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled,
based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance sheet date; and

based on the tax consequence that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the balance sheet date, to recover or settle the
carrying amounts of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred income taxes are recognised as income or expenses in
profit or loss, except to the extent that the tax arises from a business combination
or a transaction which is recognised directly in equity.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is more likely than not that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount has been
reliably estimated.

Employee compensation

(a)

(b)

Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into separate entities such as the
Central Provident Fund on a mandatery, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid.

Employee leave enfitlernent

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue
to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.17 Employee compensation (continued)

(c)

Share-based compensation

The intermediate holding corporation, YTL Power International Berhad
operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation plan for employees
including the employees of the Group. As the Group is a subsidiary of YTL
Power International Berhad, the employees of the Group are eligible to
participate in YTL Power International Berhad's Employee Share Option
Scheme details of which are set out in Note 24 and “Share Options” in the
Directors' Report. The fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of share options is recognised as an expense with
a corresponding increase in the share option reserve over the vesting
period. The total amount to be expensed over the vesting pericd is
determined by reference fo the fair value of the share oplions granted and
the quantum of share options to be vested by vesting date on the date of
the grant. Non-market vesting conditions are included in the estimation of
the number of shares under options that are expected to become
exercisable on the vesting date. At each balance sheet date, YTL Power
International Berhad revises its estimates of the number of shares under
options that are expected to become exercisable on the vesting date and
recognises the impact of the revision of the estimates in profit or loss, with
a corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve over the remaining
vesting period.

2,18 Currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“functional currency”). The financial statements
are presented in Singapore dollars which is the functional currency of each
entity in the Group.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in a currency other than the functional currency (“foreign
currency”) are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Currency translation differences
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the
closing rates at the balance sheet date are recognised in profit or loss.
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2.19

2.20

2.21

2.22

2.23

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new ordinary shares are
deducted against the share capital account.

Dividends

Dividends to the Company’s shareholders are recognised when the dividends are
approved for payment.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents include cash on hand and deposits with financial institutions
which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised as a receivable at their fair value
when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group
will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants receivable are recognised as income over the period
necessary to match them with the related costs which they are intended to
compensate, on a systematic basis. Government grants relating to expenses are
offset against the related expenses.

Deferred income

Investment tax credits are tax benefits received only for investment in specific
qualifying assets. The tax benefits are recognised separately from the related
assets as deferred income and amortised over the estimated useful life of the
related assets (Note 2.4 (b)).
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(a)

(b)

Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reascnable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment

The Group's management reviews the appropriateness of the estimated useful
lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment at each balance sheet
date. Certain estimates regarding the useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment are made by the Group's management based on past
experience and these are in line with the industry. Changes in the expected usage
and market factors could impact the economic useful lives and residual values of
these assets. Where there is a material change in the useful lives and residual
values of these assets, such a change will impact the future depreciation charges
in the financial period in which the changes arise. The net book value of these
assets at 30 June 2011 was $1,357 655,000 (2010: $1,385,700,000).

Critical judgement in applying the entity’s accounting policies
Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group's management follows its accounting policy set out in Note 2.7 in
determining when property, plant and equipment are considerad impaired.
Impairment is recognised when events and circumstances indicate that these
assets may be impaired and the carrying amounts of these assets exceed the
recoverable amounts.

Prior to 1 July 2010, a single power plant was considered a CGU. With effect from
1 July 2010, to reflect the changes in the portfolio of power plants the Group
manages and align with industry practice, the lowest level of identifiable cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets has been revised and identified as the porticlio of power plants
as a whole.

In determining the recoverable amounts of these assets, certain estimates
regarding the future cash flows of these assets are made.

At 30 June 2011, if discount rates at that date had been 1% (2010: 1%)
higherflower, with all other variables held constant, there would be no change
{2010: no change) to the conclusion of the impairment evaluation and net profit.
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3. Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements (continued)

(B) Critical judgement in applying the enlity's accounting policies (continued)

Assessment of lower of cost and net realisable value for fuel oil inventory

The Group’s management is of the view that the reasonable net realisable value
benchmark for the fuel oil inventory should be determined against the electricity
prices derived from the generation of electricity by the fuel oil inventory. As at the
balance sheet date, the net realisable value test has in part been determined
based on the estimated price of generated electricity that will be achieved over the
peried in which the inventory will be utilised. The price that will eventually be
achieved will be subject to market conditions subsequent to the balance sheet
date. If the estimated price were highflower by 2% (2010: 2%), the allowance for
lower of cost and net realisable value would be lower/higher by $219,000 (2010:

575,000).
4, Revenue
The Group
Financial
Financial period from
year ended 1 April 2009
30 June to 30 June
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Sale of electricity 3,856,442 4 058 545
Sale of fuel oil 745,265 G986 863
Sale of steam 63,258 40,555
Other 12,111 13,678
4,677,076 4 811,641
5. Other gains - net
The Group
Financial
Financial perod from
year ended 1 April 2008
30 June te 30 June
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Interest income 2,311 2,798
Net (losses)/gains on disposal of property, plant and
equipment (593) B
Liguidated damages received 14,800 40,681
Other 5,193 13,239
21,711 56,724
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Other gains - net {continued)

Claims for iguidated damages were mainly made by the Company against a main
contractor during the financial year due to delays in construction of certain plant
and equipment. The damaged received were included to compensate for lost
earnings arising from the delays and hence are taken to the income statement.

Expenses by nature

Cost of fuel and materials

Write-down/(Reversal of write-down) of fuel oil inventory

to net realisable value
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Rental expense on operating leases
Allowance for spares inventory obsolescence

(Write-back of)/allowance for impairment of trade

receivables

Foreign exchange loss

Employee compensation {Mote 7)

Corporate sponsorship

Other expaenses

Total cost of sales, distnbution and marketing,
administrative and other expensas

Employee compensation

Wages and salaries

Employer's contribution to defined contribution
plans including Central Provident Fund

Other benefits

Share oplion expense (Note 24(c))

Government Grant = Jobs Credit Scheme

The Group
Financial
Financial period from
year ended 1 April 2009
30 June to 30 June
2011 2010
£'000 £'000
3,952,193 4,228 568
2,118 (70,280)
136,306 104,327
1,615 1.823
1,445 2,749
(257) 257
8,788 15,337
20,971 58,454
- 6,093
80268 95210
4,233,447 4,442 B3R
The GTOL-IE
Financial
Financial period from
year ended 1 April 2009
30 June to 30 June
2011 2010
£'000 3000
42,647 48 232
3,782 5,043
3,676 5,139
866 1,013
e (973)
50,971 28,454
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7. Employee compensation {continued})

The Jobs credit scheme is a cash grant introduced in the Singapore Budget 2009
to help businesses preserve jobs in the economic downtum. The amount an
employer received is dependent on the fulfilment of certain conditions under the

scheme.

8. Finance expense

Interest expense — bonds (Note 20)
Interest expense — bank borrowings

9. Income taxes

(a) Income tax expense

Tax expense atiributable to profit is made up of:
- Current income tax
- Daferred income tax

{Over)jfunder provision in preceding financial years
- Current income tax

Income tax expense

The Group
Financial
Financial period from
yearended 1 April 2009
30 June to 30 June
2011 2010
$°000 5000
3,754 18,406
12,610 308
16,364 18,714
The Group
Financial
Financial period from
year ended 1 April 2009
30 June to 30 June
201 2010
$'000 £'000
59106 24 438
17,631 46,497
76,737 70,835
o (1,958)  (678)
74,779 70,257
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(b)

Income taxes (continued)

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that
would arise using the Singapore standard rate of income tax as follows:

The Group
Financial
Financial period from
year ended 1 April 2009
30 June to 30 June
2011 2010
£'000 3000
Profit before income tax 448,976 407,013
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 17% (2010: 17%) 76,326 69,192
Effects of:
- expenses not deductible for tax purposes 691 1.160
- results under Global Traders Programme taxed at 10% 96 118
- income not subject to tax (339) {55}
- other (3 520
Tax charge 78,737 70,935
Movements in current income tax liabilities
The Group The Company
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2014 2010 2011 2010
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at beginning of
financial year/period 10,162 2,499 (105) {3,334}
Income tax (paid)/refund (7.881) 22,400 1,505 27 897
Tax payable on profit for the
current financial year/period 59,106 24 438 49,350 14,628
Less: Investment allowance
claim (6,851) (38,497) (6,850) (38,497)
Cwer provision in preceding
financial year/period (1,958  (678) (1,401) (799)
Balance at end of financial
year/period 52,578 10,162 42,499 (105)
Made up of:
Income tax recoverable - {105) - (105)
Current income tax liabilities 52,578 10267 42,499 -
52,578 10,162 42,499 (105)

During the financial year/period, the Group made adjustments in its current
income tax computation to take account of expenditure qualifying for investment

allowances amounting to $40,299 000 (2010: $85,039,000) (Note 22).
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10.

11.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and on hand
Short-term bank deposits

Trade and other receivables - current

Trade receivables
- non-related paries
- related companies
- accrued revenue

Less: Allowance for

impairment of receivables

- non-related parties
Trade receivables - net

Other receivables

Amaount due from subsidiaries

{(non-trade)

The Group The Company
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2011 2010 2011 2010
$'000 £'000 £'000 000
115,466 92,976 82,068 83,30
172,592 230673 150,592 230673
288,058 323,649 232,660 314 064
The Group The Company
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2011 2010 2011 2010
£'000 $'000 £'000 000
157,756 132,587 47,706 1.417
1,475 463 1475 463
318,882 252,744 191,621 133,006
478,123 385,794 240,802 134,885
- (257 = -
478,123 385,537 240,802 134 BEB
5,156 10,948 - 8,589
- = 30,080 12,777
483,279 396,485 270,892 156,252

As at 30 June 2011, the non-trade amount due from subsidiaries are unsecured,

repayable on demand, and bears interest of 0.961% (2010: 1.125%)

The exposure of trade and other receivables to currency risks and interest rate

risks is disclosed in Mote 28.
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12.

Loan receivables

The Group The Company
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2011 2010 2011 2010
$'000 5000 $'000 $'000
Loan to immediate holding
corporation iro,723 319,572 370,723 319,572
Loan to intermediate holding
corporation 201,727 201,055 201,727 201,055
Due from a subsidiary
corporation - - 11,815 11.815
Staff loans - 2 - 2
Total 572,450 520,629 584,265 532,444
Less: Current portion - 2 - 2
Non-current portion 572,450 520,627 584,265 532,442

The loan to the immediate holding corporation amounting to $370,723,000 (2010:
$319,572,000) is unsecured and receivable in full on 31 March 2013. The loan to
the intermediate holding corporation amounting to  $201,727,000 (2010
$201,055,000) is unsecured and receivable in full on 31 March 2013. The
immediate holding corporation and the intermediate holding corporation have the
discretion to repay the loans in whole or in part at any time before 31 March 2013.

The loans to the immediate holding corporation and the intermediate holding
corporation both bear interest at one-month SIBOR. The effective interest rate as
at 30 June 2011 was 0.3159 % (2010: 0.375%) per annum.

The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and is repayable
upon occurrence of certain events under the understanding between both parties.
However, the Company has assessed that settlement of the loan is neither
planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future as the loan is intended to be a
long-term source of additional capital for the subsidiary. As a result, management
considers the loan to be in substance part of the Company's net investment in the
subsidiary, and has stated the loan at cost in accordance with Note 2.6.

At the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts of loan receivables, excluding the
amount due from a subsidiary, approximated their fair value. The exposure of loan
receivables to currency risks and interest rate risks is disclosed in Note 28.




POWERSERAYA LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year anded 30 June 2017

13. Derivative financial instruments

The Group
30 June 30 June
201 2010
§'000 $'000

Balance at beginning of financial year - at fair value (21,365) (39.317)

Fair value gainsflosses)

Included in profit or loss: _ - o
- Reversal of fair values of derivatives recognised initially | 148 1.683
- Fair value of derivatives re-measured at year end [______!"1,133} - {148)

{985) 1,535

Included in hedging reserve: R B
- Reversal of fair values of derivatives recognised initially 21,217 arexd |
- Fair value of derivatives re-measured at year end 3,818 (21,217) i

25,035 16,417
Balance at end of financial year 2,685 (21,365)
Analysed as:
4—— The Group ———————
Contract/
notional Fair values
armount Assets Liabilities
5000 $'000 $'000

30 June 2011

Cash-flow hedging insfruments
- fuel oil swaps 468,988 32,000 2,520
- currency forwards 603,975 299 12,411
- interest rate swap 250,000 - 13,550

Non-hedging instruments
- fuel oil swaps 412,286 7,402 7,780
- currency forwards 211,778 383 1,138

Total 40,084 37,398

Less: Current portion 39,022 29,265

Non-current portion 1,062 8,133
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13. Derivative financial instruments (continued)

30 June 2010

Casgh-flow hedging instruments

- fuel il swaps 382 801 11,383 18,320

- currency forwards 567,966 3,548 5,363

- interest rate swap 250,000 - 12 466
Non-hedging instruments

- fuel il swaps 26,136 B20 1.050

- currency forwards 38,245 283 e
Taotal 15,834 37,109
Less: Current portion 15,109 29 968
Non-current portion 725 I

4—  The Company ———*

Contract/
notional ~__ Fairvales
amount Assets Liabilities
$'000 $'000 $'000
30 June 2011
Cash-flow hedging instruments
- fuel oil swaps 468,988 32,000 2520
- currency forwards 603,975 299 12,411
- interest rate swap 250,000 - 13,550
Non-hedging insiruments
- fuel il swaps 420,082 7,465 7,849
- currency forwards 249,599 443 1,221
40,207 37,551

Total
Less: Current portion 39,145 29418
Non-current portion 1,082 8,133
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13.

Derivative financial instruments (continued)

30 June 2010

Cash-flow hedging instruments

- fuel oil swaps 392 801 11,383 18,320
- currency forwards 567 066 3,548 5 363
- interest rate swap 250,000 - 12 466
Non-hedging instruments

- fuel oil swaps 29318 620 1,206
- currency forwards as245 P83 -
Total 15,834 37,3585
Less: Current portion 15,109 30,124
Non-current portion ) 725 7.231

Period when the cash flows on cash flow hedging instruments are expected fo
pceur or affect profit or loss:

(a)

(b)

Fuel oil swaps

Fuel oil swaps are entered into to hedge highly probable forecast fuel
purchases that are expected to occur at various dates within 24 months
from 30 June 2011. The fuel il swaps have maturity dates that match the
expected occurrence of these transactions. Gains and losses recognised
in the hedging reserve prior to the occurrence of these transactions are
transferred to the inventory of fuels upon acquisition or cost of sales upon
consumption of natural gas. The gains and losses relating to fuel oil
inventory are subsequently recognised in profit or loss upon consumption
of the underlying fuels.

Currency forwards

Currency forwards are entersd into to hedge highly probable forecast
transactions denominated in foreign currency expected to occur at various
dates within 36 months from 30 June 2011. The currency forwards have
maturity dates that match the expected occurrence of these transactions.
Gains and losses relating to highly probable forecast fuel purchases are
recognised in the hedging reserve prior to the occurrence of these
transactions and are transferred to the inventory of fuels upon acquisition
or cost of sales upon consumption of natural gas. The gains and losses
relating to fuel oil inventory are subsequently transferred to profit or loss
upon consumption of the underlying fuels.
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13.

14,

Derivative financial instruments (continued)

(b)

Currency forwards (continued)

For those currency forwards used to hedge highly probable forecast
foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment, the gains
and losses are included in the cost of the assets and recognised in profit or
loss over their estimated useful lives as part of depreciation expense.

For those currency forwards used to hedge highly probably forecast
foreign currency transactions for maintenance contracts, the gains and
losses are included in payments and recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the contracts.

{c) Interest rate swaps
Interest rate swaps are entered into to hedge floating semi-annual interest
payments on borrowings with a final repayment date on 28 August 2014,
Since the borrowings are obtained specifically for the construction of plant,
property and equipment, the interest on these borrowings along with the
net interest on the interest rate swaps are capitalised. The interest
payments are included in the cost of the assets and recognised in profit or
loss over their estimated useful lives as part of depreciation expense.
Inventories
The Group The Company
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2011 2010 2011 2010
£'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fuel - at cost 151,111 68,436 151,111 68.433
Fuel - in transit - 126,338 - 126,338
Less: Write-down to lower
of cost and net realisable
value (2439)  (321) (2439 (321)
148,672 1894 453 148,672 194,450
Fuel — at fair value 826 7.862 - -
Spare parts, accessories
and consurmable supplies
- at net realisable value 12,818 9.261 12818 9281
162,316 211,576 161,490 20371

The Group has recognised a write-down of $2,439,000 (2010: $321,000) for the
fuel oil inventory as the price of generated electricity has declined.
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15.

16.

Other current assets

The Group The Company
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2011 2010 2011 2010
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Deposits and other
receivables 6,000 2,812 5983 2,807
Advances to brokers 10,256 10,538 10,256 10,538
Prepayments and advances
to employees 10,217 6714 9470 _6.158
26,473 20,064 25,709 19,503
Investments in subsidiaries
The Company
30 June 30 June
2011 2010
$'000 $000
Unguoted equity investments at cost 5,400 5400
Details of the subsidiaries are as follows:
Country of
Mame of Company Principal activities  incorporalion Equity holding
30 June 30 June
2011 2010
% %,
Subsidiaries held by the Company
Seraya Energy and Investment Ple Lid Investmani holding Singapore 100 100
Seraya Energy Pte Lid Sale of electricity Singapore 100 100
Subsidiary held by Seraya Energy and
Investment Ple Ltd
PetroSeraya Pte Lid Oil trading and oil
tank leasing Singapore 100 100
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17.

Property, plant and equipment

Group - 30 June 2011

Cost

As at 1 .July 2010
Additions
Disposals

Trangior

A% al 30 June 2011

Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 July 2010
Depreciation charge
Disposals

Ag al 30 June 2011

Accumulated impairment

losses
As al 1 July 2010
Disposals
Asg at 30 June 2011

Het book value
As at 30 June 2011

Cost
As at 1 April 2009
Additions

Désposaks
Transfer

As at 30 June 2000

Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 April 2009
Depreciation change
Disposals

As at 30 June 2010

Accumulated impairment
losses

As at 1 April 2008

Disposals

As al 30 June 2010

Het book valua
As at 20 June 2010

Leasehold  Leasehold  Pland and Crher Constructicsn
tang bauyiitings i fioed asseds *  -in-progress Total
5000 000 000 5000 $000 £'000
136,705 153,106 3481223 16,430 1.548 3,820,012
- . 325 536 108000 108 861
(79) (44, 890) (2. 464) (47 433)
- 242 100470 j20 __[(MOo1482) 20 -
_13eF0s 193319 3,537,128 15,222 B.OGE  3.890.440
A7 144 BS A28 1,031,362 12 454 1,176,788
1,763 2,348 125 808 2,386 - 136,306
= (65) (e2652) {2400y - (45121
48 927 BE,108 1,118,518 12,420 1.267.973
63, 208 83,204 1,115,880 143 1,266,524
S = {1,712) - - (1.712)
B3Z0§ 3203 1118168 143 1264812 -
24,450 22,008 1,300,442 2,659 8,066 1,357,655
Leasehold  Leasehold  Plant and Other Construction
tand buildings Tl assets ©  cin Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 $'D00 §'000
136,866 158,969 2,670,170 15757 592,307 3604, 068
(161} . AEE 243 234,145 234 BO3
) - {0,735 (11} . {9,750
_ - 4,137 820,226 441 (B24004) -
136,705 183,106 3481223 16,430 1,548 3,828,012
44 809 83,004 837,043 9,065 1,075,011
2.235 2734 05,086 33092, - 104,327
- - (2.547) {3 = {2 550)
47,144 B5,E28 1,031,362 12,454 & 1,176,788
63,298 £3.203 1,125,877 143 . 1,272 611
. . {6,097} - - {6.067)
63 258 82203 1,116,880 143 s 1268528
26,263 24,075 1,229,881 3,832 1.548 1,385,700
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17. Property, plant and equipment {continued)

Leasahold  Leasehold Flant and Ot Consiraction

fand Bulidings  machingry fiued asests® in-progress  Tomal

$'000 $'000 £'000 000 £'000 000
Company = 30 June 2011
Cost
Az ozt 1 July 2010 138,705 193108 3,481,223 13.335 1548 IEZENT
Additons - . 325 536 108,000 108 861
Disposals - (79} (44, 800) {2.433) - (47 402)
Transfer - 262 100,470 720 (101,488 -
As at 30 June 2011 135,705 183,318 3,537,128 12,158 8066 3.BET376
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 July 2010 A7 144 E5.828 1,031,362 10,104 1,174,438
Depreciation charge 1.783 2.348 128,608 1,830 - 135,770
Dizposals - 1E%) (<2853  (@3aviy - [25.083)
As at 30 June 2011 48,027 BB.108 1118518 9,563 - 1,265,116
Accumulated impainment

loases
Ae ot 1 July 2010 63208 E3.203 1,119, 880 143 - 1,288 524
Digposaks - - {5,712} - oA
As at 30 June 2011 63.208 83203 1.116.168 143 - 1,264 812
Mot book value
Asm at 30 June 2011 24 4BO 22 o0& 1,300, 442 2 A82 B DEE 1,387 448
Leasshold  Leasshold Flani and Othier Construction
$000 2000 $'000 5000 000 000
- me 2071
Cost
A% at 1 April 2009 136 BBE 1BAOGD 2 ETDATO 12876 542 307 3,800,588
#Additions {181} - 468 224 234,145 23 B0
Disposaks - = {8,734) (1) - {8.750)
Transfer - 4,137 H20,326 441 (B2, S04} .
Az at 30 June 2010 1368705 193,106 3,481,223 13,335 1,548 3835817
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 April 2008 44 904 83,054 937,943 722 - 1.073.368
Depreciation charge 2,235 2734 B5.966 2,685 - 103,620
Disposals - . (2,547) {3) - {2,550)
As al 30 Juna 2010 47 144 85 828 1,031,362 10,104 - 1,174,438
Accumulated Impairment
lozsps

As at 1 April 2009 63,268 83,203 1,125,877 143 - 1.272.621
Disposals . . {6,067 . - {6.087)
As al 30 June 2010 [T 83,203 1,118,880 143 - 1,266 524
Het book value
As at 30 June 2010 265,263 24 075 1,325,981 3,088 1,548 1,384,555

Oher fimed assels comprise mainly comguber equipment and motor wehicles
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17.

(2)

(b)

18.

Property, plant and equipment {continued)

As at 30 June 2011, there was no incremental impairment (2010: $Nil) arising
from the Group’s assessment of the carrying value of its property, plant and
equipment,

The assessment involved making estimates of recoverable amounts which were
based on the value of the property, plant and equipment using the value-in-use
basis based on projections of future cash flow over a period of 5 years and
discounted to present value using a discount rate of 7.5% (2010 7.5%) as
applicable to the nature of the asset in question

As at 30 Jun 2011, outstanding borrowings of $450,000,000 (2010:
$450,000,000) were entered into to finance the construction of property, plant and
eguipment. No interest expense was capitalised during the financial year (2010
$11,242,000) as the construction of the project had been substantially completed
by the end of the financial period ended 30 June 2010.

Other non-current assets

The Group The Company
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2011 2010 2011 2010
$'000 $'000 $'000 §'000
Prepayments 16,831 25,494 16,8231 25,494
Other o 350 350 350 350
17,181 25 844 17,181 25,844
Prepayments 27,048 32208 26,293 31,645
Amount chargeable within
12 months 10,217 6,714 9462 6,151
Amount chargeable after
12 months 16,831 25 494 16,831 25,494
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19.

20.

(a)

Trade and other payables

The Group The Company
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2011 2010 2011 2010
£'000 $'000 $°'000 5000
Current
Trade payables
- non-related parties 348 792 359 602 184,140 245 570
- related corporation 159 149 159 149
- subsidiary - - 25,860 -
T 348,951 350,751 210,459 245719

Accrued capital expenditure 16,237 17,459 16,237 17,459
Security deposits 47,599 31,406 8 21
Other payables 35,796 18,285 33,576 15,388
Amount due to a related party

{non-trade) - 0 -
Amount due to

subsidiaries {non-trade) - - - 42 044

448,583 426,971 259,980 320631

Non-current
Security deposils 8,557 0,448 - -

In prior financial peried, the non-trade amount due to subsidiaries was unsecured,
repayable on demand, and bore interest of 0.125%. The amount was repaid
during the financial year.

The non-trade amount due to a related party is unsecured, interest free and
repayable with credit terms of 30 days.

The fair values of non-current security deposits as at balance sheet date
approximate their carrying amounts.

The exposure of trade and other payables to currency risks and interest rate risks
is disclosed in Note 28.

Bonds

On 30 September 2003, the Company issued $350 million 3.97% Singapore dollar
bonds at par for working capital and funding major capital expenditure. Interest
was payable semi-annually in arrears on the interest payment dates falling on 30
March and 30 September in each year. The bonds matured on 30 September
2010.

43



POWERSERAYA LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 30 June 2011

20.

(b)

(c)

21.

Bonds (continued)

The bonds constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured
obligations of the Company and shall at all times rank parn passu and rateably
without any preference or priority among themselves, and pari passu with all other
present and future unsecured obligations (other than subordinated obligations and
priorities created by law) of the Company.

The Group and the Company

Carrying amount Fair value
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2011 2010 2011 2010
5’000 §'000 $'000 $'000
Bonds - 350,000 - 352 B25

The fair value of the bonds was based on market valuations as provided by the
issuing bank.

Borrowings
The Group and the Company
30 June 30 June

2011 2010

$'000 $'000
Beginning of financial year/period 450,000 293,000
Term loan facility utilised - 150,000
Revolving loan facility ufilised 650,000 20,000
Short term bank facility repaid - {13,000
End of financial year/period 1,100,000 450,000
Bank borrowings - non current 725,000 450,000

The Company has utilised a $400 million (2010: $400 million} term loan and $700
million (2010: $50 million) revolving credit facilities. The term loan has staggered
repayment dates commencing on 29 August 2011 with final repayment date on 28
August 2014. The current portion of the term loan amounts to $75 million (2010:
Nil), while the current portion of the revolving credit facilities amount to $300
million {2010: Nil).

As at 30 June 2011, the Company had fully drawn down the $400 million (2010:
$400 million) term loan facility. Undrawn revolving credit facilities amounting to
$50 million {2010: Nil) will expire on 6 March 2012,
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22. Deferred income taxes

Movement in the deferred income tax account is as follows:

The Group The Company
Financial Financial

Financial  perod from Financial  period from
year ended 1 Apnl 2008 year ended 1 April 2009

30 June to 30 June 30 June to 30 June
2011 2010 2011 2010
§$'000 2000 $'000 5000
Beginning of financial
year/pernod 166,909 93,803 166,797 93,573
Charged {o profit or loss 17,621 46 497 17,720 46,615
Under provisian in preceding
financial period - - - -
Recognition of investment
allowance (Note 23) (6,028) (11,B88) (6,028) (11,888)
Utilisation of investment
allowance 6,851 38497 6,851 38497
End of financial year/period 185,363 165,809 185,340 166,747

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current income tax assets against current income tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority.
The amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown on the balance
sheets as follows:

The Group The Company
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2011 2010 2011 2010
$'000 $'000 £000 3000
Deferred income tax assets:
- to be recovered within one
year (198) (197) {196) (183)
- to be recovered after one
year (9,247) {10,135) (9,247) {10,1386)
Deferred income tax
liabilities:
- o be settled within one year 13,110 34 292 13,087 34,167
- fo be setiled after one year 181,696 142,848 181,696 142,949
End of financial year/period 185,363 166,808 185,340 166,797
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22,

Deferred income taxes {continued)

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior to offsetting of
balances within the same tax jurisdiction) are as follows:

Deferred income lax liabiities

Accelerated
tax
depreciation Total
$'000 3’000
The Grou
30 June 2011
Asg at 1 July 2010 177,241 177,241
Charged to profit or loss 17565 17.565
As at 30 June 2011 104,806 194,806
20 June 2010
As at 1 April 2009 142 209 142 209
Charged to profit or [oss 35,032 35,032
As at 30 Jupe 2010 177,241 177,241
Deferred income tax assels
Investment
allowance Provisions Total
$'000 5000 $'000
The Group
30 June 2011
As at 1 July 2010 (823) (9,508) (10,332)
Recognition of investment allowance (Mote 23) (6,028) - {6,028)
Charged to profit or loss - 66 66
Utilisation of investment allowance 6,851 - 6851
As at 30 June 2011 . (9,443) (9,443)
30 June 2010
As at 1 April 2009 (27,432) (20,974) (48,4086)
Recognition of investment allowance (Note 23) (11,888) - (11,888)
Charged to profit or loss - 11,465 11,465
Utilisation of investment allowance 38487 - 38497
As at 30 June 2010 (823) (9,509) (10,332)
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22,

Deferred income taxes (continued)

Deferred income fax liabiiities

Accelerated
tax
depreciation Total
$'000 $'000
The Company
30 June 2011
As at 1 July 2010 177,116 177 116
Charged to profit or loss 17,6687 ~ 17BBT
As at 30 June 2011 194 783 194,783
30 June 2010
As at 1 April 2008 141,966 141,986
Charged to profit or loss 35,150 35,150
As at 30 June 2010 177,116 177,116
Deferred income tax assefs
Investment
allowance Provisions Total
The Company 000 £'000 $'000
30 June 2011
As at 1 July 2010 (823) (9,496) (10,319)
Recognition of investment allowance (Note 23) (B6,028) - (6,028)
Charged to profit or loss - 53 53
Utilisation of investment allowance 6 851 - 6,851
As at 30 June 2011 - (9,443) (9,443)
30 June 2010
As at 1 April 2009 (27,432) (20,861) (48,393)
Recognition of investment allowance (Mote 23)  (11,888) - (11,888)
Charged to profit or loss - 11,465 11,465
Utilisation of investment allowance 38497 - 38,497
As at 30 June 2010 (823) (6,496) (10,319)
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23.

24,

(a)

(b)

Deferred income

The Group and the Company

Financial
Financial period fram
year ended 1 April 2009
30 June ta 30 June
2011 2010
$000 $'000
Beginning of financial year/period 41,827 30,214
Recognition of investment allowance (Note 22 6,028 11,688
Amortisation of investment allowance {1,985 (275)
End of financial year/period 45,860 41,827
Deferred income - current 1,975 1,734
Deferred income - non-current _ 43,885 40,003
45 860 41,827

On 8 July 2008, the Company was granted an investment allowance from the
Ministry of Trade and Industry in respect of qualifying expenditure from 1 April
2007 on the Cogeneration Plant. The grant is recognised separately from the
related asset as deferred income.

Share capital and reserves

Share capital
The Group and the Company
No. of shares Amount
‘oo $000
30 June 2011 and 30 June 2010
Issued share capital at beginning and end of
financial year 884 971 884,971

All issued shares are fully paid.

Capital reserve

Retained profits of a subsidiary amounting to $10,000,000 were capitalised as
bonus shares issued to PowerSeraya Limited in 2008 and are non-distributable,
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24.

(c)

Share capital and reserves (continued)

Share option reserve

The

intermediate  holding corporation, YTL Power International Berhad

implemented an Employees’ Share Option Scheme ('ESOS') which came into
effect on 30 November 2001 for a period of ten (10) years, The ESOS is governed
by the bye-laws which were approved by the shareholders of YTL Power
International Berhad on 16 October 2001,

n

(i)

(iii)

The maximum number of shares, which may be made available under the
Scheme, shall not exceed ten per cent (10%) of the total issued and paid
up share capital of YTL Power International Berhad at the time of offering
the option.

Any employee (including Executive Directors) of the PowerSeraya Limited
Group (‘Group') shall be eligible to participate in the Scheme if, as at the
date of offer for an option ('Offer Date’) the employee:

(a) has attained the age of eighteen (18) years;

(b) is employed by and on payroll of a company within the Group; and

{c) has been in the employment of the Group for a period of at least
one (1) year of continucus service prior to and up to the Offer Date,
including service during the probation period, and is confirmed in
service,

The ESOS Committee may, at its discretion, nominate any employee
(including Executive Directors) of the Group to be an eligible employee
despite the eligibility criteria under Clause 4.1(jii) of the bye-laws not being
met, at any time and from time to time.

The price payable for shares under the Scheme shall be based on the five
(5)-day weighted average market price of the underlying shares at the time
the option is granted, with a discount of not more than ten per cent (10%),
if deemed appropriate.
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24, Share capital and reserves (continued)

{c) Share oplion reserve (continuad)

{iv)  Subject to Clause 14, the ESOS Committee may, at any time and from
time to time, before or after an option is granted, limit the exercise of the
option to a maximum number of new ordinary shares of YTL Power
International Berhad andfor such percentage of the total ordinary shares of
YTL Power International Berhad comprised in the option during such
period(s) within the option period and impose any other terms and/or
conditions deemed appropriate by the ESOS Committee in its sole
discretion including amending/varying any terms and conditions imposed
earlier. Notwithstanding the above, and subject to Clause 11 and 12, the
option can only be exercised by the grantee three (3) years after the Offer
Date, by notice in writing to YTL Power Intemational Berhad, provided
however that the ESOS Committee may at its discretion or upon the

request in writing by the grantee allow the option to be exercised at any
earlier or other period. In the case of PowerSeraya Limited Group, the
option can be exercised by the grantee two (2) years after the Offer Date.

(v} The grantee shall be prohibited from disposing of the ordinary shares of
YTL Power International Berhad so allotted to him for a period of twelve
(12) months from the date on which the option is exercised. However, the
ESOS Committee may at its discretion or upon request in writing by the
grantee allow the disposal of such ordinary shares of the YTL Power

International Berhad at any earlier or other pericd.

(i) The person to whom the option has been granted has no right to
participate by virtue of the option in any share of any other company.

Movement in the number of unissued ordinary shares of the intermediate holding

corporation under option for the Group's employees are as follows:

Mo ef share oplions
At start of Al end of
Exercise financial finaneial
Expiry price yeariperiod Granted Exercisad Lapsed year/period
Grant date date Rhshare 00d o0a Do : oo
Financial year ended 30 Jung 2011
1072008  28.11.2011 R 1.97 20,490 - - {835) 18,555
Financial period from 1 April 2009 to 30 June 2010
1.07.2009 29112011 RM 1.97 . 22,600 . (2.110) 20,450
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24.  Share capital and reserves (continued)

The fair value of options granted to which FRS 102 applies, were determined
using the Trinomial Valuation model. The significant inputs in the model are as

follows:
30 June 30 June
20117 2010

Group
Valuation assumptions:
Weighted average share price at date of grant {per share) - RM 218
Expectad volatility - 21.07%
Expected dividend yield - 8.00%
Expected option life - 2 years
Risk-free interest rate per annum

(based on Malaysian securities bonds) - 2.94%

* Thane is no new grant during the financial year,

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is
indicative of future trends, which may not necessarily be the actual cutcome.

Value of employee services received for issue of share options:

30 June 30 June
2011 2010
$'000 3000
Share option reserve:
Beginning of financial year - -
Employee share option scheme - -
- value of employee services 866 1,013
- recharges by intermediate holding corporation
on fair value of share options _(866) {1,013)

End of financial year
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25.

26.

Hedging reserve

Ealance at beginning of financial year/period
Reversal of derivatives recognised initially

Amount recognised in equity
Transferred to profit or loss
Transferred to inventory

Transferred to property, plant and equipment

Transferred to prepayment

Fair value of derivalives re-measured at end of financial

year

Balance at end of financial year/period

Dividends

Ordinary dividends paid

Interim dividend paid in respect of current financial
year/period of 84.75 cents (2010: 16.95 cents) per share

The Group and the Company

Financial
Financial period from
year ended 1 April 2008
30 June to 30 June
2011 2010
$'000 3000
{25,983) {48,596)
21,217 37,634
52,740 52,378
(48,779) {38,900)
6,407 (5,363)
2,291 (1,752)
- {167)
3,818 {(21.217)
11,711 {25,883)

The Group and the Compan

Financial

year ended

30 June
2011
$'000

750,000

Financial
period from
1 April 2009
fo 30 June

2010
$000

150,000
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27.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Commitments

Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet date but not recognised in
the financial statements is as follows:

The Group
30 June 30 June
2011 2010
5'000 £'000
Capital expenditure approved and conlracted but
not provided for in the financial statements 180,819 280,731

Operating lease commitments — where a group company is a lessee

The Group leases various offices under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements.

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
contracted for at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities, are as follows:

The Group
30 June 30 June
201 2010
£'000 $'000
Mot later than 1 year 1,614 1,614
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 1480 3084
3,094 4,708

Operating lease commitments — where a group company is a lessor

The future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases
contracted for at the balance sheet date but not recognised as receivables are as
follows:

The Group
a0 June 30 June
2011 2010
£'000 $000
Mot later than 1 year 16,067 2423
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 3,273 _BOG
19,340 3029
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28.

(a)

Financial risk management

The Group's activities expose it to market risk (including currency risk, interest
rate risk and fuel commodity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's
overall risk management strategy seeks to minimise adverse effects from the
unpredictability of financial markets on the Group's financial performance. The
Group uses financial instruments such as fuel oil swaps, currency forwards and
interest rate swaps to hedge certain financial risk exposures.

The Group has formalised risk management policies which set out the Group's
expectations and objectives in the management of risks. A formal risk
management structure has been set up to ensure segregation of duties among the
Board of Directors, Risk Management Committee and in respect of treasury
operations, the Front Office, Middle Office and Back Office. Risk management
processes are put in place to monitor the Group's risk management activities on a
regular and timely basis. The Board of Directors approves a risk appetite for the
Group and its various areas of market risk. The Middle Office measures actual
exposures against the limits set and prepares daily reports for review by the Chief
Risk Officer and members of the Risk Management Committee.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of purchases that are
denominated in a currency other than the Group's functional currency. The
currencies in which the Group primarily deals, giving rise to foreign currency risk,
are Euros and United States dollars.

It is the Group's policy to hedge foreign currency risk attributable to capital
expenditure and forecasled purchases of gas and fuel oil. The Group uses
forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge its foreign currency risk. The Group
generally enters into forward foreign exchange contracts which are settled at
maturity or at times rolled over at the market rates to match hedging requirements.
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28. Financial risk management (continued)

(a) Market risk {continued)

(i) Currency risk (continued)

The Group's currency exposure is tabled below:

United
Singapore States
dollar dollar Euro Other Total

The Group £'000 000 £000 5000 000
At 30 June 2011
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 241,742 41,7590 4 526 268,058
Trade and other receivables 437 B51 45 425 - = 483,279
Gross - fuel ol swaps asset - 35,402 - - 39,402
Loan receivables 572 450 - - - 572 450
Other current assels 135 16,121 - . - 18288
Total assets 1,252,178 142,741 4 526 - 1,389 445
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 1,100,000 - - - 1,100,000
Trade and other payables 254 386 186,115 16,638 1 457,140
Gross - fuel oil swaps

ligbility - 10,300 - - 10,300
Met - interest rate swaps 1350 - : - 13,550
Total liabilities 1,367,936 196,415 16,638 1 1,560,990
Met assets/{liabilities) {115,758) {53,674) (12,112) (1) (181,545)
Capital commitments (18,745) {1,996 (160,078) - (180,819)
Gas and fuel oil forecasted

purchases - 628,719 - 628,719
Currency forwards - (608.518) (9,048) = lE17.564)
Currency exposure {134,503) {35,469)  (181,23E) {1) {351,209)
Change in exchange rate

against SGD

- strengthened - +3% +2% +1%

- weakened - -3% -2% -1%
Net gain/(loss)

- strengthened . {1,064) (3,625) i (4,689)

- weakened - 1,064 3625 - 4 688
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28.

(2)

Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk (continued)

{1 Currency nisk (continued)

United
Singapore States
dollar doliar Euro Other Total

The Group 000 3000 000 $000 $'000
At 30 June 2010
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 240,248 52,426 30,8975 - 323,649
Trade and other receivables 330,814 B85 B71 - - 306 485
Gross - fuel oil swaps asset - 12,003 - - 12,003
Loan receivables 520,629 - - - 520,629
Other current assels B 4,574 B.776 - - 13,350
Total assets 1,086,265 138,876 30,875 - 1,266,116
Financial liabilities
Bonds 350,000 . - 350,000
Borrowings 450,000 . - 450,000
Trade and other payables 185,380 236,063 14,725 251 436,419
Gross - fuel oil swaps

liability - 19,370 - - 19,370
Met - interest rate swaps 12 466 - - - 12 466
Tolal liabilities 897 846 255,433 14,725 251 1,268,255
Met assoets/(liabilities) 98,419 {116,557) 16,250 (251) (2,139)
Capital commitments {21,952) {21,450) (217.329) - {260,731)
Gas and fuel oil forecasted

purchases - 588,045 - - 589,045
Currency forwards - (589,078) (16,885  (248)  (606,211)
Currency exposure 76,487 (138,040) (217,964) {495) {280,036)
Change in exchange rate

against SGD

- strengthened . +3% +3% +12%

- weakenad - -3% -3% -12%
Wet gainf{loss)

- strengthened - (4,141) (6,539) (50) (10,740)

- weakenad - 4141 6,539 80 10,740
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28.  Financial risk management (continued)

(a) Market nsk {continued)

(i) Currency risk (continued)

The Company’'s currency exposure is tabled below:

United
Singapore Slates
doltar dollar Eura Other Total

The Company 000 2000 #000 5000 F000
At 30 June 2011
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 206,247 21,887 4 526 - 232 BBO
Trade and other receivables 270,892 - - - 270, Bo2
Gross - fuel oil swaps asset
Met - inlerast rate swaps - 39,465 - - 30 465
Loan receivables 564 265 . - - 584,265
Other current assets 119 16,121 - - 16,240
Tofal assets 1,061,523 77473 4,526 - 1143522
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 1,100,000 - B - 1,100,000
Trade and other payables 93 648 149 692 16,638 1 259 980
Gross - fuel oil swaps

liability - 10,369 - - 10,369
Net - interest rate swaps 13560 - - - 13,550
Total habilities 1,207,198 160,061 16,638 1 1,383,809
Net assets/{liabilities) (145,676) (82,588) {12.112) 1) 1240,377)
Capital commitments {18,745) {1,986) (160,078} - {180,819)
Gas and fuel oil forecasied

purchases - 628,719 - - 628,719
Currency forwards - {630,558) (9,046) - (6359,604)
Currency exposure [164,421) [B6,423) {181,236) {1} (432,081)
Change in exchange rate

against SGD
- strengthened - A% +25% +1%
- weakened - -3% 2% -1%
Net gain/(loss)
- strengthened - (2.593) {3.625) . (6,218)
- weakened - 2,593 3625 - 6218
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28.

{a)

Financial risk management {continued)

Market risk (continued)

i)  Currency risk (continued)

The Company's currency exposure is tabled below:

The Company

At 30 June 2010

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Gross - fuel oil swaps asset
Met - interest rale swaps
Loan receivables

Other current assets

Total azsels

Financial liabilities

Bonds

Borrowings

Trade and other payables

Gross - fuel oil swaps
liability

Met - interest rate swaps

Total liabilities

Met assetsf{liabilities)

Capital commilments

Gas and fuel oil forecasted
purchases

Currency forwards

Currency exposure

Change in exchange rate
against SGD

- strengthened

- weakened

Net gain/{loss)
- strengthened
- weakened

United
Singapore States
dollar dollar Euro Other Todal
$000 $'000 000 000 000
238 936 44,153 30,975 314,064
148,302 7.950 - - 156,252
- 12,003 - 12,003
532,444 - 532,444
4,569 8,778 S - 13045
H524,251 72,882 30,875 1,028,108
350,000 - - 350,000
450,000 - - - 450,000
84,063 221,858 14,662 247 320,631
- 18,526 - - 19,526
12466 - 20000 0 - - 12,466
BGG,529 241,185 14 662 247 1,152 623
27,722  (168,303) 16,313 (247)  (124,515)
{21,952) (21,450) (217,329) - (260,731)
. 589,045 - - 589,045
- (589,078) (16,885) (248) _ (606.211)
5,770 (189,786) {217.901) (495) {402,412)
- +3% +3% +12%
- -3% -3% -12%
- (5,694) (6,537) (59) (12,290
- 5.694 6,537 (59) 12,280
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(@)

Financial risk management (continued)
Market risk {continued)
(i) Cash flow and fair value inferest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value
interest rate nsk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate
due to changes in market interest rates

The excess funds of the Group are invested in bank deposits and other financial
assets. The Group manages its liquidity risks by placing such balances on
varying maturities to match its cash flow needs. Surplus funds are invested in
instruments less than 6 months. The cash and cash equivalent balance at 30
June 2011 was $288,058,000 (2010: $323,649,000) and the weighted averages
prevailing interest deposit rate was 0.27% (2010: 0.25%). Interest income for the
next 12 months would be $774,000 (2010: $797,000) assuming the rate remains
constant through the year. If interest deposit rates increased/decreased by 0.1%,
interest income for the same year would increase/decrease by $288,000 (2010
$324,000).

As at 30 June 2011, the Group had a loan due from YTL Utilities (S) Pte. Limited
of $201,727,000 (2010: $201,055,000) and YTL PowerSeraya Pte. Limited of
$370,723,000 (2010: $319,572,000). Both loans bear interest at SIBOR which
was 03159% as at 30 June 2011 (2010 0.3750%). If interest rates
increased/decreased by 0.1%, interest income for the same year would
increase/decrease by $572,000 (2010: $521,000).

The Group's interest expense risk mainly arises from bonds and bank borrowings.
Qut of the $1,100,000,000 (2010: $800,000,000) total borrowings as at 30 June
2011, $150,000,000 (2010: $150,000,000) loan drawn down from a term loan
facility and $700,000,000 (2010: $50,000,000) loan drawn down from a revolving
facility are subject to cash flow interest rate risk. The remaining borrowings are at
fixed rate or are hedged via plain vanilla floating to fixed interest rate swaps. If the
interest rate increased/decreased by 0.1% with all other variables including tax
rate being held constant, the profit after tax would be $803,000 (2010: $188,000)
lowerfhigher as a result of higher/lower interest expense in these borrowings.

fiii) Fuel commodity price risk

The Group hedges its fuel commodity price risk by the use of derivative
instruments against fluctuations in fuel oil prices which affect the cost of fuel.
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28,

(a)

(b)

Financial risk management (continued)
Market risk (continued)
{ii) Fuel commadily price risk {continued)

The Group has contracts for the sale of electricity to the Singapore electricity pool
at prices that are fixed in advance every three months and to the retail customers
(those meeting a minimum average monthly consumption) at prices that are either
fixed in amount or in pricing formula for periods up fo a number of years. The
fixing of the prices under the confracts are based largely on the price of fuel oil
required to generate the electricity. The Group enters into fuel il swaps to hedge
against adverse price movements of fuel oil prices. The Group typically enters
into & swap to pay a fixed price and receive a variable price indexed to a
benchmark fuel price index.

Exposure to price fluctuations arising from the purchase of fuel is managed via
fuel oil swaps where the price of fuel is indexed to a benchmark fuel price index,
for example 180 CST fuel oil. As at 30 June 2011, if the forward fuel oil price
curve increased/decreased by 2% (2010: 2%), the profit before tax of future years
would be lowerfhigher by $1,801,000 (2010: lower/higher by $122,000) and
lower/higher by $1,901,000 (2010; lower/higher by $62,000) for the Group and the
Company respectively.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual
obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. The major classes of financial
assets of the Group are bank deposits and trade receivables.

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit reviews are performed on all customers
with established credit limits on an on-going basis. For transactions involving
electricity sales, the Group generally requires collateral pegged to the customers’
electricity consumption in the form of bankers' guarantees or parent company
guarantees or deposits from selected customers. There is an adequate credit
management policy in place and there is no significant concentration of credit risk
of trade debts.

Transactions involving derivative financial instruments are allowed only with
counterparties that are of high credit quality. As such, management does not
expect any counterparties to fail to meet their obligations.
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28,

(b)

(c)

Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
(i} Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Bank deposits that are neither past due nor impaired are mainly deposits with
banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are substantially
companies with a good collection track record with the Group.

There is no class of financial assets that is past due and/or impaired except for
trade receivables. As at 30 June 2011, the Group has trade receivables with
outstanding amounts greater than 51,000 and outstanding for more than 60 days
of approximately $528000 (2010: $711,000) There is no amount (2010:
$257,000) identified for impairment as at 30 June 2011. The majority of the
balances are not impaired because the accounis are for landlords' account,
adeguate collaterals are in place or recovery plans are in place and agreed with
the customers. As at the balance sheet date, the Company has no trade
receivables that are past due and/or impaired.

Liguidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash to enable it to
meet normal cperating commitments, having an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities (Mote 21) and the ability to close market positions at short notice.

The table below analyses the maturity profile of the financial liabilities (including
derivative financial liabilities) of the Group based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows.
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28.

(c)

Financial risk management (continued)

Liguidity risk {continued)

Between Between
Less than 1and2 2and 5

1 year years years Total

000 $'000 3000 000
The Group
At 30 June 2011
Financial Liabilities
Net - inlerest rate swaps £ GRS 4161 3,404 13.550
Gross - fuel ol swaps 10,300 - . 10,300
Gross - currency forwards 12,981 564 4 13,548
Trade and other payables 456 4689 . - 456,460
Borrowings and interest 382,689 107,762 630,584 1,121,035

863,424 112 487 633,002 1,614 803
At 30 June 2010
Financial Liabilities
Met - interest rate swaps 5672 3,210 3,584 12 468
Gross - fuel oil swaps 19,094 276 . 18,370
Gross - currency forwards 5,202 161 5,363
Trade and other payables 431,734 . - 431,734
Borrowings and interest 383057 | 83,310 389,893 836,260

824 759 BB, 057 393,477 1,305,193

The table below analyses the maturity profile of the financial liabilities (including
derivative financial liabilities) of the Company based on contractual undiscounted

cash flows,
Betweaan Between
Less than 1and 2 Zand 5

1 year yEars YEars Total

$'000 $'000 5000 000
The Company
At 30 June 2011
Financial Liabilities
Met - interest rate swaps 5,885 4,161 3,404 13,550
Gross — fuel oll swaps 10,360 - - 10,369
Gross — currency forwards 13,064 564 4 13,632
Trade and other payables 253,309 - - 253 300
Borrowings and inlerest 382,689 107,762 630,584 1,121,035

665 416 112 487 533,892 1,411,895
At 30 June 2010
Fimnancial Liabilities
Met - interest rate swaps 5EB72 3,210 3,584 12,456
Gross — fuel ol swaps 19,250 276 . 19 526
Gross — currency forwards 5,202 161 - 5,363
Trade and other payables 3158456 - - 315,946
Borrowings and interest 363,057 83,310 3sgEE3 836,260

708,127 86,857 393 477 1,189,551
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28,

(d)

(e)

Financial risk management (continued)

Capital risk

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern and fo maintain an optimal capital structure
50 as to maximise shareholder value. In order to maintain or achieve an optimal
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividend payment, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares, buy back issued shares, obtain new borrowings
or sell assets to reduce borrowings.

The Group and the Company are required to fulfil certain financial covenants
under certain borrowing arrangements.

As at 30 June 2011 and 30 June 2010, the Group and the Company are in
compliance with all externally imposed financial covenants pertaining to capital
structure.

Fair value measurements

The following table presents assets and liabilities measured at fair value and
classified by level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

{a) quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities {Level 1),

{)] inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (is as prices) or indirectly (ie derived
from prices) (Level 2); and

(c) inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs) (Level 3).
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28.

(e)

Financial risk management (continued)

Fair value measurements (continued)

T

At 30 June 2011

Assels

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Trading derivatives

Derivatives used for hedging

Total assets

Liabilities

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Trading derivatives

Derivatives used for hedging

Total liabilities

At 30 June 2010

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Trading derivatives

Derivatives used for hedging

Total assets

Liabilities

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Trading derivatives

Derivatives used for hedging

Total liabilities

Level 2 Total
£000 $'000
7.785 7,785
o 32299 32299
40,084 40,084
8918 8918
... 28481 28481
37,398 37,399
903 9032
14,931 14,831
15,834 15,834
1,050 1,080
36,149 36,149
37,199 37,199
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28.

(e)

Financial risk management (continued)

Fair value measurements {continued)

The Company
As at 30 June 2011

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Trading derivatives

Derivatives used for hedging

Total assets

Liabilities

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Trading derivatives

Derivatives used for hedging

Total liabilities

As at 30 June 2010

Assets

Financial assels at fair value through profit or loss
- Trading derivatives

Derivatives used for hedging

Total assets

Liabilities

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Trading derivatives

Derivatives used for hedging

Total liabilities

Level 2 Total
3'000 000
7,908 7,908

32,299 32,299

40,207 40,207
9,070 8,070

28,481 28481

37,581 37,551

a03 903
14,831 14,931
15,834 15,834

1,208 1,206
36,145 36,148
37,355 37,356

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for
example, overthe-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that

are based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet date.

Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used to
estimate fair value for long-term debt for disclosure purposes. Other techniques,
such as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value for the

remaining financial instruments.
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28.

(e)

(f)

29.

Financial risk management [continued)

Fair value measurements (continued)

The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the
estimated future cash flows. The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts
is determined using quated forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date.
The fair value of fuel oil swaps is determined using quoted market prices for
similar instruments at the balance sheet date. These investments are included in
Level 2

The carrying value of trade receivables less impairment provision and payables
are assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities
for disclosure purposes is estimated based on guoted market prices for similar
instrumenis by discouniing the future contractual cash flows at the current market
interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial instruments. The fair
value of current borrowings approximates their carrying amount.

Financial instruments by category

The carrying amount of the different categories of financial instruments is as
disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements, except for the following.

The Group The Company
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2011 2010 2011 2010
$'000 000 £'000 $'000
Loans and receivables 1,349,769 1.243573 1,093,800 1,005 565

Financial liabilities at amortised cost 1,557,140 1,235 962 1,359,980 1,120831

Immediate and ultimate holding corporations

The Company's immediate holding corporation is YTL PowerSeraya Ple. Limited,
incorporated in Singapore. The directors regard Yeoh Tiong Lay & Sons Sdn
Bhd, a company incorporated in Malaysia, as the Company's ultimate holding
corpaoration.
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30. Related party transactions

In addition to the information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the
following transactions tock place between the Group and related parties, at terms

agreed between the parties

{a) Sales and purchases of goods and services

The Group
Financial
Financial perod from
year ended 1 April 2009
30 June to 30 June
2011 2010
$'000 000
Sales of goods/services
- interest income 1,833 2,170
- other income - consultancy services 2,246 541
- others 690 343
Purchases of goodsiservices
- limestone 1,400 755
- others 683 534

Outstanding balances at 30 June 2011, arising from sales and purchases of

goods and services, are set out in Notes 11 and 19 respeactively.

(b)  Key management personnel compensation

The Group
Financial
Financial period from
year ended 1 April 2009
30 June to 30 June
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Key management personnel compensation is
analysed as follows:
Wages and salaries 1,554 1,817
Employer's contribution to defined contribution plans,
including Central Provident Fund 6 14
Other benefits = B40
Share option expanse 54 56
1,614 2,727
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For the financial year ended 30 June 2011

31.

32.

New or revised accounting standards and interpretations

The mandatory standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards
that have been published, and are relevant for the Group's accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2011 or later periods and which the Group has not
early adopted are:

= Amendments to FRS 24 — Related parly disclosures (effective for annual
pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2011)

The amendment clarifies and simplifies the definition of a related party. However,
the revised definition of a related party will mean that some entities will have more
related parties and will be required to make additional disclosures.

Management is currently considering the revised definition to determine whether
any additional disclosures will be required and has yet to put systems in place to
capture the necessary information. It is therefore not possible to disclose the
financial impact, if any, of the amendment on the related panty disclosures.

Authorisation of financial statements
These financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a

resolution of the Board of Directors of PowerSeraya Limited on 21 September
2011.
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6.1 Being Part of the Climate Change Solution

6.1.1 Introduction

In Singapore, the power sector contributes close to half of the country’s carbon dioxide emissions. Pow-
erSeraya is very conscious of this fact and places importance in keeping its carbon footprint in check
while fulfilling its energy security obligations through the country’s energy regulatory framework and en-
suring profitability to its shareholders.

The company's carbon dioxide emissions is measured regularly and reported at the senior management
as well as the Board level. This ensures the carbon dioxide level is tracked together with other key finan-
cial and operational indicators to give a balanced report of the company's overall performance. To our
shareholders, customers and other key stakeholders, our carbon dioxide performance has been made
publicly available in our annual or sustainability reports in recent years. We believe this transparent ap-
proach in disclosing our carbon footprint would enable us to build greater trust and confidence with our
stakeholders over time. It has also created an opportunity for us to communicate to our stakeholders the
challenges and constraints faced by the company as it strives to play a contributory role in mitigating the
effects of climate change.
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Diagram 6.1(a): Carbon Dioxide Intensity (CO, tonsMwh) in the 2001 to 2010 peniod

Over the years, the company has invested in combined cycle and cogeneration technologies that are not
only more energy efficient than the older steam plants but also allowed the company to switch to greater
use of natural gas as an energy source. Looking at the past five years (FY08/07 to FY10/11), the share of
power generation from natural gas increased from 46.8% to 64.2%. The overall plant efficiency increased
from 41.79% to 46.4% over the same period. The twin effects of fuel switching (from heavy fuel oil to natu-
ral gas) and the use of energy efficient power generation technologies has resulted in the reduction of the
company's carbon intensity by 27.4% in the 2001 to 2010 period.
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6.1.2 Carbon Emissions

Besides direct carbon dioxide emissions (i.e. Scope 1 of GHG Protocol) from our power plant operations,
the company also purchases energy from the electricity pool (via the Energy Market Company) in order
to fulfill its energy contract obligations to its customers from time to time (i.e. Scope 3 of GHG Protocol).
Another source of indirect emissions is from the electricity consumed at our corporate headquarters, a
leased premise at HarbourFront Tower One, Singapore. Please see Diagram 6.1(d) below on the total
direct (i.e. Scope 1 of GHG Protocol) and indirect (i.e. Scope 2 of GHG Protocol) carbon dioxide emis-
sions in the FY10/11 period spanning July 10 to June 11.

Note: The Scope 1 & 2 GHG emissions cover primarily CO,. The other 5 greenhouse gases are insignifi-
cant and are thus not included in the GHG calculations.

To date, we do not track indirect carbon dioxide emissions arising from other corporate activities such
as company travel and transportation of purchased fuels, These sort of indirect emissions are excluded
from the Scope 3 GHG Emissions.

Go o Section 6.2.3 — Indirect CO2 Emissions from Energy Purchased from External Sources
Go to Section 6.3.2 — Achieving Office Resource Efficiency — Indirect CO2 Emissions from Office

202 B Scope 2 (Indirect Emissions) -
Electricity Consumed at Office HQ

424 793

M Scope 2 (Indirect Emissions) -
Electricity Purchased from
External Sources

| Scope 1 (Direct Emissions from
Power Plant Operations)

CQO, (Tons)

Diagram 6.1(d); Scope 1, 2 & 3 GHG (Greenhouse Gas Emissions)
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6.1.3 Climate Change Challenges in the Future Energy
Landscape in Singapore - As We See It

Singapore is disadvantaged in terms of renewable energy adoption. It has low wind potential. Although it
is situated near the Equator with lots of solar irradiation, its solar potential is constrained by heavy cloud
cover and shadow effect caused by its highly urbanised landscape dominated by high rise buildings. The
country’s limited land mass also means that the adoption of geothermal and nuclear energy would be
difficult. The lack of a feed-in tariff also makes it economically challenging for renewable energy invest-
ments in Singapore.

Given Singapore's renewable energy constraints, the options available to further lower its carbon foot-
print in the medium term is through the greater use of natural gas for power generation, increasing en-
ergy efficiency of its industries and the adoption of small-scale biomass or photovoltaic projects,

With the LNG terminal coming on stream in 2013 and the Energy Conservation Act expected coming
into full force in the same year, PowerSeraya would find itself pursuing a path of greater energy efficiency
where natural gas would be the dominant fuel source for its power generation in the near future. In the
2011 World Energy Outlook {Special Report) by the International Energy Agency, the general view is
that the world may be entering into the ‘Golden Age of Gas'. If this global trend continues, PowerSer-
aya would be well positioned to tap into the natural gas market when the country's first LNG terminal is
operational in 2013. This would allow the company to have a sustainable source of fuel and enable the
co-generation plants to operate at a higher efficiency as it grows its multi-utility business (i.e. power gen-
eration, high pressure steam, etc) over time. With these developments, projections are that the carbon
footprint of the company will trend below the current level of 0.50 CO, tons/Mwh.,

While the outlook looks promising, PowerSeraya would be faced with greater competition as more
companies enter the power generation business in Singapore in a few years' time. Notwithstanding the
LNG terminal in 2013, the company is to a certain extent affected by geo-political risks as Singapore
would still be dependent on Malaysia and Indonesia for pipeline natural gas supply. The company's profit
margin is expected to shrink as its market share in the power generation business gets smaller, This
may heighten the company's propensity to shy away from cleaner energy technologies/solutions such
as renewables as they are generally not economically viable under the current market and regulatory
conditions. These are the challenges that the company would face as it strives to include cleaner energy
options in the future.
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6.1.4 Carbon Tax Considerations

As part of the company’s overall CSR Strategy, the challenges from carbon risks is very real to the com-
pany and its key stakeholders. It is for this reason that our company is constantly exploring the adoption
of cleaner energy technologies and practices, measuring its carbon footprint and keeping abreast with
the latest developments in the global climate change scene.

In late 2010, the Prime Minister of Singapore indicated the country’s intent to implement a scheme to
curb carbon dioxide emissions should there be an international binding treaty on climate change. Wheth-
er the scheme comes in the form of a carbon tax or a cap-and-trade system, PowerSeraya is monitoring
this issue closely as this may present significant carbon risks either directly to the company or indirectly
to its customers as end users of energy.
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6.1.5 Our Journey with Carbon Credits

Singapore as a non-Annex 1 country under the Kyoto Protocol, has allowed PowerSeraya to explore the
possibility of being a recipient of carbon credits for its investment in cleaner energy projects.

In 2006, the company decided to invest in a natural-gas fired B00MW Co-Generation Plant, It was a
significant milestone for the company at that time as it would allow the company to generate a greater
proportion of its power from less carbon intensive natural gas versus its heavy oil generation portfolio.
Concurrent to the development of this project, the company embarked on a journey to register the pro-
ject for carbon credits eligibility under the Clean Development Mechanism (CDM) framework,

After four years of seeking to register the project for carbon credits and having taken it to the validation
stage of the CDM (Clean Development Mechanism) process — which is a step before final registration for
carbon credits eligibility — we were not able to push the project beyond this point. This is due mainly to
the absence of adequate local information for investment benchmark determination in Singapore which
is an important factor to establish the financial additionality of the project. In 2010, the company decided
not to pursue this project for CDM registration after conducting a review and also taking into considera-
tion the post-Kyoto uncertainties.
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6.2 Caring for the Environment at our Plant

6.2.1 Our Environmental Management System (EMS)

A considerable amount of fuel and chemicals are being consumed at the power plant. At the waste end,
we have air emissions, trade effluent and solid wastes to manage. A lot of resources such as energy and
water are also consumed during the power generation process, To minimise damage to the environment
and the ill effects that some of these substances bring to our health, it is important that a high level of
environmental performance be maintained at our power plant.

The company has a QHSE (Quality, Health, Safety and Environmental) Policy that largely governs how the
environmental aspects (as well as health & safety) of the power plant operations should be conducted.
Complementing the QHSE is the Environmental Policy under the CSR Policy which looks beyond power
plant operations to cover the company's commitment on engaging its employees and other stakeholders
in enhancing environmental sustainability. This is done through educating employees and the community
to be responsible agents for the environment, working with stakeholders on environmental initiatives and
reporting on our environmental performance.

PowerSeraya has had an Environmental Management System (EMS) in place for many years before
adopting the 1ISO14001 environmental management system in 2005. Since then, the company has
successfully passed all surveillance audits and maintained 1ISO14001 certification. About four significant
environmental aspects (see Diagram 6.2 (a)) are being managed and monitored under the ISO 14001
to ensure that the power plant operates in a manner that causes minimal impact to the environment. As
of June 2011, a total of 25 environmental targets are being monitored under the ISO14001 system, of
which 80% are voluntary and not tied to any legislative/regulatory requirement.

The ISO 14001 committee meets about seven times a year (one steering committee and six informal
working commitiee meetings) to look at issues that affect the power plant's environmental performance.
For monitoring purposes, environmental indicators are tracked against objectives and reported on a
monthly and quarterly basis at the department/group and senior management levels respectively. On an
annual basis, a management review of the environmental objectives and EMS procedures is conducted
as part of the continuous improvement cycle.
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Key Environmental
Aspects

Key Environmental Impacts

Fuel consumption

Combustion of fuel oil
in steam boilers

Combustion of natu-
ral gas in combustion
chamber

Terminal operations for
fuel management and
transfer

* Non-renewable resource depletion

* CO,, SO,, CO, NO,, PM emission

* Ash and boiler slag generation and
disposal

* Non-renewable resource depletion

* CO,, CO, NO,, emission

» Potential for oil spillage causing sea
pollution

Water consumption

Use of water for steam
generation in steam
plant and combined
cycle plant

» Scarce resource depletion

* \Wastewater generation and
discharge

Material consumption

Use of imestone for
FGD plant

Use of ammonia for EP

* Scarce resource depletion

* Waste / by-product generation
(e.g. gypsum, waste chemicals, etc.)

Electricity consumption

Use of in-house elec-
tricity for operation
equipment for power
generation (e.g. EPR,
FGD, Water Treatment
Plants, etc.)

# |[ndirect use non-renewable
resource depletion

« Indirect CO,, SO,, CO, NO,, PM
ermission

* |ndirect ash and bailer slag
generation and disposal

Diagram 6.2 (a): Environmental Aspects and Corresponding Environmental impacts
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6.2.2 GRI Environmental Indicators

In evaluating the environmental information to be included in this report, we thought it would be material
that our list of GRI environmental indicators covers the main environmental aspects from the Key Environ-
mental Aspect Register to comprehensively cover all elements of air, land and water.

S0,, CO, and HCFC (i.e. hydrochloroflucrocarbons) are significant air emissions arising from the business
operations and are thus featured in this report. The latter two, in particular, were chosen due to their as-
sociation with climate change.

With regard to water pollutants, we reported the major compliance-related pollutants such as biological
oxygen demand and chemical oxygen demand which are bounded by law, as well as oil-spill incidence,
it any. We have also included water consumption arising from our business operations in the context of
how our use of desalinated and recycled water (i.e. NEWater) aligns with Singapore's focus on water self-
sufficiency.

For land pollutants, we included hazardous wastes as there is a fair proportion of the former which is
treated and shipped internationally under the Basel Convention. We have also included non-hazardous
wastes and highlighted how our waste recycling rate contributes positively to the country's drive to in-
crease the waste recycling rate in efforts to extend the lifespan of our landfills.

On Biodiversity, we have included a section to explain the context of how biodiversity law is applied in
Singapore and how it is relevant to our operations.



6.2.3 Environmental Performance of Our Power Plant

Fuel Consumption

Our company’s recent investment in the natural-fired 800MW Co-Generation plant and the decommis-
sioning of a few oil-fired units, coupled with an increase in high pressure steam demand, have resulted
in a surge in natural gas use and a drop in fuel cil use in FY10/11.

In FY10/11, the natural gas consumption increased four and a half times compared to the previous year.
On the other hand, fuel oil consumption saw a drop of 22%.

MNote: Fuel oil refers primarily to heavy fuel cil and intermediate fuel oils. Howewver, the figures include a
very small proportion of diesel oil which is used as contingency and for peaking purposes.

In PowerSeraya, our direct and primary source of energy used for our business (i.e. electricity consump-
tion) is from fuel oil and natural gas (this we measure in Tonnes or BBTU rather than Joules).
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Diagram 6.2 (b): Fuel Oil Consumption in Tonnes (FY07/08 to FY10/11)
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Diagram 6.2 (c): Natural Gas Consumption in BBTU (FYQ7/08 to FY10/11)
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Indirect Energy Consumption - Energy Purchased From External Sources
From time to time, the company has to purchase electricity from external sources to fulfill the energy
demands of our customers. In the period FY 07/08 to FY 10/11, the proportion of energy purchased
from external sources was about 6.9% on average. The significant drop in FY09/10 was due to the fact
that our power plant generation was able to fulfill electricity demand from customers without the need to
purchase from external sources.
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Diagram 6.2 (d): Indirect Energy Consumption in MWh (FY07/08 to FY10/11)

Since the electricity consists of energy produced from various primary sources, we are unable to report
the energy consumed by energy sources. However, from the latest FY 10/11 Annual Report of the En-
ergy Market Authority of Singapore, the country's fuel mix for electricity generation is 77% natural gas,
179% fuel oil and 8% from other fuel sources.

Air Emissions
Carbon dioxide emissions:

Internal Target Actual
10% reduction from FY08/10 10.9% drop from FY09/10

FY10/11 CO, Intensity

Carbon dioxide intensity (a measure of the amount of CO, tons emitted per unit of power generated) for
FY10/11 decreased by 10.8% to hit a new low of 0.508 tons/MWh from the previous FY. In fact, this
result is in line with our internal target of a 10% reduction in carbon footprint. A greater amount of power
generated from our natural gas-fired plants (i.e. combined cycle and co-generation) to produce electricity
and high pressure steam meant that we were burning less fuel oil and more of natural gas to produce
each unit of power.

However, running a natural-gas plant is not without its challenges. A decay in natural gas supply pres-
sure (which is a factor that is beyond the company’s operational control) below a specified threshold
level (stipulated regulation by the Energy Market Authority) at our natural gas-fired plant would result in
a changeover from the use of natural gas to diesel fuel. All these factors would result in our plants burn-
ing less natural gas than originally planned which in turn cause our carbon footprint to be higher than
planned.

Note: CO, is the main Greenhouse Gas (GHG) at PowerSeraya. Another GHG that is used in the power plant
operations is SF_. Details on how we managed SF_ are covered in the later part of this section.
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Sulphur Dioxide Emissions

Sulphur dioxide intensity (i.e. a measure of the amount of SO2 tons emitted per unit of power generated)
decreased slightly from 0.0036 tons/MWh in FY09/10 to 0.0035 tons/MWh in FY10/11. The increase in
the FGD (Flue Gas Desulphurization) unit efficiency from 92.7% in FY 09/10 to 93.8% in FY 10/11 is one
factor that contributed to the drop in sulphur dioxide intensity figures.
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Diagram 6.2 (f): Sulphur Dioxide Intensity Figures from FYO7/08 to FY10/11
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Diagram 6.2 (g): Flue Gas Desulphuriser Efficiency from FY07/08 to FY10/11

Reducing Sulphur Dioxide Emissions using the FGD (Flue Gas Desulphurization) unit

The fuel oil used in our power plant operations has a relatively high sulphur content which releases SO,
into the atmosphere when burnt. Exposure to high levels of SO, can cause breathing problems, respira-
tory illnesses and cardiovascular disease. To mitigate these harmful effects, we burn fuel oils with no more
than 2% sulphur content in them, which is within the Mational Ervironment Authority (NEA)'s requirements.

The resulting SO, emissions go through a flue gas desulphurisation (FGD) unit which removes over 90%
of this toxic gas. In FY10/11, close to 92% of the sulphur dioxide emissions were remaved by the FGD.

Other Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions

Besides carbon dioxide (CO,), the other GHG monitored closely at PowerSeraya is Sulphur Hexafluoride
(SF,). With a global warming potential 22,800 times that of CO,, SF, is something not to be ignored even
though it occurs in some quantities.

The 230kV and 400kV Gas Insulated Switchgears (GIS) at the power plant contains pressurised SF,
which acts as a dielectric medium to prevent electrical arcing from occurring during electrical switching
activities. As part of the ISO14001 objective since 2010, SF_ leakage checks is carried out quarterly using
a SF, detector. In addition, the compartments of the GIS is monitored by SF, density gauges which sends
an alert should the pressure of SF, in the GIS enclosure drop to a certain threshold level.

Nitrogen Dioxide

We are currently unable to report on our NO, emissions because of the difficulties in measuring the actual
amount of nitrogen dioxide from the boilers on a continuous basis. Moreover, there is also no flow meter
to capture the total flow of flue gas in order for us to compute the total NO, emission. However, we have
consistently kept the NO, levels below 700 mg/Nm3, which is the regulatory limit set by the National En-
vironment Agency.




Ozone-Depleting Emissions

There were no ozone-depleting emissions arising from power plant operations. However, our office air-
conditioning emitted insignificant amounts of hydrochlorofluorocarbons (HFCs), of between 135kg and
405kg in the period FY07/08 to FY10/11. The considerable rise in HFCs from FY09/10 to FY10/11 is due
to the newer split air-condition units that were installed to replace the old ones.

Water

The power plant consumes a considerable amount of water on a daily basis. Over the years, the power
plant has sought to be water efficient in its operations as well as to be water sufficient through greater use
of water from its in-house desalination plant.

A few years ago, a significant proportion of the water consumed for power plant operations was from
freshwater sources via the country’s piped water system. Today, the water story is very different. In
FY10/11, 83% of the water consumed for power plant operations originated from our in-house desalina-
tion plant with the remaining 10% from NEWater (i.e. recycled water). Virtually no water is drawn from
freshwater sources (e.g. Singapore reservoirs and imported water from Malaysia).

In terms of water efficiency, the water intensity for FY10/11 dropped by 5.3% compared to the previous
FY, reflecting a better use of water resources for every unit of energy produced at the power plant. The
energy (in MWh) includes the electricity generated as well the energy component required to generate
high pressure steam that is sold to customers. The net water consumed is the water used to generate
electricity and high pressure steam at the plant minus the steam that is effectively delivered via a dedi-
cated pipeline to customers.
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Diagram 6.2 (h): Water Intensity from FY06/07 to FY10/11

Trade Effluent
The end process of power generation resulis in trade effluent which is treated before it is discharged into
the open sea. The trade effluent undergoes stringent quality checks for heavy metals, biological oxygen
demand (BOD) and chemical oxygen demand (COD) to determine whether it has significant effect on fish
or aguatic plants.

The effluent samples are taken bi-yearly and sent to an accredited laboratory for tests. For the period
FY07/08 to FY10/11, the trade effluent discharge was in full compliance with the Environmental Protec-
tion and Management (Trade Effluent) Regulations (2005).



The BOD and COD tests measure the relative oxygen depletion effect of a waste contaminant. In FY10/11,
the BOD and COD tests of the treated effluent were less than 10mg/l and 40mg/l respectively. These are
well within the regulatory limits.

Other significant substances contained in the trade effluent include Total Suspended Solids (TSS), Total
Metals and Oil and Grease. These substances are also monitored periodically to ensure that they are in
compliance with regulatory limits.

Our trade effluent discharge into the open sea is constantly kept within the 30°C regulatory limit to ensure
that aquatic fauna and flora are not significantly affected by high temperatures.

Waste and Disposal
A considerable amount of waste is being generated at our power plant, This includes scrap metal, boiler
slag, waste oil and general waste. All ash and sludge produced from the plant operations are collected
and treated before it is sent to the landfill. All toxic wastes are treated in accordance with local regulations
before disposal.

In FY10/11, about 80,857 tonnes of waste were generated. As far as possible, waste materials are re-
cycled to produce by-products that can be used by other industries. This helps to minimise stress on
our country’s limited landfill space. For example, sulphur dioxide, a by-product from the fuel combustion
process, is captured to produce gypsum via a chemical process involving limestone. In FY10/11, gypsum
alone constituted about 93.1% of the total waste generated at the plant. The gypsum is not disposed
of as waste but rather sold to cement and plaster board companies for use in the construction industry.

Of the total waste generated, some find their way to the landfill (after going a process of incineration) in
Singapaore while others are treated (due to their hazardous nature) before it is shipped overseas under the
terms of the Basel Convention. In FY10/11, the percentage of transported waste shipped internationally
was 92.7%, a 5.4 percentage point increase over the previous year.

Please refer to EN22 indicator of GRI Content Index for detailed waste figures for period FY06/07 to
FY10/11.

M Industrial Waste (%) | Waste with Gypsum (Recyclable) (%) [ General Waste (%)

0.58%

0.50% 0.27% 0.29%

FYo7/08 FY08/09 FY09/10 FY10/11
Diagram 6.2 (i): Waste Mix: Proportion of recyclable waste in over the past 4 years
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Volume of Significant Oil Spills

In FYO7/08 to FY10/11, PowerSeraya had no recorded oil spills. A system involving the regular recording
of oil gpills started in 2007. Previously, oil spills were only recorded when an incident occurs. Neverthe-
less, we have an oil-spill response plan, and every year we participate in the annual oil spill exercise
organised by Oil Spill Response. This ensures that we are equipped to contain and minimise the environ-
mental damage caused by an oil spill.

Materials Used by Weight or Volume

Unlike other industries where a significant amount of direct materials® are being used to manufacture
products, PowerSeraya is in the business of producing electricity and steam to our customers. As such,
most of our raw materials are non-renewable** such as fuel oil and natural gas. For details on the quantity
of fuel oil and natural gas that is consumed by the company, please refer to 'EN3 — Fuel Consumption’
which is covered in the earlier part of this Section.

*Direct materials refer fo materials that are present in a final product,
** Non-renewable materials refer to resources that do not renew in short time periods, such as minerals, metals,

ail, gas, coal, efe.

Industrial Gases, Lubricants and Grease

Industrial gases as well as lubricants and grease are regular materials used by the company. Diagram
6.2.3() and 6.2.3() captures the quantities of these two materials used over the period FY07/08 to
FY10/11 from purchase orders. The top three industrial gases used in the company are nitrogen, oxygen
and acetylene. Nitrogen is commonly used for overhaul or restoration works for the power generating
units in the plant whereas oxygen and acetylene is used when hotworks are performed for certain main-
tenance activities. Lubricants are widely used in plant equipment with moving parts to effect working ef-
ficiency and reduce wear and tear.

Diagram 6.2 (j); Quantity of Industrial gases used by the company from FY06/07 to FY08/09

FY €02, N20, |Other Gases
LPG (kg) (m3)
FY 07/08 3,865 2,815
FY 08/09 4,735 17,967
FY 09/10 450 187,295
FY 10/11 7,237 24,642
Total

Note: 1% of the purchase orders for industrial gases cannot be accounted for as they are expressed in ‘cylinders’
{units of measurement) and are thus not captured in the diagram above.

FY C02, N20, |Other Gases
LPG (kg) (m3)
FY 07/08 3,865 2,815
FY 08/09 4,735 17,967
FY 09/10 450 187,295
FY 10/11 7,237 24,642
Total

Diagram 6.2 (k): Quantily of lubricants & grease used by the company from FY06/07 to FY08/09

Note: 3% of the purchase orders for lubricants & grease cannot be accounted for as they are expressed in
‘drums’ (units of measurement) and are thus not captured in the diagram above.
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Chemical Used

The company consumes significant amounts of chemicals for its power generation operations. Besides
limestone which is used in large quantities in the FGD process to remove SO2, the other top three com-
monly used chemicals by weight are sulphuric acid, anhydrous ammonia and sodium hydroxide. Sodium
hydroxide and sulphuric acid are used for resins generation at the water treatment plant as well as for
process pH adjustments of water at the wastewater treatment plant and desalination plant. Anhydrous
ammonia is used in the electrostatic precipitator (EP). It serves to neutralise the sulphur trioxide (SO3)
components in the flue gas, reduces corrosion of the downstream ductings of the EP and improves the
collection efficiency of the EP, thereby preventing excessive particulate matter being released to the at-
maosphere.

Limestone |Sulphuric Acid (98%) | Anhydrous Ammonia | Sodium Hydroxide (50%)
(in kg) 1(in kg) (in kg) (in kg)

FY 55,617,096 |1,357.955 1,347,690 1,347,690

09/10

{(Annual-

ised)

FY 43,205,680 |1,187,015 1,137,935 2,645,201

10/11

Diagram 6.2.3 {I): Quantity of limestone and top 3 commonly used chemicals in the company

Packaging Material Used
QOur products that we sell to our customers are utilities like electricity and steam which do not involve any
packaging material. As such, we are unable to report on information pertaining to packaging material as
it is irrelevant to the company.

Recycled Input Materials

It is still not a common practice for Singapore companies to ask suppliers to declare the amount of re-
cycled content in the materials that are supplied to them. Notwithstanding this common practice, Pow-
erSeraya has made incremental steps to impose sustainable criteria on our suppliers over the years. One
of the areas where we have succeeded include the supply of office paper from recognised sources such
as the Forest Stewardship Council where the wood used to produce paper is from FSC certified well-
managed forests, controlled sources and/or recycled material.

Looking into the near future, we will be working with a few equiprment suppliers in upcoming quotations or
tenders to propose products that meet sustainable criteria such as energy efficiency, ROHs compliance,
recycled content and product recyclability.




Vi * Environment

6.2.4 Compliance with Environmental
Laws and Regulations

PowerSeraya works closely with government agencies, in particular the National Environment Agency
(NEA), to ensure that we keep all air emissions, wastewater discharge, hazardous wastes and other en-
vironmental impacts within the regulations stipulated by the Singapore Government.

In the period FY07/08 to FY10/11, we had no record of any monetary fines as a result of non-compliance
with environmental law and/or regulations or any non-monetary sanctions.

The existing regulatory framework for Singapore for environmental protection consists of several regula-
tions and acts administered by the NEA for the following environmental aspects which are incorporated
as part of our ISO 14001 processes:

* Air Pollution Control, for emission of pollutants

» Water Pollution Control, for the discharge of trade effluent

= Marine Pollution Control, for spillages into the marine environment

* Noise Pollution Contral, for the control of environmental noise

« Waste Management, for the control of general and toxic industrial waste, recyclable material and
hazardous waste.

» Hazardous Substance Management, for the purchase, storage and use of hazardous substances

* Flarmmable Substance Management, for the storage of flammable gases and liquid petroleumn gas

* Explosive Precursors Management, for the storage and use of explosive substances

» Water Supply Regulation, for resource conservation
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6.2.5 Biodiversity

Unlike other countries with vast, rural areas of biodiversity value, Singapore is a small city-state on aland
mass of only 710.2km? with a population of close to 5 million residents and virtually no hinterland. As
such, Singapore finds itself in a challenging situation of having to strike a fine balance of planning residen-
tial areas for its growing population and commercial and industrial zones for economic activity while still
providing green, living spaces to sustain natural environments (e.g. catchment areas) as well as preserve
biodiversity for recreation purposes. It is with recognition of the country’s land scarcity challenges that the
Singapore government has consciously incorporated green spaces from the early days of urban planning
to fulfill the Garden City vision.

Till today, the Garden City vision still holds relevance despite the country’s aim to position itself as a global
and vibrant city that attracts human and financial capital. Having green spaces mitigates the harshness
of the concrete environment and contributes towards a more liveable city state that is able to provide
recreational places for its residents to enjoy, relax and be inspired. This has allowed Singapore to meet the
lifestyle and recreational needs of an increasingly sophisticated population, and enhanced Singapore's
attractiveness as a choice destination for foreign businesses and talents.

Prudent planning over the years has enabled Singapore to increase its green cover by 10.8% over the
1986 to 2007 period, despite having a population growth of 68% in the same period. Currently, close to
10% of the total land area is set aside for parks and nature reserves. Singapore today has four nature
reserves and two national parks that is protected by legislation, namely the Parks and Trees Act 2005.
Besides these, there are also 22 nature areas that are covered under the Special and Detailed Controls
Plan which is administered by the Urban Redevelopment Authority. This is established under the authority
of the Planning Act. All the above areas are rich in biodiversity.

Under the context of PowerSeraya and its subsidiaries, its power generating assets sits on land that is on
a long-term lease from JTC Corporation, the industrial landlord of the country that is owned by the state.
Mone of the land that is occupied by PowerSeraya is protected by law for biodiversity nor is it adjacent
to any protected areas or any of the 22 nature areas mentioned above. With PowerSeraya's CSR focus
on energy and water, it is not the company's priority to be engaged in biodiversity related initiatives at the
present moment. Notwithstanding this, PowerSeraya does from time to time make ad-hoc contributions
towards promoting bicdiversity such as the recent $10,000 sponsorship to the Singapore Garden Festival
in 2010.
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6.2.6 Achieving Sustainability Through
Plant Improvements

In efforts to enhance the efficiency and effectiveness of the power plant operations, the company has em-
barked on a series of plant improvement projects that has not only reaped cost savings but also resulted
in increased worker productivity, better worklife balance/ arrangements and benefits to the environment.

Keeping Plant Machinery in Good Working Condition Through Condition Monitoring
Condition Monitoring (CM) involves the frequent or continuous monitoring of specific machine operating
parameters to provide an analytical assessment of a machine condition. It reflects the equipment condi-
tion at a specific point in time and helps detect whether a machine component is developing component
failure.

Since the implementation of a condition-based maintenance strategy in July 2009, selected plant equip-
ment lists were drawn from the generating units and their auxiliary plants and placed under a condition
monitoring (CM) programme. Through condition monitoring, production loss is minimised and secondary
damage incurred through untimely failure of key machines and equipment is avoided. This ensures high
availability and reliability of power generating units while lowering the operation and maintenance cost.
With condition monitoring, plant machinery also stand a better chance of operating more efficiently. This
results in less emissions and less resources consumed per unit of production , thus causing less harm to
the environment.

Condition Monitoring utilises techniques such as Vibration Analysis, Equipment Ol Analysis, Transformer
Qil Analysis, Infrared Thermography and Ulirasonics to deliver the following benefits:

a) Vibration analysis of Rotating Machines (RM):
* Allows remedial actions to be taken to prevent further damages.
» Eliminates contract works for preventive maintenance of pumps and motors overhaul.
¢ Close monitoring and trending of RM with issues facilitates trouble-shooting and maintenance
planning.

b) Equipment Oil Analysis:
» Qil analysis results used to track any degradation in oil and/or wear condition of monitored
machinery.
= Ensures machinery reliability and availability.

c) Transformer Oil Analysis:
* Seven fault gases and others like Oxygen, Nitrogen, water content and breakdown voltage are
monitored regularly to ensure that any deteriorating condition is attended to.

d) Infrared Thermography:
* Primarily employed to monitor the condition of expansion joints along boiler gas and air paths,
to prevent untimely leakages and facilitates maintenance planning.
¢ Also used on selected electrical equiprment to monitor any abnormal gradients.

e) Ultrasonics:
* Primarily employed to regularly assess the condition of listed steam traps to facilitate
maintenance planning and manage enargy losses.
* Beduction in steam trap failure rates and energy losses.

Energy-Efficient Hi-Bay Lights Results in Higher Light Output and Energy Savings

The company has taken several simple but progressive initiatives to improve the environmental footprint
of the plant through retrofitting of lights to energy saving ones. One project is a pilot initiative in March
2010 to retrofit 12 Hi-Bay lights (with 440W each) with new ones that are more energy efficient (150W).



The energy-efficient Hi-Bay lights use a new prism lens technology to achieve a slightly higher brightness
level with lower energy consumption. The result after the retrofit was an impressive 62.5% energy savings
with a light output that is up to 20% brighter than before.

The second energy saving project involved the cafeteria at the plant where all existing lights with a total
wattage of 7.5kW were changed to energy saving lights. The project involved the replacement of 180
pieces of filament bulbs, fluorescent tubes and spot lights into energy saving ones which resulted in 50%
energy savings.

The third and last project which was fully completed in September 2011 involved retrofitting and replac-
ing traditional fluorescent lights to LED lighting in the Central Control Rooms (CCR) of the steam and gas
plants. The 75% energy savings and longer lamp life attributes of the LED (versus the traditional fluores-
cent lights) will help to reduce energy consumption tremendously at the CCR that runs on a 24/7 opera-
tion, thus resulting in lower energy costs as well as a lower carbon footprint.
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6.3 Engaging Staff and the Community in Environmental Sustainability

6.3.1 Introduction

FPowerSeraya takes a holistic approach towards environmental sustainability beyond its power plant op-
erations to involve our employees in the workplace at its headquarters at HarbourFront Tower One. We
monitor our office resource consumption on a monthly basis and this section covers our energy, paper
and water consurmnption figures as well as our initiative to green our IT infrastructure. All figures in this sec-
tion are on a calendar-year basis.
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6.3.2 Achieving Office Resource Efficiency

On a whole, the 2010 office resource consumption performed reasonably well. All areas (energy, paper
and water) fulfilled their targets. Diagram 6.3 (a) below summarises how the company fared in our office
resource use in 2010,

The following sections detail the office resource consumption figures at the corporate headquarters un-
less otherwise mentioned.

Energy Consumption

The 2010 annual energy consumption per employee (excluding data centrg) saw a 10.1% decrease over
the previous year. Compared against the benchmark, National Energy Efficiency Index for office build-
ings of 215 Kwh/sgm/per annum, our office energy consumption {including the data centre) is within this
benchmark figure by 12.9%.

Resource 2010 Actual 2010 Within
Item Performance Target Target
Energy 2183 Kwh / head 2429 Kwh / head Yes
190.5 Kwh/sgm/pa < 215 Kwh/sgm/pa Yes
Paper 6.0 reams / head 6.6 reams / head Yes
Water 0.69 units/head 0.70 units / head Yes

Diagram 6.3 (a): 2010 Resource Consumption Figures

Annual Energy Consumption (KWh/head) excluding data center
B Target Energy Consumption (KWh/head) excluding data center
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Diagram 6.3 (b): The 2010 Office Energy Consumption
per employee per annum (excluding data centre)
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Diagram 6.3 (c): Office Energy Consumption per sqm per employee per annum

Indirect CO, Emissions from Office

In 2010, the indirect carbon dioxide (CO,) emissions (as per Scope 2 of GHG Gas Protocol) from the office
energy consumption at our corporate headquarters saw a total of 202.4 tons of CO, emissions. This is
a 9.2% drop over the previous year due to a decrease in office energy usage and a lower electricity grid
emission factor value.

(Note: The 2008 and 2009 CO, emissions is based on the 2008 Electricity Grid Emissions Factor (Simple Oper-
ating Margin) from the National Environment Agency, Singapore, while the 2010 CO, emissions is based on the
2009 Elsctricity Grid Emissions Factar (Simple Operating Margin)).

230.0
210.0 7
1700 ————
CY 2008 CY 2008 CY 2010
Diagram 6.3 (d) : Annual CO2 emissions from Energy Use at Corporate HQ
Water Consumption

Water consumption per employee saw a 5.5% decrease in 2010 over the previous year. The fitting of a
water saving device at the 16th floor pantry water faucet, coupled with regular education sessions with
the tea ladies on prudent water use, were some of the water conservation measures that helped to keep
water consumption in check,
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Diagram 6.3 (e); Annual water consumption
per employee at corporate headguarters

Paper Consumption

Paper consumption per employee for the entire company saw a significant decrease of 9.1% in 2010
compared to the previous year. The monthly paper tracking system which was established, coupled with
the enforcement of paper quota by departments, contributed greatly to the reduction in paper usage.

Actual W Target
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Diagram 6.3 (f): Annual paper consumplion
per employee for enfire company
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6.3.3 Greening Our IT Infrastructure

We have continued our efforts in greening our IT infrastructure by deploying virtualisation technology
ACcross many more servers in our data centre. The virtualisation technology has enabled multiple operating
systems to run concurrently on a single server instead of multiple servers. This saves electricity by running
fewer physical servers. It also means lower cooling requirements and a reduction in office rental space. As
of 30 June 2011, we have 153 virtual servers that are running on just 11 physical servers. This translates
to annual energy consumption savings of close to 85% and an avoidance of approximately 110 tons of
carbon emissions per annum.

Assumptions: The difference in the system utilisation of the physical servers (i.e. without virtualisation technol-
agy assumed at 7%) and the VM servers (i.e. servers using virtualisation technology, assumed at 60%) is used
fo work out the energy savings. The power usage of the physical server (i.e. without vidualisation) is assumed
at 378 watts whereas the power usage of the VM servers (i.e. with virtualisation) is assumed to be 560 walls.
An assumption was made that the server base load utilisation is 50%, with the remaining 50% utilisation having
a linear relationship to the system utilisation. The carbon dioxide emissions avoided is calculated based on the
energy savings from the adoplion of vidualisation technology. The 2003 Electricity Grid Emission Factor (based
on Simple Operating Margin), which is publicly available on the National Environment Agency web-site, is used
fo calculate the carbon dioxide emissions.
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6.3.4 Engaging Staff and the Community on Environmental Initiatives

As part of efforts to inculcate a staff culture where people think about and act on sustainability, the com-
pany organises regular activities where we encourage our staff to do their part for the environment. The
company places importance in internalising environmental-friendly practices among the staff so they too
can become advocates of the environment to the community they interact with.

Energy Savers Contest

The Energy Savers Contest is an annual contest created since 2010 to get staff to conserve energy in
their own homes and win prizes. Under this contest, staff can also claim up to $150 per household to
implement energy saving fittings in their homes. In efforts to engage staff in corporate community pro-
grammes, contest winners will have the unique priviledge of representing the company as Energy Ambas-
sadors where they will help households save energy under the company’s Responsible Energy Advocates
FProgramme (REAF).

Green Office Survey

In late April 2010, a green office survey was conducted among staff at the corporate headquarters to
identify areas for improvement. The green survey atiracted a response rate of 55% which saw participa-
tion across all departments at the corporate HQ. The survey findings revealed that staff's awareness of
office environmental practices was 68%, with staff adopting green habits comprising 71%.

Through the green survey, the green team was able to identify areas where awareness of office environ-
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mental practices among staff was low, and areas where staff could be greener. This assisted the green
team to develop specific green initiatives which helped the company garner the Eco Office Label in early
2011, The Eco Office Label, awarded by the Singapore Environment Council, is given to companies that
demonstrate good environmental practices in the office setting. This makes PowerSeraya the country’s
first Power Company to achieve this award — among 73 companies in Singapore that have received it to
date.

Involving Staff on Earth Hour

Participating in Earth Hour has been an annual affair for PowerSeraya since 2008 to reinforce the mes-
sage of energy conservation to staff. Every year, staff would observe Earth Hour by switching off lights in
the office for an hour on the working day before the actual Earth Hour event which typically falls on the
last Saturday of March.

In 2011, Earth Hour was extended beyond the workplace to include children of our employees through a
drawing contest. Staff's children were invited to submit drawings depicting an environmental theme. The
entries were posted online and put through a staff voting process to determine the winner.

Tour of Eco-Friendly Temple
A total of 26 staff visited Poh Ern Shih (Temple of Thanksgiving) on 26 July 11 during their lunch hour.
Possibly the first temple in Singapore to have gone virtually carbon neutral, the temple is able to meet
all its energy needs from the adoption of renewable energy technologies. Staffs were given a tour of the
temple's rainwater harvesting cum hydro system, the grid-tied solar roof system and sola water heaters
as well as two mini wind turbines.

The tour of the eco-friendly termple is aimed at educating staff about the potential of renewable energy
adoption in Singapore. For the more discerning staff, the tour was also a good opportunity to learn from
the experience of others and also to validate against what they already know about solar and wind energy
technology adoption in Singapore,

Going Green During Festivities
During the festive months of Christmas 2010 and Chinese New Year 2011, two environmental initiatives
were organised to educate staff on how to think and go green during the festive period.

Held during the Christmas 2010 season at the corporate headquarters, the Best Christmas Décor con-
test was aimed at encouraging staff to think of creative ways to decorate their own workspaces to the fes-
tive theme using recycled materials. The contest attracted entries from staff across different departments



with their works displayed during the company's Christmas Eve tea party as décor pieces.

The other green initiative included ‘Spring Clean - The Greener Way' workshop held prior to the Chi-
nese New Year season in January 2011. The workshop brought to staff's awareness about the toxic
substances that were present in common detergents used in homes and introduced them to Singapore
Green Label products which contained less harmful ingredients. The workshop ended with a DIY session
where staff had a hand in making natural cleaning agents from lemons, vinegar and baking soda which
they could consider for their home spring-cleaning leading up to Chinese New Year.
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6.3.5 Engaging and Supporting Communities
on Environmental Sustainability

Responsible Energy Advocates Programme

Since the Responsible Energy Advocates Programme (REAP) started in 2010, the programme has
benefited close to 45 tertiary students and 70 households. Specially developed in partnership with

the National Environment Agency of Singapore and the South West Community Development Coun-
cil, REAP is a first-of-its-kind sustainability programme that holistically integrates the components of
Education, Community Service and Project to benefit not only students but also residents. It develops
tertiary students to be energy advocates — so they can raise awareness on energy conservation, imple-
ment energy solutions for households and engage in project work for the benefit of the wider commu-
nity.

The outcome of the programme has been encouraging. Of the households surveyed, 88% either
agreed or strongly agreed that they were satisfied with the energy monitoring programme. The pro-
gramme also rated highly among the first batch of students with 805 of them (agree or strongly agree)
that they felt a sense of overall achievement and satisfaction with REAR.
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1 Degree Up Challenge

For four years in a row, PowerSeraya and joint partner Mapletree organised the 1 Degree Up Challenge.
The event, which is held in conjunction with the World Environment Day, garnered good support from
the tenants at Harbourfront Tower One and Two. About 85% either raised their temperature by 1°C or
renewed their commitment to the cause by maintaining their office temperature at the ideal, energy-
conserving temperature of 25°C.

A mini game cum exhibition was also organised at the lobby of HarbourFront Tower One to raise aware-
ness to office workers about energy conservation through the simple act of raising their office as well as
household air-con temperature setting by 1°C.

Involving Customers and the Community on Earth Hour

In efforts to raise awareness and action on energy conservation among customers, Seraya Energy, a
subsidiary of PowerSeraya, organised an online contest in March 2011 in celebration of Earth Hour. The
contest saw a keen participation of 71 customers over a short period of four days.

In addition, customers were also encouraged to join PowerSeraya in observing Earth Hour by switching
off their lights in their office on the Friday before the actual Earth Hour initiative (which falls on the last
Saturday of March every year). To this, about 65% of the customers responded positively by voluntarily
pledging to observe Earth Hour either on behalf of their company or in their work areas.

In another Earth Hour-related event, 10 staff volunteers accompanied 15 individuals from GROW®
(Goodwill Rehabilitation & Occupational Workshop) to celebrate our parent company YTLs very first
Earth Hour event in Singapore on 26 March 2011. The evening started with a dinner where staff took
the opportunity to mingle with individuals from GROW before heading to retail mall Wisma Atria Singa-
pore for the Earth Hour Countdown celebrations. During the event, both staff and GROW individuals
lighted tealights to pledge their support for Earth Hour.
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* GROW is one of the charitable programmes under the management of the Spastics Children's Association
of Singapore. GROW s PowerSeraya's recently adopted charitable programme in aid of individuals suffering
from cerebral pafsy. Click on Social section to find out more about GROW and PowerSeraya's sustainability

inifiatives on the social front.

International Coastal Cleanup

For the fourth time in a row, PowerSeraya partnered with Singapore Polytechnic Environmental Club
to participate in the International Coastal Cleanup (ICC), an international volunteer effort for the ocean
which typically falls on the third week of September every year.

The ICC 2011 event saw a total of 22 staff from PowerSeraya and students from the Singapore Poly-
technic Environmental Club clean up a 200 metre stretch of beach on one of Singapore’s offshore is-
land Pulau Ubin. A total of 114 kilograms of trash was collected. Every item collected along the beach
was recorded on a data card before being disposed.

Each year, the data collated is sent to the Raffles Museum of Biodiversity Research, the local coordi-
nating agency for the ICC effort in Singapore. The data for Singapore is subsequently compiled and
submitted to The Ocean Conservancy who ultimately produces a report for the United Nations Environ-
ment Programme.
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NEA-Mediacorp Semakau Run

Since 2007, PowerSeraya has been participating in the Semakau Run. This is an annual fund-raising
run organised by the National Environment Agency of Singapore in support of the various works and
causes championed by environmental and social NGOs.

In 2011, five staff participated in the run held at our country’s only landfill island, Pulau Semakau, The
event not only presented an opportunity for our staff to do something meaningful but also educated
staff about the importance of recycling in the context of Singapore’s waste situation. PowerSeraya has
donated a sum of S$90,000 to the Semakau Run since 2007.
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Clean & Green Singapore

The Clean & Green Singapore (CGS) is the largest annual environmental event in Singapore organised
by the National Environment Agency of Singapore. Aimed at raising environmental awareness to the
general public, this event is held at the heartlands of Singapore and graced by the country's Prime Min-
ister.

PowerSeraya has been a strong supporter of the CGS event and has donated a total of $65,000 from
2008 to 2011. One of the fringe events of the CGS is the School's Carnival where all schools in Sin-
gapore are invited to exhibit their environmental projects and initiatives. Every year since 2009, Pow-
erSeraya has sponsored a booth for its adopted school, Greenridge Secondary School, to display its
students’ environmental work.

Energy Learning Hub (ELH)

The ELH which was officially launched in August 2008 by Dr. Teo Hopin, Mayor of NW District aand MP
for Bukit Panjang Constituency. It has since drawn close to 2,100 visitors comprising students, teach-
ers, parents and even foreign delegates. Built at an estimated cost of S$170,000 at Greenridge Sec-
ondary School, the ELH is a resource centre that focuses on energy and energy-related issues in Singa-
pore. It brings students through a learning journey on energy sources, the impact of energy production
on the environment and the importance of sustainability and energy conservation.

The Hub is an investment made by PowerSeraya with the aim of promoting environmental awareness
and energy conservation to 11 schools in the cluster and neighbouring Zhenghua community, where
Greenridge is located.
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7.1 Workplace Safety and Health

7.1.1 Introduction

The company has a Quality, Health, Safety and Environmental (QHSE) Policy which outlines our commit-
ment to safety and health, The OHSAS 18001 safety management system which has been established
since 2007 ensures that safety and health hazards are identified and corresponding measures/proce-
dures put in place to mitigate these risks. Safety procedures are reviewed annually by the Health Safety
and Environment Committee (comprising 27 staff members making up an estimated 9% of total full-time
employees at the power plant). This helps the company to keep in tandem with any new hazards that
may arise with operational changes. The Workplace Safety and Health Act is the local regulation that has
particular influence on the compliance measures in OHSAS 18001 safety management system.

Safety is an issue that involves not only our staff but also the contractors with whom the company works
closely with to achieve a 'Zero Accident’ incident rate. Throughout the year, the company drives many
initiatives to keep safety awareness high and this is reflected in the good safety record achieved to date.
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7.1.2 Our Safety Performance

Work-Related Fatalities and Accident-Free Man-Hours

As of June 2011, the total staff man-hours worked without accident® is about 2 million man-hours. For
contractors, this figure is 3 million man-hours. There are also no work-related fatalities for the past five
years (FYOB/07 to FY 10/11) for staff as well as contractors.

“An accident refers to any accident that results in more than 3 days of medical leave as per Ministry of Manpower
("MOM"}'s definition of a reportable accident.

5-Year Period (FY06/07 to FY10/11) Work-Related Fatalities (Staff & Contractors) 0.0

Staff Contractors
Accident-Free Man-Hours (as of June 2011) 2 024,603 3013159

Diagram 7.1 (a): Zero Work-Related Fatality Record for Past 5 Years
and Accident-Free Man-hour Figures for Staff and Contractors

Rate of Injury and Rate of Loss
The staff rate of injury (measured by AFR#) and rate of loss (measured by ASRAM) days are well under the
national average" for the past five years except for FY0B/07.

Besides staff safety, the company also takes an active role in managing contractor safety. Over the past
five years (FYOB/07 to FY 10/11), the contractors maintained a good safety record with average severity
rate (ASR) and average frequency rate (AFR) that is within the national average, The only exception is the
contractor AFR in FYQ7/08.

Details of the staff and contractors AFR and ASR can be found in Chart 7.1 (b) and 7.1 (c) below.

MAFR is the number of accidents per million man-hours worked,
M ASR is number of man-days lost per milfion man hours worked.

*The national average figures were taken from the Workplace Safety and Health Indicators (Manufacturing Sec-
tor, excluding Marine) released by the Ministry of Manpower, Singapore and they are expressed on a calendar
year basis versus the company’s safety figures which are on a financial year basis.
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Charts 7.1 (b) 5-Year Rate of Injury (AFR) for PowerSeraya Staff
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Charts 7.1 {c): 5-Year Rate of Loss (ASR) for FowerSeraya Staff
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7.1.3 Workplace Safety Programmes

Safety Handbook

The safety and health policies and regulations of the company are communicated through handbooks
which are made available to every employee and contractor involved in the plant operations. We believe
that it is everyone's respongibility to take ownership of their own safety as well ag the safety of those
working in the surrounding areas.

During the Safety Week 2011 Launch Ceremony held on 1 August, a new safety handbook for staff and
contractors was launched. The new safety handbook provides comprehensive coverage of both per-
sonal and process safety, including basic safety rules and regulations, emergency response procedures,
chemical safety handling procedures and specific process safety procedures.

Annual Safety Week

Every year, the company organises an Annual Safety Week to reinforce the importance of safety at the
power plant. The Safety Week kicks-off with a launch ceremony where staffs are given certificates of
appreciation for the safety programmes that they have implemented in their respective work areas. The
preceding year's safety performance is shared with both staff as well as contractors. A week-long line
up of safety initiatives follows after the launch ceremony. In 2011, the safety campaign places greater
emphasis on process safety with the theme "Personal & Process Safety = Zero Accident”.

Regular Safety Programmes

Besides safety week, regular safety programmes are organised throughout the year to educate staff and
contractors on the importance of safety in their daily operations. New staff and contractors are required
to attend a safety orientation training programme before they commence work at the power plant. Safety
training is also included as part of the PowerSeraya's overall training plan. Staff attend courses that
include first aid training, safety for lifting supervisors and the confined space safety assessors training
conducted at MOM (Ministry of Manpower)'s accredited safety training centre.
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The Utilities Group conducts a bi-monthly Safety Drive, a series of safety programmes mapped out by
each department. Some of the programmes conducted in FY10/11 cover the following themes:

* Electrical Safety at Work

* Safe Use of Lifting Appliances and Vehicles

* Enhance Process Safety

» Partnership with In-House Contractors on Occupational Health & Safety

Emergency Evacuation Drill

Every year a large-scale emergency evacuation drill is organised in the power plant. Through this annual
drill exercise, both staff and contractors can better appreciate their respective roles and responsibilities
in an emergency evacuation situation. The company will also involve the Singapore Civil Defence Force
(SCDF) in the drill to familiarise and test out each other’s emergency response procedures and response
timings. The recent fire Evacuation Drill which was held on 16 December 2010 saw a total of 406 person-
nel (126 staff, 280 contractors) evacuated in 28 minutes.
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7.1.4 Safety Culture Survey

Every year a safety culture survey is conducted to assess the effectiveness of our safety programmes
and to gather feedback on our safety management practices. The safety culture survey covers a wide
spectrum of safety topics. They include the effectiveness of the overall management of plant safety, the
ownership that staff team and staff supervisors have on safety matters, the communication aspects of
safety, the extent to which safety programmes have enhanced safety awareness and the management
of near-miss incidents.

In 2011, the safety culture survey saw a participation of 245 staff. The survey findings revealed that
89% of staff either agreed or strongly agreed that PowerSeraya is implementing an effective safety man-
agement system. The survey ratings are based on a rating scale ranging from 5 (Strongly Agree) to 1
(Strongly Disagree). Compared to the previous year, the 2011 safety ratings by our staff saw a marginal
1% drop which is a slight deviation from the Heaith Safety and Environment (HSE) Commitiee target of
achieving zero 'neutral’ position (i.e. 2011 to maintain at same levels as 2010)

M 2009 W 2010 201

60

107 1 12

03 0.0 0.0 00 00 00

FYO0B/07 FYO7/08 FY08/09 FYD9/10 FY10/M11
Diagrams 7.1 (d): The 2011 Safety Survey Ratings by Staff
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7.1.5 Occupational Health

Workplace Noise Hazards

Noise arising from the operations of the power plant is one of the occupational health risks often taken
for granted but is one that is not taken lightly in the company. To mitigate staff risk exposure to unac-
ceptable noise levels, the company has a Hearing Conservation Programme (HCP) that has been man-
aged by the HSE department since 2007. Under the HCP, all staffs that operate in noisy environments
at the power plant (excluding staff in office desk-bound job roles) are required to undergo an annual
audiometric examination for early detection of hearing impairment. Besides regular monitoring of noise
levels, noise hazards are also identified and corresponding noise control measures are implemented at
high risk areas. Signs are posted at work areas and machines with excessive noise to warn staff of the
potential noise hazards, highlighting the need to don hearing protectors in these areas. To reinforce the
importance of wearing hearing protectors, noise education talks are held on a monthly basis to maintain
a high level of awareness about the noise hazards and safety measures that staff should take to protect
themselves.

Risks of Communicable Diseases to Workforce Stability

Protecting the workforce from the risks posed by the pandemic flu (e.g. HIN1 flu virus) is one of the
enterprise risks being identified by the company. The speed and reach in which communicable diseases
such as SARS and H1N1 have spread around the world in previous years has shown us the vulner-
ability that corporations can be subjected to when such diseases reach pandemic proportions. This is
especially so for power generating companies like PowerSeraya which provides an essential service of
supplying reliable electricity to fuel the country’s needs on a round-the-clock basis. As such, the com-
pany has business continuity plans in place to minimise the spread of pandemic flu at the workplace.
Temperature-taking procedures, minimising contact between incoming/outgoing working shifts, quaran-
tine/isolation procedures and social distancing considerations are some of the measures that have been
incorporated in the business continuity plans.

During the last outbreak of the H1N1 pandemic flu virus in 2009, the business continuity plans were
activated and implemented in alignment with the country’s alert level issued by the Ministry of Health,
Singapore. Temperature-taking procedures were implemented at all entry points of the organisation and
measures were established to limit the staff's overseas travel to flu-infected advisories. Staffs were also
educated on the importance of being socially responsible and to observe personal hygiene. A list of pan-
demic flu clinics around the workplace was also identified and communicated to all staff to ensure that
they knew where to receive the nearest treatment if required.
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7.2 Nurturing Human Capital

7.2.1 Training and Development

Nurturing and retaining talent is important to PowerSeraya. We believe in investing in our staff through
training and development of our employees to achieve productivity growth, create value for the organisa-
tion and to provide fulfilling careers for our employees.

In our company, we provide a diverse range of training opportunities for our employees. These include
seminars, workshops and conferences, in-company fraining programmes, on-the-job training, practical
attachments and courses that lead to an academic qualification or professional certification. Our train-
ing programmes cater to employees at various stages of their career. For new employees, induction
programmes are conducted to help them better understand the company and facilitate their transition
to a new company and role. For existing employees, an Annual Training Needs Analysis and Planning
process is carried out to identify, plan and execute a training and development roadmap that seeks to
close the competencies and performance gaps of employees. Performing employees are given oppor-
tunities to apply for company sponsorship for part-time academic or professional qualifications that are
directly linked to their job scope. Since 2003 to 2011, the company has sponsored 32 employees to
upgrade their skills and expand their knowledge base. Of these, 27 are taking degree courses or masters
programmes.

All employees receive regular performance and career development reviews where their performance is
appraised by their supervisors against set targets. Training and development needs are discussed dur-
ing the performance appraisal process to determine the training needs of the employee for the following
year, For employees nearing retirement age, a new programme called READY (Re-employment: Equip-
ping And Developing Yourself) was initiated in 2011 to help these employees assess whether they should
consider re-employment or retirement.

In FY10/11, we invested about S$719,265 in training, a significant 25% increase over the previous year.
Similarly, the average training hours received per employee increased from 20.03 in FY09/10 to 22.6 in
FY10/11. The rise in training expenditure was attributed to an increase in demand for employees who
needed to acquire new technical skills to keep up with new power generation techneologies. A consider-
able amount of training was also allocated to develop a leadership culture that fosters employee engage-
ment across all levels of the organisation to increase operational excellence and employee retention.
PowerSeraya's FY10/11 training expenditure per employee is higher than the National Average of 5872
per employee (Source: Ministry of Manpower, Singapore 2010 report). In fact, this has been the case in
previous years. The training expenditure as a percentage of remuneration in the last three years (FY08/09
to FY10/11) stood in the 1.75% to 2.3% range.

$2.000 $1,802
' $1,696
$1,500 o $1.401
$1,284
$1,000 i SRR — SR ' -
— = = = = = 2010 National Average Training Per Employee Spend - $§842 = = = — — —
$500
$0

FYo7/08 FYo08/09 FY09/10 FY10/11
Diagram 7.2 (a): Training Expenditure per Employee for the Past 4 Years
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7.2.2 Promoting Work-Life Balance and a Healthy Lifestyle

The company places great emphasis in nurturing our human capital. This includes not only training but
also creating the conditions for our employees to achieve work-life balance either through our workplace
policies or recreational activities that promote family life.

PowerSeraya believes in having a healthy work-life balance as part of the strategy to keep staff produc-
tive, motivated and highly engaged. We achieve this through pro-family policies and practices, as well
as the workplace health and family life initiatives organised by Vibrancy@Seraya Committes, a group
of employee volunteers. As a testament to the company’s commitment to promoting work-life integra-
tion in the workplace and in creating a conducive environment to bring out the best in our employees,
PowerSeraya was awarded the WorkLife Achiever Award 2010 by the Tripartite Committee on Work-Life
Strategy (TriCom).

Pro-family practices

Over the years, PowerSeraya has developed pro-family policies to cater to the demands of working
parents who juggle work and family commitments. Under the flexible start-time which was introduced in
2010, office-based non-shift employees (comprising 36% of total workforce) could choose to start work
earlier or later than the official start time to suit their various commitments. To cater to working mothers
with babies, a room was also specially created to offer convenience to lactating mothers. Since 2010,
the company has also encouraged non-shift employees (which comprise about 70% of the total work-
force) to spend time with their families by granting them early release on ‘Eat With Your Family Day’ — an
initiative spearheaded by the Centre of Fathering since 2003 where companies are encouraged to let
their staff leave early to have dinner with their families.

To encourage staff to adopt a healthy family life, the Vibrancy@Seraya Committee organises various
recreational activities for employees and their family members. We also have a Flexible Benefits Plan
which gives employees a fixed sum per year to cover dental expenses, holiday expenses and children’s
education. The company also holds corporate memberships to the Singapore Zoological Gardens and
the Singapore Science Centre so our staff can have family outings to these popular attractions.

Other pro-family practices, which are compliance-driven, include the extended maternity and childcare
leave. In addition, the company also provides childcare sick leave for female employees and paternity
leave for male employees which are over and above what is stipulated in the Singapore Employment Act.

Days per female employee | Days per male employee
06/07 56.7 3
07/08 72 2.9
08/09 96.4 3.3
09/10 90.2 3.0
10/11 81.5 3.0

Diagram 7.2 (b): Matemity and Patemnily Leave
from FY06/07 to FY10/11
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Fy |Average Childcare Leave |Average Childcare Sick Leave
| Days per employee Days per female employee
06/07 2.1 3.7
07/08 21 3.3
08/09 3.8 2.3
09/10 6.2 3.9
10/11 57 3.7

Diagram 7.2 (c) Childcare leave and Childcare Sick Leave
statistics from FY06/07 to FY10/11

Integrated System for Water Treatment Plants (WTPs) and Desalination Plant Results in
Enhanced Worker Productivity and Better Worklife Balance

In FY10/11, PowerSeraya set up a Productivity Taskforce to look into areas where the organisation could
be more efficient and effective . Below is an example of how people productivity was increased and
worklife balance achieved.

PowerSeraya's power plant has four water treatment plants (WTPs) and one Desalination plant that are
a distance of about 1km apart. Data monitoring and operational control of the four WTPs and desal
plant was done separately. Plant operators had to move around to carry out operations physically in the
respective plants without real-time visibility of the status of other plants. This affected the reliability and
availability of these plants.

In Nav 2010, a project was initiated to put in place a system that would allow the operational information
and status of the five plants to be dispatched and accessed by the plant operators at any of the plant’s
control room. With the project fully implemented in June 2011, the productivity level has increased with
the efficient utilization of manpower. The number of plant inspections were reduced to at least once per
shift as the operator could now monitor the status of two plants from one location. With fewer plant op-
erators required than before, the company could realise potential manpower savings of about $240,000
per annum and even cut down on overtime costs. With the integrated system, the plant operators get to
have a better worklife balance with the reduced amount of overtime work and also enjoy better working
arrangements as they no longer require to move between the five plants unnecessarily. It also meant that
the individual work load of the operators could be optimized. For example, one operator could carry out
more complex routing plant assignments and thus elevate one'’s job exposure. Lastly, the plant opera-
tional safety and reliability has been greatly enhanced as the operators can now respond to any plant
trips/abnormalities immediately when an alarm is triggered by the integrated systemn at any of the five
plant locations.

Providing for Healthcare Needs and Promoting a Healthy Lifestyle

PowerSeraya provides benefits for staff healthcare and opportunities to encourage employees to stay
healthy. Besides having their medical expenses substantially paid for by the company, employees can
also make use of the Flexible Benefits Plan to pay for medical insurance.

To promote a healthy lifestyle, we organise sports and healthy-related activities. Tournaments or weekly
practices for various sports such as badminton, bowling, pool and sepak takraw are organised yearly.
We also sponsor employees to participate in events like the JP Morgan Corporate Chase Challenge and
the annual Jurong Island Dragon Boat Race. They are also encouraged to join an annual health screen-
ing exercise at subsidised rates so they can take a personal interest in their own well-being.



7.2.3 Labour Practices and Basic Human Rights

With a strong company focus on nurturing human capital, basic human rights becomes an issue that
cannot be ignored as it has an impact on the working conditions and labour practices of the organisa-
tion. As a company based in Singapore with no overseas operations outside the country, PowerSeraya
naturally aligns its labour practices to be consistent with the Singapore government's stance on human
rights.

Singapore is an active member of the ILO (International Labour Organisation) and fully supports the ILO's
framework and priority agenda for decent work, and upholds both in spirit and practices the fundamental
principles of the core labour standards.

To date, Singapore has ratified 24 ILO conventions, including five of the eight conventions which are
grouped under four fundamental principles and rights at work, namely:

* Freedom of Association and Right to Collective Bargaining

= Convention 98 - Right to Organise and Collective Bargaining (please refer to Section 4.3 :
Stakeholder Engagement to understand how this principle of human rights is being practised
in the organisation)

» Elimination of all forms of forced or compulsory labour

* Convention 29 - Forced Labour

» Effective abolition of child labour

» Convention 138 - Minimum Age

* Convention 182 - Worst Forms of Child Labour

+ Elimination of discrimination in respect to employment and occupation

» Convention 100 - Equal Remuneration (this is covered in detail at a later part of this section)

The abovementioned ILO conventions are translated and incorporated locally into The Singapore Em-
ployment Act, which governs the labour practices of all companies operating in Singapore. PowerSeraya
complies fully with the Singapore Employment Act and as such its operations do not encounter any risks
for incidents of child labour, forced/ compulsory labour.,

Human Rights in Investment Agreements and in our Supplier Chain

PowerSeraya does not operate within nor are partners in ventures or regions where the protection of
human rights is of significant concern, As such, our active investments, which are mainly local if not all,
are not subject to any human rights criteria in screening.

Similarly, PowerSeraya does not have overseas operations that employ workers in countries where hu-
man rights are of significant concern. Neither do we outsource any work to human rights sensitive coun-
tries. Despite little risk exposure to the company on human rights abuse, we require all our suppliers to
adhere to Singapore regulations on labour practices (in particular the Singapore Employment Act where
the ILO conventions described in the earlier Section have been incorporated). Additionally, our contract
documents include clauses that:

1) Require suppliers to adhere to certain fair wage practices,

2) Allow freedom for supplier's workers to be members of trade unions

3) Require suppliers to adhere to local laws/regulations pertaining to the :

a) Employment of legal foreign workers in works performed for the company;

b) Employment of minors (below the age of 14 years) in works performed for the company.

4) Gives the company the right to terminate the service(s) of the supplier/contractor that have violated
any of the human rights clauses contained in the contract document.

In total, PowerSeraya has 12 suppliers/contractors which together constitute 80% of the company's
purchases” by order value (i.e. these are deemed as 'significant suppliers and contractors). All of these
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12 significant suppliers/contractors are subject to human rights criteria in the contract documents with
PowerSeraya. Although there is no formal process to screen significant suppliers/contractors for human
rights, PowerSeraya will terminate the services of these suppliers/contractors if they are found to pose
human rights risks to the company.

*Fuel purchases are excluded.

How Work Discrimination is Handled

There are no recorded incidents of discrimination at work during the reporting period. PowerSeraya's
Code of Ethics provides a whistle-blowing channel where employees can report on any inappropriate
acts (including acts of discrimination) that puts the interests of other employees or the organisation itself
at risk.

Equal Remuneration

The base salary” ratio of Female to Male (as at June 2011) for the company is 0.90 : 1.00. The compa-
ny's gender wage gap compares favourably with an ILO (International Labour Organisation) publication
titied Work, Income and gender equality in East Asia : Action guide 2008 (pp 34) which shows that the
Ratio of Estimated Female to Male Earned Income for Singapore is 0.51 : 1.00.

The compensation policy in the company is based on merit relative to the roleheld by an employee in the
company. Staffs in particular roles are compensated based on their skills and experience, performance
and contribution, market value of their position, regardless of gender, race or nationality. This aligns
with the principle of equal remuneration for men and women for work of equal value in the organisa-
tion which is a principle that is enshrined in the collective agreement (as per the ILO Convention 100 on
Equal Remuneration ratified by Singapore) our union has established with the company. The company
has a structured remuneration system that assigns each employee to a particular grade/category that
commensurates with the job responsibilities held by the employee. Every employee grade/category has
a commesponding salary range. Our performance management system ensures that the performance of
every employee is appraised on an annual basis and salary adjustments are in tandem with the employ-
ees’ performance and facilitated by other information from market salary benchmarking studies.

* Base salary is the average salary of men or women excluding benefits, bonuses, allowances and any variable
wage component.

* Estimated eamed income is based on measurements of the average earnings of male to female workers (i.e.
kaown as the raw or unadjusted earnings ratio).

Competency-based recruitment practices

We believe in hiring based on the competencies required, following our technical competency inventory
for each position from which we draw up the job description. As a testimony to our philosophy and
practice, we signed the Employer's Pledge of Fair Employment Practices in 2006 and again in 2011.
PowerSeraya also embraces diversity and has been diversifying the workforce to meet changing busi-
ness needs. Job applications are open to all and candidates are recruited on their merits with no dis-
crimination against race, gender or nationality.

Race
PowerSeraya'’s ethnic distribution has a good representation of the minority ethnic groups and reflects
our philosophy of giving equal employment opportunities to all ethnic groups.
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Ethnic Group | National Ethnic Distribution (%) | PowerSeraya Ethnic Distribution (%)
Chinese 74.1 59.3
Malay 13.4 28.1
Indian 9.2 10.5
Others 3.3 2.1

Diagram 7.2 (d) : Ethnic Distribution of the Workforce (as of June 2011)

Nationality

The increasing proportion of foreign nationals is to meet our business needs (e.g. for specialised engi-
neering expertise at the power plant) and also with a view of developing an organisation with diverse lan-
guages and cultures. Over the past five year period from FY06/07 to FY10/11, the percentage of foreign
born nationals increased by 3.2 percentage points. There had been no foreign born nationals holding
senior management positions since FY09/10 after the previous CEO (who was the only foreign bomn
national in the senior management team) left the company in June 2009 to make way for his successor.

YEAR FY 06/07 | FY 07/08 | FY 08/09 | FY 09/10 |FY 10/11
Foreign Born Nationals (%) 4.7% 7.2% 7.7% 7.1% 7.9%
Foreign Born Nationals in 12.5% 11.1% 11.1% 0.0% 0.0%
Senior Management (%)

Diagram 7.2 (e): Foreign Born Nationals in the Workforce over the past 5 years.

Gender

To better tap the female workforce in Singapore, we have also been consciously increasing the female
mix in the workforce, subject to the merit-based recruitment system. The percentage of females in the
company increased from 17.8% in FY06/07 to 20.6% in FY10/11 and has since stabilised in that range
in the subsequent years, The proportion of female employees holding senior management positions saw
no change in FY10/11 compared to the previous year.

Source: Ethnic composition of the resident population in Singapore in 2070 from the Singapore Depariment of
Statistics

As of June 2011, the proportion of females of the total workforce at the corporate office headquarters
exceeded B8%. This is higher than the Singapore’s average of 56.5% (Source: Labour Force Partici-
pation Rate, Singapore Department of Statistics, 2010). However, the opposite situation is true at the
power station with females making up only 11.5% of the workforce.

Gender Mix of Company

YEAR FY 06/07 | FY 07/08 | FY 08/09 |FY 09/10|FY 10/11
Females in Powerseraya 17.8% 20.6% 21.8% 22.1% 20.7%
Females in Powerseraya's 0% 11.1% 12.5% 12.5% 12.5%
Senior Management Pasition

Diagram 7.2 (): Gender Mix of workforce over the past 5 years.



Gender Mix by Workplace Location as of June 2011

Pulau Seraya & Jurong Power

115

Stations
Corporate Headquarters 88.5

Diagram 7.2 (g): Gender Mix of Waorkforce by Location

Age-Profile of Workforce

The workforce at PowerSeraya generally has an older age profile compared to the national average.
For example, the median age of our employees is 46 years old, higher than the national median for the
resident labour force of 41 years of age (Source: Singapore Workforce, 2010 from Manpower Research
and Statistics Department Singapore November 2010). This is partly due to a significant proportion of
long-serving staff in the company (see Chart 7.2 (h)). Having an aging workforce also means that there
will be a significant proportion of staff that will be eligible to retire in five to 10 years (see Chart 7.2 (i)).

To ensure that the company has the manpower resources to grow the company sustainably in the long
term, it is looking at succession planning as well as positioning itself as an employer of choice in order to
attract new employees. The CSR Strategic Thrust of ‘Nurturing Human Capital’ thus plays an important

role in employer branding.
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Chart 7.2 (h): Age Profile of PowerSeraya Staff

Senior emem

0.2%

0.7%

Management 0.5% 1.9%
Executive 4.5% B6%
Mon-Executive 10.0% 18.1%

Chart 7.2 (i) : Proportion of employees eligible

to retire in 5 to 10 years time
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7.2.4 Staff Strength and Employee Turnover

The numiber of full-time* employees stood at 419 in FrY10/11. This is a 2.9% increase over the previous
year, Detailed staff strength numbers in previous years can be found under LA1 of the GRI Content Index.

Over the past five years (FY06/07 to FY10/11), the turnover rate of the company performed well against
the industry benchmark of Petroleum, Chemical and Pharmaceutical Industry Turnover Rate. The only
exception is in FY09/10 which saw employee turnover surge above the industry benchmark to 14.3%.
FY09/10 coincided with the period which saw ownership changes in the company and that could have
contributed to the unusually high employee turnover rate.

On the whole, the company's pro-family practices, labour practices and its continued emphasis on nur-
turing human capital, so employees can achieve work-life balance and develop their careers, have helped
to keep staff turnover below the industry average.

* There are iwo types of full-time employees in PowerSeraya Lid. Those under the old scheme (permanent
employment) and those under the two- or three-year renewable term contract subject to satisfactory employee

performance.

**Part-time employees are those whose normal hours of work are less than 30 hours a week as stipulated in the
Singapore Employment Act.

Employee Turnover W Petroleum, Chemical and Pharmaceutical Industry Turnover Rate

16.0%
14.3%
14.0%
13.2% 13.6%
12.0%
1 L]
606 9.4% 9.4% 0.0 10.8%
| 8.9%

8.0%

6.3%
6.0%

4.4%

4.0%
2,0%
0.0%

FY06/07 FY07/08 FY08/09 FY09/10 FY10/11

Diagram 7.2 (j): Employee Turnover Statistics for 5 Year Period
(Note: The Petroleum, Chemical & Pharmaceutical Industry Tumover
figures are on a calendar year basis, from 2006 to 2011)
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7.2.5 Nurturing Youths

Our CSR Strategy of ‘Nurturing Human Capital' extends beyond the company to include youths. Through
our programmes, we aim to provide youths with the opportunity to nurture their talents. At the same time,
it presents employer branding opportunities for the company, reaching out to the younger generation
who aspire to work in a forward-looking organisation with a sustainability agenda.

Nithiah Nandan Book Prize

Set up in 2007, this book prize was created in honour of the late Mr. Nithiah Nandan, the former executive
secretary of the UPAGE (Union for Power and Gas Employees) for his support for lifelong education and
dedication to serving others.

The book prize recognises the exemplary performance of our employees’ children who have excelled
in their areas of interest outside the academic field or who have made meaningful contributions to the
community or the environment. As of December 2011, 13 of our employees’ children have received this
coveted book prize.

PowerSeraya Scholarship Programme

Every year, between two and six outstanding undergraduates from the Nanyang Technological University
are selected to receive this prestigious scholarship award worth S$8,000 per annum. In 2011, the com-
pany gave out four scholarships (two new and two renewal). The two new awardees, both second year
undergraduates (one studying business and the other studying asrospace engineering), were also given
internship opportunities at PowerSeraya.

The PowerSeraya Scholarship Programme which was set-up in 2008, is a bond-free programme. The
scholars are chosen from students pursuing courses at the College of Engineering, College of Science
and the Nanyang Business School from their second year of study and onwards. While students are



selected primarily based on their academic and CCA (Co-curricular Activities) performance, students
who have additionally handled environmental projects or contributed significantly to the community are
strongly considered for the scholarship programme.

Internships

The company has an on-geing internship programme where interns from tertiary institutions receive work
exposure in PowerSeraya, guided by a senior officer. Through this internship opportunity, the students
gain an appreciation of how their fields of study are applied in real working life. In the FY09/10 to FY10/11
period, the company had a total of 29 interns.
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7.3 Contributing to the Society - Nurturing and Caring
for Communities

Social investments in FY10/11 saw an estimated S$261,500 spent on social causes — mainly to needy
people with disabilities, monetary donations to cause-related events involving key stakeholders, as well
as to ad-hoc causes such as disaster relief efforts in the neighbouring region. Below highlights some of
the social initiatives the company has organised, co-organised or supported.

Adoption of GROW Charitable Programme

In early 2011, PowerSeraya formally adopted GROW (Goodwill Rehabilitation & Occupational Workshop)
of the Spastic Childrens’ Association of Singapore after an evaluation process aimed at channeling our
social efforts to charities that are least supported in society (monetary and non-monetary). The evaluation
process involved consultations with the Community Chest of Singapore, and screening shortlisted chari-
ties in line with our company's CSR Strategy and Core Values.

In 2011, a total of three engagement initiatives were co-organised with GROW, In line with the company’s
philosophy of ‘Nurturing Human Capital’, the engagement initiatives provide the celebral palsy individuals
from GROW an opportunity to hone their skills through work exposure outside their sheltered workshop.
For example, several GROW individuals who were artistically talented conducted a craft-making work-
shop in August 2011, in which staff who attended paid GROW a fee to attend. Similarly, an afternoon tea
session held in October 2011 was prepared and served by several individuals from the cafeteria business
of GROW. From these initiatives, PowerSeraya employees got to know GROW better and from there, ap-
preciate the purpose of their social contributions.

Donations to UPAGE Bursary & Endowment Funds

Owver the last two years (2009 and 2010), PowerSeraya donated a combined sum of 55154,000 to the
UPAGE (Union of Power and Gas Employees) Endowment Fund and the UPAGE Bursary Awards. The
LUPAGE Annual Bursary Awards are awarded to the children of UPAGE members, based on their aca-
demic performance and financial needs of the family. The UPAGE Endowment Fund was set up with the
support of unionised companies under its care to provide an additional source of funds to help union
members in the form of subsidies and benefits such as welfare grants and training and development
courses.

Over the same two-year period, PowerSeraya also donated $13,000 to the NTUC U Care fund. This fund
was set up by the union to provide relief to lower-income union members and their families to help ease
their living expenses. This might take the form of transport and utility vouchers, as well as education-
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related vouchers for children. The union also sets aside funds for retrenched workers who might not be
compensated due to layoffs and company closures.

Volunteering for Child@Street 11

Every year since 2005, PowerSeraya has been participating in the social outreach programmes organ-
ised under the National Electricity Market of Singapore (NEMS). The last five years saw volunteers from
the energy industry under the umbrella of NEMS organise outings for a group of children from Child@
Street 11, a non-profit organisation which helps young children from low-income families. In 2010, vol-
unteers from PowerSeraya went on an excursion with the children to Marina Barrage while in 2011, the
company'’s volunteers accompanied the children to the Singapore Zoological Gardens.

Staff Contributions to the Needy via the SHARE Programme

FPowerSeraya subscribes to the SHARE (Social Help and Assistance Raised by Employees) programme,
where employees donate to the Community Chest on a monthly basis through a deduction from their
salary. Its support for the SHARE programme saw PowerSeraya being awarded the Bronze SHARE
award in 2010 and 2011. Currently, close to 60% of the company's employees participate in the SHARE
programme. The Community Chest is a fund-raising arm of the National Council of Social Service with a
purpose to ensure that every person within society has the opportunity to live a life of dignity to his or her
fullest potential,

{The contributions made through the SHARE programme are not included in the social investment figures shown
in this report as these are direct contributions made by employees and not by the company).

Donations to Disaster Relief Efforts in ASEAN

n FY02/10, a donation drive involving employees of PowerSeraya was initiated to raise money for victims
of the Typhoon Ketsana in the Phllippines and the Padang Earthquake in Indonesia. With the company
matching the funds raised dollar-for-dollar, close to S$10,000 was raised and donated to the Singapore
Red Cross. The funds went towards the Singapore Red Cross' relief and recovery efforts in the disaster-
hit areas.
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7.4 Product Responsibility

7.4.1 Introduction

The company, through its retail arm Seraya Energy, constantly keeps in tandem with changing customer
demands to deliver to them value-added services. We provide customers with information that enables
them to make informed choices on sustainable energy use. On top of this, Seraya Energy has a wide
spectrum of value-added products to help our customers hedge against fluctuating energy prices as well
as products to cater to the specific needs of our eco-conscious customers. Our active participation and
compliance to the electricity market regulations contribute towards a wholesale electricity market that
operates in an efficient, fair and competitive manner for the benefit of end-consumers. We believe this
responsible approach has resulted in many satisfied customers and enabled the company to maintain
long-term sustainability of its business.
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7.4.2 Customer Satisfaction

In efforts to keep abreast with our customer's changing needs, Seraya Energy conducted an online cus-
tomer survey in June 2011 to gather feedback on our services and new product ideas.

The survey which was conducted in the period 21 June to 8 July 2011 saw 167 customers giving their
feedback. The survey findings revealed that our customers value price, bill accuracy and post-sales cus-
tomer service as the three most important factors when considering and selecting an energy retailer. The
survey also showed that about 21.5% of the customers who participated rated environmental concerns
among the top five most important things they would consider when choosing an energy retailer.

In the same survey, our customers rated Seraya Energy highly in the following areas:

* Ease of bill payment process * Timeliness of bills
= Bill accuracy * Brand reputation
* Post-sales customer service

The survey also highlighted that Seraya Energy could see improvements in the following areas:

* Relationship with sales personnel * Reqular market updates
* Tenant management services

In a bid to push our onling services further, we also asked customers on how receptive they were in buy-
ing electricity via an online platform.

From the last survey that we did in 2008, the findings revealed that only 27% were receptive to receiving
e-bills and none would consider purchasing electricity online. However this recent survey showed that at
least 47% of our customers are now receptive to buying electricity online, thereby illustrating a change in
consumer attitude towards online services.

From the survey, Seraya Energy also took the opportunity to find out which products customers would
find most beneficial to them. The top three preferred products that customers would like Seraya Energy
to bundle with our electricity contracts include:

+ Real-time Metering * Energy Saving Training
* Energy Efficiency Training

These responses reveal an increasing trend in demand for energy saving and efficiency initiatives. Seraya
Energy is also in talks with partners to offer the above products as part of a complete service solution in
response to our customers' requests.
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Diagram 7.4 : Top 5 Highest Customer Rating
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7.4.3 Innovative Products to Enhance Customer Sustainability

Seraya Energy operates as an energy retailer that offers competitive electricity packages to customers
in the contestable electricity market in Singapore. Depending on the customer's risk preference, Seraya
Energy's range of fixed as well as variable pricing product packages gives customers the flexibility to
choose a product that suits their needs. Examples of our risk-profiled products include the FixedPlus
that offer customers fixed electricity price for a specified contract period to the IndexPlus where electric-
ity prices are tracked to fluctuating energy cost over a contracted period. In giving customers the option
to hedge against electricity price volatility through our innovative product packages, Seraya Energy is
essentially helping them to manage their risks which eventually contributes towards their bottomline. In
addition, Seraya Energy has a product known as Greenplus that offers environmentally-conscious cus-
tomers value-added services that is bundled with an electricity package to help customers become more
energy efficient.

In Q1 2011, Seraya Energy rolled out a new product known as SE Tariff. This product follows the pricing of
SP Tariff closely, and is always priced lower to offer customers savings on their energy bills. With this new
product, customers are not tied down to a fixed contract period and may terminate anytime by giving at
least 45 days notice. This product helps both customers and Seraya Energy to cut away the hassle and
paperwork of renewing the contract each time it is due.

Moving forward, Seraya Energy will be rolling out bundled packages that include real-time metering, en-
ergy saving and efficiency training, in response to the survey conducted in June 2011.
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7.4.4 Helping Our Customers to Conserve Energy

To assist customers in their energy conservation efforts, Seraya Energy conducts regular orientation pro-
grammes to familiarise customers with obtaining online information on their energy consumption pattern.
Some customers have found the information useful in shifting their consumption patterns from peak to
non-peak periods in efforts to gain electricity bill savings while conserving energy at the same time. In
FY10/11, a total of 10 orientation programmes attended by 119 participants were organised. Further-
more, Seraya Energy periodically updates their website on useful energy conservation tips which custom-
ers can easily adopt to save energy and thus reduce carbon dioxide emissions. In recent years, Seraya
Energy has also made conscious steps to save paper by promoting e-billing to its customers. Since the
e-billing feature was introduced in 2009, 6.13% of our customers have switched to e-billing.

Seraya Energy also encourages customers to download their bills and electricity consumption reports
online from the portal instead of using the traditional method of faxing. This reduces service time and
paper usage.

To promote awareness of sustainability, Seraya Energy incorporates green messages on their bills to
promote SEnergy portal, e-billing and Giro, With Giro, the payment is automated so customers can avoid
any risk of missed deadlines or receive bill reminder letters.

Moving forward, Seraya Energy will be incorporating green messages on their call holding function to
promote energy savings.

Find out more about how Seraya Energy has involved its customers in the Earth Hour Initiative in Section 6.3.5
Engaging & Supporting Communities on Environmental Sustainability.
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7.4.5 Responsible Marketing and Advertising

In Singapore, there is the Singapore Code of Advertising Practice (SCAP) that provides guidelines to
promote a high standard of ethics in advertising through industry self-regulation. The SCAP is formulated
with considerations to the national law, international law and practice, including the International Code
of Advertising Practice published by the International Chamber of Commerce. The basic premise of the
SCAP is that all advertiserment should be legal, decent, honest and truthful.

SCAP is the guiding principle of ASAS (Advertising Standards Authority of Singapore) which is an advi-
sory council to the Consumers Association of Singapore (CASE). In the event that an investigation into
a misleading advertisement uncovers an unfair business practice, ASAS may refer to CASE for action to
be taken under the Consumer Protection (Fair Trading) Act. Under this ACT, it is an unfair practice for a
retailer to make false or misleading claims.

PowerSeraya and its subsidiaries, with its operations based in Singapore, adheres to the abovemen-
tioned codes and regulations in its marketing-related or advertising activities. There have been no inci-
dents of non-compliance.



7.4.6 Our Role in an Efficient and Competitive Electricity Market

Singapere’s wholesale electricity market is a gross pool where all electricity generated (from licensed pow-
er generation companies like PowerSeraya) is sold into the pool and all electricity consumed is bought
from the pool, except for cases of grandfathering®. The wholesale electricity market determines prices for
electricity all year round in half-hour timesiots. It uses a pricing algorithm which minimises costs in bal-
ancing electricity demand and the offers to supply electricity. Power generation companies (or ‘gencos’
for short) compete with each other by offering prices to supply electricity (in half-hour timeslots) into the
wholesale electricity market. The wholesale electricity market thus serves as a platform for open and free
competition to take place by allowing multiple gencos to compete in the supply of electricity, as opposed
to the traditional model of a single monopoly supplier of electricity which charges regulated tariffs for elec-
tricity provision. In the period April 2009 to June 2011, the market has seen keener competition with the
participation of new market participants such as Shell Eastern Petroleum Pte Ltd, Keppel Seghers Tuas
Waste-To-Energy Plant Pte Ltd and I1SK Singapore Pte Ltd.

Electricity generation is a licenced activity under the Electricity Act (Singapore), Gencos with their electric-
ity licences (granted by the Energy Market Authority of Singapore (EMA)) are to abide by the Singapore
Electricity Market Rules ("Market Rules") which requires them to register as market participants and be
subjected to the Market Rules. The Market Rules play an important role in ensuring that the wholesale
electricity market operates and functions in a manner that is consistent with the efficient and fair opera-
tions of a competitive market. In doing so, it creates a level playing field for gencos to compete in the
wholesale electricity market, thereby resulting in competitive electricity prices for end-consumers in the
contestable market™.

PowerSeraya’s Participation in Policy Making

PowerSeraya has a representative on the Rules Change Panel (RCP), a body set up under the Market
Rules comprising representatives from the electricity industry, consumer representatives as well as an in-
dependent member from the financial community. The role of the RCP is to review any proposed changes
to the Market Rules.

An example of a review conducted by the RCP is the introduction of the Mixed Integer Programming (MIP)
to improve modelling in the Market Clearing Engine (the software that produces dispatch schedules for
market participants in Singapore's wholesale electricity market). PowerSeraya participated in the review
of the MIP which resulted in the MIP being incorporated in the Market Rules in February 2010,

The Market Surveillance and Compliance Panel (MSCP) is an independent body set up under the Market
Rules. It is charged with policing the compliance with the Market Rules and is empowered to impose
financial penalties for breaches of the Market Rules. The financial penalties are collected by the wholesale
electricity market operator Energy Market Company Pte Ltd (EMC) and are used to reduce the electricity
price paid by consumers.

In determining breaches of the Market Rules, the MSCP may also impose financial penalties. Financial
penalties have been imposed for cases where there has been significant impact on the wholesale electric-
ity market or negligence. In the period April 2009 to June 2011, the Market Surveillance and Compliance
Panel have not found PowerSeraya to have breached the Market Rules. However, there have been two
breaches of the Market Rules in previous years. Both of these breaches were caused by human error
and not by any intentional or deliberate acts by PowerSeraya to disrupt the smooth operations of the
wholesale electricity market, PowerSeraya fully understands the important role of the wholesale electricity
market in determining competitive electricity prices for the benefit of consumers in the contestable market
and has taken corrective action to prevent a recurrence of these breaches caused by human error.

One breach occurred on 23 August 2005 and was determined to be a breach by the MSCP on 24 August
2006 which imposed a financial penalty of $7,500 and costs of $800. The breach was due to human er-
ror. One of PowerSeraya's generating units, SER G3, had tripped. PowerSeraya had to reflect the tripping
by making changes to the offers from SER G3 but another generating unit SER CCP 1 was selected by




mistake. This resulted in a breach of the Market Rules as the change to the offers from SER CCP1 were
within the gate closure period, a time period where offers are not to be changed except due to permis-
sible exceptions) even though there were no permissible exceptions applicable such as incidents due to
tripping. The MSCP had assessed that the breach posed a significant impact to the wholesale electricity
market. PowerSeraya has since then put in place remedial measures (combination of extra training and IT
solutions) to prevent such recurrence. Details of the breach are publicly available at the Electricity Market
Company web-site (www.emcsg.com)

The second breach was on 28 February 2009 and was determined to be a breach by the MSCP on 21
August 2009 which imposed a financial penaity of $12,500 and costs of $800. The breach was due to
human error which resulted in data corruption, resulting in offer variations to be made in addition to the
PowerSeraya trader’s input. These additional offer variations resulted in a breach of gate closure with no
permissible exceptions applicable. The MSCP had assessed that the breach had significant impact on the
wholesale electricity market, PowerSeraya has since then put in place remedial measures in the form of
an [T solution to prevent such recurrence. In FY10/11, there was no reported breach of the Market Rules.
Details of the breach are publicly available at the Electricity Market Company web-site (www.emcsg.com)

PowerSeraya's Enterprise Risk Management Department had a role in assessing the mitigation measures
implemented in the aftermath of breaches of the Market Rules - as to whether adequate measures had
been undertaken. The breach of 28 February 2009 was reported to PowerSeraya’s Risk Management
Committee.

Responsibilities of PowerSeraya in Power Qutages

Power outages are a concern for the Energy Market Authority of Singapore as it affects the reliability of the
country’s power transmission system. Generation companies in Singapore such as PowerSeraya are not
responsible for dealing with power outages, though they may be called upon to help address power out-
ages. This is because PowerSeraya does not own or operate any transmission asset. The responsibility
for dealing with power outages depends on the cause. The party responsible for dealing with the power
cutage may be the Power System Operator (a division of the Regulator, the Energy Market Authority of
Singapore), SP PowerAssets Ltd (i.e. Transmission Licensee which own and maintain the country’s trans-
mission network), a consumer's landlord or even the consumer.

* Grandfathering in this context refers to the exemption from the requirement to hold a licence fo generate elec-
tricity that has been granted fo 6 companies. The exemption is granted subject to certain conditions such as not
infecting electricily into a transmission system and has been granted to companies who generate electricity for
self consumption, that is embedded generators, and whose generation facilities were installed before 1 January
2003 which was the date of commencement for the National Electricity Market of Singapore (NEMS), the whole-
sale electricily markel arrangements which replaced the previous wholesale electricily market arrangements, the
Singapore Electricity Fool.

** Contestable market refers to the consumers classified as contestable. Consumners classified as contestable
enjoy competitive rates from the wholesale electricity market. Such consumers are mainly large industrial and
commercial consumers (consumers with average electricity consumption of 10,000kWh or more) which make up
to about 75% of the electricity demand in Singapore according to EMA. The non-contestable market comprises
domestic consumers and consumers with average electrcily consumption fower than 10,000Kwh per month,
making up approximately 25% of the total Singapore electricity demand, who are currently not eligible o become
contestable, as well as larger consumers who have not switched to become contestable. These consumers are
referred to as being non-contestable and are subject to regulated tariffs for electricity. The contestable market
falls under Phases 0, 1 & 2 of the Singapore’s government intiative lo liberalise the electricity market. Phase 3
has yet fo be impfemented as of December 2008.
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7.4.7 Delivering High Quality Steam and Water to Our Customers

Electricity has been the main product the company sells to customers until the desalination plant and
cogeneration plants started operations in 2007 and 2010 respectively. Currently, in excess of 90% of the
water from the desalination plant is used internally for power plant operations with the remaining sold as
potable water to vessels anchored off Singapore waters through intermediaries like PSA Marine. High
pressure steam which is generated from the cogeneration plant is delivered via dedicated pipelines to
customers in the vicinity. Whether it is potable water or high pressure steam, PowerSeraya undertakes
stringent measures to ensure that the quality of these two products is kept high through the regular sam-
pling programmes described below.

Boiler water & steam quality sampling program

Boiler water and steam grab samples are collected and analysed in the laboratory on a daily basis
to ensure that the water in all our operating boilers are meeting the OEM boiler water and steam quality
guidelines. The boiler water monitoring programme involves analysing up to 11 different parameters
on 10 different samples collected from each running steam plant unit as well as analysing up to 6 dif-
ferent parameters on the 4 different samples collected from each running gas plant unit. On top of the
above, the demin water produced by the demineralisation water treatment plants are also analysed on
a daily basis to ensure that the demin water quality fed to the boilers is within the boiler specifications.

Potable water Quality sampling Program

The potable water product quality supplied to cur pofable water customers is monitored under the pota-
ble water quality sampling programme to ensure that the potable water quality supplied meets the water
quality contractual specifications. The potable water quality sampling programme consists of conducting
laboratory grab samples testing on the potable water with up to 12 different parameters on a daily basis,
up to 6 different parameters on a monthly basis and up to 57 different parameters on a yearly basis.
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In FY09/10, the ending date of the financial year was extended deliberately by a further three
months to align with our parent company's financial year which ends in the month of June. As such,
financial year FY08/10 spans a 15-maonth period from April 2009 to June 2010. For the purposes of
comparison with other years' performancs, the GRI information for FY08/10 is presented on an
annualised basis.

The new financial year period spanning July every year to June of the successive year is applied
from FY10/11 onwards. The period covering FY06/07 to FY08/09 follows the old financial year
which span from April every vear to March of the successive year.

All dollar values are denominated in Singapore currency,

FERFORMANCE INDICATDRS Y QTR FY 0310 Pagé Remans.

Anniassad Raoforonce

1 |[ECT  [1& Totfal evanue (bn S5000) 633,607 2,792,837 3,576,561 1840013 4. 677,076 Section 5.3

b, Tatal Costs [In S5000) 1436766 2,554,720 3,338,748 3,554,114 4,334,040 | Fection 5.3 |
1c. Towal Earnings (in 5500:0) 168,060 118,196 171,850 269,405 ITa 87 Section 5.2

1d. Employoe Compensation (in 0,135 Ak Bda 51,932 46, T8 50871 Section 5.3

(SFH000)

Te. Toia! Assets (Inchuding leased 1894618 2,913,450 2,313,450 2,890,781 1947496 | Saction 5.1
assots) (In SH000)

1f. Shareholders funds (in 33009 1073428 1,212,749 T, 197 896 1,407 Z65 1,069,136 Section 8.2 |

1g. Eaming per share (in 55) 0.18 0.2 0,18 0.0 042 Section 5.1
1h, Retum an Equity (%) 1 A 438 e Inzo Section 6.1
11, Doenations and ather community 46.54 0.es Mig4 maaz 364 44 Beotion 5.4

investments {In S3600)
2 [ECZ  |Financial implications and other
uks and eppartunities for the

S pRRONS SEtVIGS e 60 Refor to Seclion 6.1 Being Part of the Climate Change Solution. Fection 6.1
Fllﬂ'llll change
3 [EC3  [Coversge of the ciganisation’s
ned benedit plan obligations (in | Mol repared previausiy 4,700 2,540 1,460
00}
4 |EC4 |[Signifecant financial assistance -] 34,000 TI4,000 1,248,000 1,885,000
eived from govemment {55)
5 [EGS [Range of milos of standard entry
[new) [lovel wage companed (o local There is ne minimum wage palicy in Singapare, thus no basis of
iminimum wage at significant comparison can be made.
llecations
0. [P - Foney, practicad. Aot Frnotion of Holer to Ssction 5.5 Proportion of Local Spending and Cantributions in
spending on locally-based suppliemn Lccat Fesiaamy, Eaetion 5.5
|8t significant locaticne of eperation
7 |ECT |Procedurss for local hiring and
Y C L Reder 1o Section 7.2 Humuring Human Capital,
hined from the local community at
significant lecatiens of cperation SR Tas
% Foreign Bomn Hationals in Senlor 12.5% .1% 1.1% 0% 0%
Marnagamant team
B |ECE |Dwvelopment and impact of Leam about Extended 2=
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servicos provided primarily for Investment in sponsorship
public benefit through commarcial, the Energy of § bleycles
Inkingd, or pro bane angagemant Leaming Hub worth 5§3.500
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bicycles WWatereays
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Wiaterways
Watch
Sockely.
9 |ECS |Under g and d 0 Refer to Section £.1.5 on the Responsible Energy Advocales Programme | Section §.3.%
slgnificant indirect economic and Section T.2.5 on our scholarship programmes, Intermship Section 7.2.5
Impacts, Including the extent of programmes and book prizes.
Impasts
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GRI PERFORMAMCE INDICATORS FY oGfo7T FY O07/o8* FY 08/08 FY 08/10 FY 10/11 Page Remarks
Referance
10 IENT Ihlultrlat-n used by weight or volume | Refer to Section 6.2.3 on Environmental Performance at the Power Plant. | Section §.2.3
& Fﬂz Percanings of matutitis e thit Refer to Section 6.2.3 on Environmental Performance at the Fower Plant. Saction 6.2.3
are recycled input materials
12 [EN3 ]F uel Ol consumed for power 1,550,551 1,295,196 1,241,630 1,355,084 | 1,057,448 (or | Section 6.2.3
genaration (In tons) 50,284,558
GJ)
Matural gas consumed for power 34,560 34,457 32,180 158,865 T22,557 (or | Section 6.2.3
igeneration (BBTU) 55,240,979
GJ)
13 [EN4 |indirect energy consumption by 1,083,767 804,943 1,362,680 150,834 (Apr | 892,235 (or | Section 6.2.3
primary source (In MWh) 09 to Jun 10) | 3,200,000 GJ)
14 |[EN5 |Energy saved due to conservation Refer to Section 6.1 Being Part of the Climate Change Solution. Section 6.1
(new] [and efficioncy improvaments
15 EN6 |Initiatives to provide energy-
[new) |eificient or enewable energy based
products and services, and Refer to Section 7.4 Product Responsibility. Sectlon 7.4.3
reductions in energy regqulrements
o & result of these initlatives
16 [ENT (Initiatives (o educe indirect onergy | Rofer (o Sectlon 6.3.2 Achloving Office Resource EMiciency and Section | Section 6.3.3
(new] lconsumption and reductions 6.3.3 Greening IT Infrastructune, Section 6.3.3
lachioved
17 & |Total water consumption for power | 2,186,600 1.992,500 1,713,055 3672219 3964,712 | Sectlon 6.2.3
generation (m3)
[Watar Intensity [m3/MWh) HNot reported 0,184 0,169 0.209 0198
praviously
18 !EHF ater sources significantly HNo water sources are affected by the withdrawal of water given that 8 | Section 6,2.3
[new) faffected by withdrawal of water Ihigh proportion of water are either recycled water or from the desalination
plant.
19 [EN10 |Percentage and total volume of 0% 0% 66% (from BE% (82% 93% (63% | Sectlon 6.2.3
| e r recycled and reused [of total desalination from from
ter consumed for power plant) desalinatian | desalination
peneration shown in ENE) plant, 6% from| plant, 10%
recycled fram recycled
water} water)
0 [EN11 (Location and size of land owned,
[new) (leased, managed in, or adjacant to,
proleciod areas and areas of high
blodiversity value outside
protectod areas
21 |EN12 |Description of significant impacts
of activities, products, and sarvices
on biediversity in protected areas
and areas of high blodiversity value)
outaide protected areas The company is located at a site that is zoned by the local planning
o) T ————————— authoritlies for industrial use. The company’s operations are nol located | Section 8.2.5
(now) In (nor lecated adjacent Lo) areds of high blodiversity value.
I3 FH'H- Strategies, cument actions, and
(new) (future plans for managing impacis
on blodiversity
24 |[EN15 [Number of IUCN Red List species
[new) [and national conservation list
spocies with habitats in areas
affected by operations, by level of
rl:tlnr.tlim risk
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FY 10/11

Page
Reference

Remarks

25 |[EN16 [Total direct GHG emissions (COg 0.582 0.582 0.587 0.571 0.509 Saction §.2.3
only) by weight in tons per MWh
arizing frem power generation

I8 [ENTT mhu;lndlrum: GHG emissions (COy 249.3 22z4 2237 2024 Data not Section 6.3.2
only) by weight (I tons) {calendar yoar|{calendar year|(calendar year| (calendar year| avallable at

2007) 2008) 2009) 2010) time of report
proparation

ZT |[EN18 |Initiatives to reduce GHG emissions Energy efficiency improvemeants & Fuel switching. Section 6.1.1
and reduction achleved

28 [EN19 |[Emissions of ozone-depleting air 157.9 135.0 247.5 3115.0 405.0 Section 6.2.3
emissions (HFCs) by welght (kg)

28 |[ENZOD 502 emissions by weight {in 0.0031 00028 0.D034 0.0036 0.0035 Section 6.2.3
tons/MWh)

WOz amissions by weight (in Not avallable | Mot available | Hot avallable | Not available | Not avallable | Section 6.2.3
tons/M¥Wh)

30 |[EN21 (Total water discharge by quality BOD: <20mg/L BOD: <10mgiL | BOD: <30mg/L BOD: <10mg/L BOD: <10mg/L| Sectien 6.2.3 nin
and destination (includes thermal  |COD: <20mg/L [COD: <40mgiL coD: COD: <20mg/L |COD: <40mgiL ational
dischange) <100mg/L wvironmant

TSS: <30mgiL | TSS: <10mg/L | TSS: <20mgiL | TSS: <10mg/L | TSS: <10mgiL Agency
Total Motals: | Total Metals: | Total Metals: | Total Metals: | Total Metals: E—
<imgiL «Imail <ImgiL «ImgiL «imgiL
il & Grease: | Ol & Grease: | Ol & Grease: | Qi & Grease: | Ol & Grease:
<10mg/L <SmgiL “SmgliL =5mgiL <SmgiL
Temparatura: | Temparature: | Temperature: | Temparature: | Tempoeratuns:
< 30eC < 30eC < 300C < 30eC = 30eC
31 |[EN22 [Total weight of waste by type and Taxie Taxle Taxie Taxie Toxle Section 6.2.3 Within
disposal method Industrial Industrial Industrial Industrial Industrial Natlonal
Waste: 7,035 | Waste: 8,671 |Waste: 10,300 Waste: 5,485 | Waste: 5,090 Environmant
tons tons tans tons tons Agency
Recyclable | Recyeclable | Reeyelable | Recyclable | Recyclable Limits
Waste: Waste: 96,090 Waste: 86,859 | Waste: 91,162 | Waste: 75,531
126,156 wons ons tans tons lons
General General General General General
Waste: 540 Waste: 562 Waste: 455 Waste: 259 Waste: 237
tons tons tons
Total = Total = Total = Tatal = Total =
133,731 tons | 105,263 tons | 97,643 tons | 96,908 tons | 80,857 tons

32 |EN23 [Total number and volume of Mo recorded oll spills. Section §.2.3
significant spilis

33 [EN24 ’Mlght of transported {import & 125,909 tons | 95,056 tons | B7,069tons | B4 452tons | T4.812tons | Section 8.2.3
export) or treated waste deemed {gypsumj {gypsum) [gypsum) {gypsum) {gypsum)
hazardous under the terms of the 65 tons 0 tons 242 tons 107 tons 144 tons
Basel Convantion (boiler slag) | (boller slag) | (bollerslag) | (boilerslag) | (boller siag)

% of transported waste shipped 4.2 0.3 B9.4 873 82.7 Sectlon 6.2,3
intermatianally

34 [ENZ6 (Initiatives to mitigate S0; Flue Gas Desulphurization System.

% of 503 mitigated Ba.ez 92,94 94,18 92.70 93.80 Akt

35 |ENZT |Percentage of products sold and  |[Hot applicable as the products sold by the customers are utliities such as

new) [their packaging materials that are electricity and steam who do not involve any packaging materials.,
reclalmed by category
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No GHRI PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FY 06/07* FY O7/08* FY 0&8/08 FY 09/10 FY 10/11 Page Remarks
Reference

B)  ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

36 [ENZB Monetary value of significant fines HIL Seclion §.2.4
Tatal number of nen-monetary
sanctions for non-compliance with HIL Section §.2.4

]amlmnrmnul laws and regulations

37 [EN29 |Significant envirenmental Impacts
(new) (of transpornting products and other

Emargency Response Plans are in place to handle chemical and oll spills

goods and materials uzed for the
arising from operations. Refer to Section 4.2.2 Managing Emergencies | Section 4.2.2

erganisation’s oporations, and

and Crises,
ransponing members of the
workforce
38 [EN30 |Total environmental protection The company does not have an established Environmental Accounting
[new) jexpenditures and Investments by system in place and Is unable to provide Information for this indicater.
ype Hothwithstanding this, the company does sot aside a budget to cover the

maintenance of environmantal protection systems such as the Flue Gas
Desulphuriser (FGD) to remove 50; emissions and Wastewater Treatment
Plants (WWTP) to treat wastewater bafore it is discharged inte the sea. in
2010, the company Invested a sum of S5320,000 In the Continuous
Emissions Monitoring System, a real-time alr emisslons monitoring
system with the National Envirenment Agency of Singapore.
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Page

Reference

Remarks

C)  SOCIAL PERFORMANGE - Labour Practices
33 [LA1  [Total employees (full-tima) 381 403 414 407 418 Sectlon 7.2.4
Total omployees [part-tima) o o 1 1 1 Sectlon 7.2.4
Total employees (contract basis) o 1 o o o Section 7.2.4
Total number of intems 4 T 18 n Section 7.2.4
Female employees of total workforce 1748 20.6 23,2 221 20.7 Sectlon 7.2.3
%)
Female employees in senior Not reported 1.4 12.5 12.5 12.5 Sectlon 7.2.3
|managemant %) LG
Forelgn bom nationals of total 4.7 T.2 T.7 T4 T8 Sectlon 7.2.3
workTorce (V)
40 [LAZ |[Total no.of employes tumover 24 38 3% 58 18 Sectlon 7.2.4
Rate of employes tumover (%) 6.3 9.4 9.4 14.3 4.4 Section 7.2.4
41 [LA3 ﬂlﬂﬂ;’ provided to full-time In general, benefits given to full-time employees are not extended to -
(new) femployees that are not provided to lemporary of part-time employees except for cutpatient sick leave and
temporary or part-time employees, by (vacation leave. The terms and conditions of employment for temporary or
\major oparations part-tima amployses have to adhare 1o the Singapore Employment Act,
42 [LA4 |Percentage of employees covered by 56.96 53.85 52.0 52.0 51.0 Section 4.3.2
icollective bargalning agreamants (%)
43 [LAS Minimum notice period{s) regarding
significant operational changes, Refer to Section 4.3.2 - Stakeholder Engagemant - Employees and their
Including whether it Is specified in Trade Unlons. AR
collactive agreamants
44 [LAE |Percentage of total workforce
(new) irepresented in formal joint As of June 2011, an estimated 9% (or 27 statf members) of the total
managemant worker health and workfarce at the power plant are in tha Health, Safety & Enviranmant
afety committees that help monitor | Committes. Leam about the company’'s Workplace Safety Programmes in
nd advise coccupational health and Section T.1.3.
safoty programmes
4% |LAT |[Rate of injury {including fatalities) - AFR =224 AFR=0 AFR = 1.08 AFR=0 AFR =10 Sectlon 7.1.2
Staft
Jltn'l:l of lost days - Staft ASK = 60.39 ASR=0 ASR = 47,68 ASR =0 ASR=10 Sectlon 7.1.2
inﬂ- of work-related fatalities - Staff o 0 o o o Sectlon 7.1.2
Rate of Injury (including fatalities) - AFR=0.00 | AFR=345 | AFR=1.44 AFR=0 AFR=10 Sectlon 7.1.2
[Contractor
Rate of lost days - Contractor ASR=0,00 | ASR=1639 | ASR=4.33 ASR=0 ASR=10 Sectlon 7.1.2
Rate of work-related fatalities - o 0 0 0 0 Sectlon 7.1.2
Contractor
46 |LAE |Education, training, counseling,
(new) prevention, and risk-control
programmes in place 1o assist
L i cauihiie i md Refer Section 7.1.5 Cocupational Health, Section 7.1.5
community members regarding
serous diseases
47 |LA2 |Health and safety toplcs covered in Medical Benefits and Sick Leave are health toples covered in the Section 7.1.1
(new) linformal agreements with trade collective agreemant with trade unlons. To understand our company’s
unions approach to health and safety please refer to Section 7.7 Workplacoe
Health & Safaty.
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Reference

€}  SOCIAL PERFORMANGE - Labour Practices

48 [LAT0 [Total training investment (§) 901,000 T30,000 532,887 575,930 719,265 |Section 7.2.1
Average training expenditure per 2,365 1.802 1,284 1,401 1,696 Section 7.2.1
lemployee (5)
Average training hours per employee 52.00 3342 1720 20,03 2260 Section 7.2.1
Training places per employes 263 1.69 1.1 1.37 1.62 Sectlon 7.2.1

49 LAY Programmes for skills management

[new) {and lifeleng leaming that suppar the
Learn about the company’s various training programs and the READY
centinued employability of Section 7.2.1
program on Section 7.2.1 Training & Development.

mployees and assist them in

managing career endings

50 [LA1Z |Percentage of employees recelving 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% Sectlon 7.2.1
regular performance and career
davalopmant raviews

51 |LA13 [Composition of govemnance bodies

nd breakdown of amployoss por
i — d Section 7.2.3 Labour Practices and Human Rights on employes
eQoTy accardin ender, age Sectlon 7.2.3
v ol " demoagraphics (race, gender, diversity).
raup, minarity group membership,

nd other indicators of diversity
52 |LA14 |Ratlo of basic salary of men to Section 7.2.3 Labour Practices and Human Rights on Equal Section 7.2.3
women by employee catégory Remuneration,
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119

Remarks

53

501

Nature, scope, and affectiveness of

ny programmes and practices that
lassess and manage the impacts of
operations an communities,
Including entering, operating, and
L!:Itil'l.n

Refer to the COM Stakeholder Consultative

Session for our latest B00MW Comblined
Cycle plant.

Ther wara no now
developments by the
company that would have
an Impact an communities

during this period.

S0z

Percentage and total number of
busingss unlis analysod for fsks
related for cormuption

100% 100% 100%

100% 100%

Section 4.2.3

55

503

Fercentage of employees trained In
|arganisation’s anti-cormuption
policies and procedures

Refer to Chapter 4.2.3 Managing Fraud Risk.

504

Actions taken in response to

|Incidents of cormuption

No incidents of cormuption.

57

Public policy pesitions and
participation In public policy
ldevelopment and lobbying

Raefer to Section 4.3.3 Extermnal Commitmenis.

506

Total value of financlal and In-kind
leantributions ta political parties,
paliticlans, and related institutions
by country

HIL

Total Iy for antl-
ompaetitive behavior, anti-trust, and
monopoly practices and their

outcomes

of hegal

Market.

Refer to Section T.4.6 Our Role in an Efficient and Competitive Electricity

S08

Monetary value of significant fines
nd total number of non-monetary
sanctions far I'Iﬂl'l-bﬂl'l'lpllll'l:l' with

laws and regulations

HIL




VIII « GRI Content Index

Na

GRI

PERFORMAMNCE INDICATORS

POWERSERAYA
CORPORATE ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT 2010 /2011

FY O&/a7" FY o7/08* FY oa/oo FY 09/10 FY 10/11

E)  SOCIAL PERFORMANCE - Human Rights

Page
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120

Remarks

61 |[HR1 (Fercentage and total numbaer of
significant investment agroements
that include human righls clauses or Sectlon 7.2.3 Labour Practices and Human Rights. Section 7.2.3
that have undergone human rights
screaning
62 |[HRZ |Percentage of significant suppliers 100% of the significant suppliers and contractors are subject to human
and contractors that have undergone | rights criteria in the contract decuments with PowerSeraya, Thare is,
screaning on human rights and however, no formal process to screen significant suppliers and
actlons iaken contractors on human rights although action will be taken by Section 7.2.3
PowerSeraya [via termination of contract) if the suppliers/contractors ane
found to have human rights concemns thal pose a risk to the company.
Kindly refer to Chapter 7.2.3 Labour Practices and Human Rights for
detalls.
63 |HR} (Total hours of empioyes training on
polizies and procedures conceming
aspects of human rights that are HIL
relevant 1o operations, including the
percentage of employees tralned
64 HR4 (Total numberof Incidents of Section 7.2.3 Labour Practices and Human Righis, Section 7.2.3
discrimination and actions taken
65 HRS |Dperations identified in which the
right to exercise freedom of
assoclation and coliective bargaining Covered by collective agreement. Section 4.3.2
may be at significant risk, and
actions taken to suppon thase
68 |[HRE |(Operations identified as having
significant rizsk for incidents of child
labor, and measures taken to Sectlon 7.2.3 Labour Practlces and Human Righis. Section 7.2.3
contribute to the alimination of child
labor
67 HRT [Operations identified as having
significant risk for incidents of forced
of compulsary labor, and measures Section 7.2.3 Labour Practices and Human Rights, Section 7.2.3
[taken to contribute to the elimination
of tarced or compulsary labor
68 HRE (Percentage of security personnel 100% of the security parsannel (from 3rd panty organisations] at the
[new) [trained in the organisation’s policies | power plant is trained to manage diserdery conduct and threatening
or procedures conceming aspects of | behavior. The company's own security personnel which performs
human rights that are relavant 1o suparvisory functions is trained to handle crowd control and cusiomer
Qperations enguiries,
63 |[HR2 (Total number of incidents of Not applicable as the company IS not subject to Issues penaining to
|new) (violations invalving rights of rights of indigenous people taking inlo considaration its oparations in
indigenous people and actions laken Singapore.,
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F]  SOCIAL PERFORMANCE - Product Responsibility

70

PR1

[new)

ILite cycle stages In which health
land safety iImpacts of products and,
‘servicos aro assassed for
improvement, and percantage of
significant products and sarvices
categories subject 1o such
procedures

T

|maw)

\Total number of incidents of non-
icompliance with regulations and
wvoluntary codes conceming the
health and safety impacts of
products and sarvices during their
lite cycle, by type of cutcomes

The company's main business operations are in the production of
electricity which Is dispatched to the national grid system. The company
doas nol own, operate nar maintain electric wtility transmission and
distribution assets and thus does not lend itself o the health and safety
Issues encounterad by other electric utility companies. Notwithstanding
this, the company organises safety and health programmes (refer to
Section 7.1.3) and has an emergency response framework Lo deal with
emergency situations affecting health and safety (refer to Section 4.2.2),

T2

PR3

Typo of product and service
information regquined by
procedures, and percontage of
isignificant products and services
subject to such information
requinements

73

PR4
inaw)

Type of product and service
Information mequined by
procedures, and percentage of
significant products and services
subject to such information

requiremants

The company™s business of selling electricity to commercial and industrial
customers is not subject to information requirements (regulatory and/or
procadural), The company pre-actively halps customars undarstand thelr
electricity bills batter by giving them information on thefr energy
consumption patterns.

T4

Practices related to customer
satisfaction, Including results of
SUNVEYS MEasuring customor
satisfaction

Refer to
Sectlon 7.4.2 Customer
Satisfaction.

Refer to
Sectlon 10.1_
of
Sustalnabliity
Report 2010

No customer | 81.4% |'Good’

survey this | rating & above)

year,

75

PRT
(W)

‘Programmas for adhemnce to laws,
standards, and voluntary codes
related 1o marketing
communications, including
advartising, promotion, and
sponsorship

Total number of incldents of non-
compliance with regulations and
'll'ﬂllll'll.lrjl’ codes WI‘IEII‘HII‘I“
marketing communications,
Lm:lur:llnq ld\l‘ﬂl’ﬂ!ll‘lu. |]I'ﬂI'I'I:I|JﬂI'I.
and sponsarship, by type of
loutcomes

Rafer to Section 7.4.5 Responsible Marketing and Advertising.

"Refer to Section 7.4.5 Responsible Marketing and Advertising.

Sectlon 7.4.5

7

'Total number of substantiated
complaints reganding breaches of
customer privacy and losses of
Cuslomar data

Hot mporied previously. HIL HIL

T8

Monetary value of significant fines
Tar non-compliance with laws and
iregulations conceming the
provision and use of products and

sarvices (in 55)

HIL 13,300 HIL HIL
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Ne GRI Description Reference
ORGANISATIONAL PROFILE

79 |[EU1 [Installed Capacity Refer to Section 3.2 Strateqic Profile.

80 [EUz |Net Energy Output [Refer to Section 5.1 Finansial Highilghts,

B1 [EU3 Numberof Accounts Refer to Section §.1 Finangial Highlights,

82 [Eud4 [Transmission and Distribution mileage The company does not own, operate nor maintain any transmission
and distribution assets.

&3 |EUS |COy Permits The company operates In Singapore which Is a non-Annex 1 country
under the Kyoto Protocol. As such, the company is not subject to
any CO; permits.

Ne GRI Indicater Dascription

ECONOMIC
&4 |[EUS |Management approach to ensune short and long-term electricity The company Is In the power generation business based In
avallabliity and raliability Singapore. It does not own, oparate nor malntain electric utility
transmission and distribution assets. As such, ensuring shorn and
long term electricity availabllity and rellabllity in Singapore is not
under the purview of the company.

85 |EUT |Demand Side Programs Refer to Section 7.4.3 innovation Products 1o Enhance Cuslomar
Sustainabiilty,

B8 ([EUS |R&D The company does not have R&D operations,

BT |EU3 |Nuclear decommissioning The company does Not own, Cperate nor maintaln any nuclear
facilitios.

BE |EUTD |Planned capacity Refer to Section 5.3 Infrastructure investments and Energy Flanning.

B3 |[EUt (Generation Efficiency Rofer to Section §.1 Being Part of the Climate Change Solution,

_ETEﬁ]z Losses TF&::;I‘I‘IHII‘I! I8 uﬂaarl.; report on trlnmﬂ‘;;lzn and distributions
losses as it does not own, operate nor malntain transmission and
distribution assots.

No GRl Indicator Description

ENVIRONMENTAL

91 EN1 |Commentary - Materials by Welght and Volume Refer to Section 6.2.3

92 |[EN8 |Commantary - Total watar withdrawal by source Refer to Section §.2,3

81 |EN12 [Commentary - Biodiversity activities Refer to Section 6.2.5

84 ([EU1Y (Biodiversity offsets Rafer to Section 6.2.5

95 |[EN14 [Commentary - Blodiversity Sirategy Refer to Section 6.2.5

96 |[EN16 [Commentary - Greanhouse gas emisslons Refer to Saction .13

897 [EN1E [Commentary - Greenhouse gas reduction initlatives Refer to Sections £.1.2, 5.1.3. 6.2.1 £ §.2.3

B8 ([EN20 |[Commentary - Alr Emissions |Rﬂ1!ur to Section §.2.3

98 |EN21 [Commentary - Water Discharge Refer to Section 6.2.3

100 |[EN22 |Commantary - Wastes Type & Disposal Method |Ramrto Section 6.2.3
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Ne GRI Indicator Description
101 [EUld [PFrogrammes and Frocess to ensure the avallabllity of a skilled Refer to Section 7.2.1 Tralning & Development
workforce
102 [EU1S [Percentage of employess eligible to retire in the next 5 and 10 years |Refer to Saction 7.2.3 on Labour Practices and Human Rights
broken down hrjnb category and by reglon
103 [EUlE [Pullclu and l!qulllmunn regarding health and safety of employees |Refer to Section 7.1 on Workplace Satety and Health
and confractors and subcontractors
104 |LAT |Commentary - Total Workforce Refer to Section 7.2.4
105 [LAZ |Commantary - Staff Tumaover |nmr to Sgction 7.2.4
106 [EUNT |[Days worked by contractor and subcontractor employees involved in e do not track this Information
construction, aperation & maintanance activities
107 |EU18 |Percentage of contractor and subcontractor employees that have Refer to Section 7,1.3
undargons relevant health and safaty training
108 [EU  |Commentary - Percentage of employees covered by collective Refer to Section 4.3.2
LA4 |bargaining agreements
o8 [EU Commentary - Hates of injury, sccupational diseases, lost days, and |Refer to Saction 7.1.2
LAT |absenteeism, and total number of work related fatalities by reglon
| : SOCIAL - HUMAN RIGHTS
110 [EU  |Commentary - Operations identified in which the Aght 1o exercise  [Refer to Section 43,2
HRS [freedom of assoclation or collective bargaining may be at significant
risk, and actlons taken to support these rights
SOCIAL - SOCIETY
111 EU1S |Stakeholdér participation in the decision making precess related to Tﬁtmr 1o Section 5.3
energy planning and Infrastructure development
112 |[EU20 |Approach te managing impact to displacement Mot applicable as the siting of new businesses In Singapore |5
tightly controlled by the local planning authorities in Singapore.
113 [EU21 |Contingency planning measures, disasterfemergency management  |Refer to Section 4.2.2
plan and training programmes. and recovery/restoration plans
114 [EU  |Commentary - Nature, scope, and effectiveness of any programmes  |Not applicable as the site placement of new businesses In Singapore
501 |and practices that assess and manage the impacts of operations on |is tightly controlled by the local planning autherities in Singapore.
communities, Including entering, operating, and exiting
115 |[EU2Z |Number of people physically or economically displaced and There were no new developments by the company that would have
compensation, broken down by type of project an Impact on communities during this perlod.
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No GRI Indicator Description

116 [EU2Y (Programmes, including theso in partnership with government, to Access to electricity is under the purview of the Enargy Market
Improve or malntain access to electricity and customer support Authority of Singapore. The company dogs nol own, operate nor
services maintain electric utility transmission and distribution assets. The

Isau of maintaining access (o electricity IS thus not reiovant 1o the
company,

Refer to ‘Customers’ In Section 4.3.2 on the company's participation
In the Industry Feedback Forum on customer Support issues.

117 [EU24 |Practices to address language, cultural, low literacy and disability  The company does not own, operate nor maintain electric utility
related barmors to accessing and safely using electricity and transmission or distribution assets. Such barmiers to accossing and
customer support services safely using electricity is not relevant to the company, On customer

suppert services, the company operates in Singapore where religion
and cultures ane respectad and lileracy rates ame high, The company
uses the English language which is the common business language.

18 |PRY  ([Commentary - Lite cycle stages in which health and safety impacis  |The company’s main business operations are in the production of
of products and services are assessed for leleetricity that is dispatched to the national grid system. The
Iimprovement, and percentage of significant products and services  [company does not own, operate nor maintain electric transmisslon
categories subject to such procedures nd distribution assets and thus do not lend itself into the health

I:m:l safoty issuss encountered by other electric utility campanies.
Notwithstanding this, the company organises safety and health
programmes (refer to Section 7.1.3) and has an emargency response
framewaork 1o deal with emergencies situations affecting health and
safety (refer to Section 4.2.2),

119 [EU25 |Number of injuries and fatalities to the public invalving company
assels, including legal judgments, seitlements and pending legal HIL
cases of diseases

120 |EU26 (Percentage of population unserved in licensed distribution or The company does not own, operate nor maintain electric utility
sarvice areas transmission or distribution agsets. The issue of maintaining access

te electricity is thus not relevant to the company. Mareover, access
to electricity is under the purview of the Energy Market Authority of
Singapore.

121 |EUZT (Number of residential disconnections for non-payment, broken down |The electricity market is not fully liberalised in Singapore to cover

by duration of disconnection and by regulatory regime the residential sector. FowerSeraya's customers, through its
subsidiary Seraya Energy (energy retaller) are from the contestable
market comprising commercial and industrial sectors but not the
residential sector.

122 |[EUZE (Fower outage fréquency Rafer o Sectlon 7.4.6 on Responsibilities of PowaerSeraya for Fower

123 IEl.I!HI \Average power outage duration Qutages

124 [EU30 |Average plant avallability factor by energy source and by regulatery |In FY09/10 te FY10/11, the average plant availabllity factor was close
regima }!n 90%
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Standard Disclosure Page Reference

1.1« CEQ's Message Section 1.2
1.2 - Key Impacts, risks and opportunities Mn_l_.z. Section §.1.3, Section 3.5
2.1 - Mame of Organization |.&Etlﬂ_n_1.1
2.2 - Brands, products, sernvices Section 3.1
2.3 - Operational structure of the organisation Section 3.1
2.4 - Locatlon of the organisation’s headguarters |Section 3.1
2.5 - Numbar of countries in which the arganisation aparates |Section 3.1
2.6 - Ownership \Section 3.1
2.7 - Markets served |Section 3.1
2.8 - Scale of the arganisation Section 3.1
2.9 - Significant changes during reparting periad |Sactian 3.1
2.10 = Awards/Achievements ‘Section 1.6
Repart Parameters _
1.1 - Reporting Period Isection 2.1.2
3.2 - Provious reports (If any) Isection 211
1.3 - Reporting cycle Section 2.1.2
3.4 - Contact point on report queres W
3.5 - Defining the report contant !mmilﬂ
1.6 - Report Boundary 1
3.7 = Specific limitations on scopa/boundary of the report Section 2.1.2
3.8 - Basis for repornting on subsidiaries W
3.9 - Adherence to GRI Indicator Protocols ;ﬁtﬂj_o_nj.]_._{
3.10 - Effects of restatemants from provious reports (If any) !
3.11 - Changes from previous reporting periods (If any) Section 2.1.2
3.12 - GRI Content Index ;iﬁunnj
3.13 - Assurance Inmr 1o Third Party Assurance Statement PDE
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Standard Disclosure Page Reference

4.1 - Governance Structure of the organization W

4.2 - Chalr of the highest govemance body m

4.3 - Members of the Board }Eﬂqﬂm_}*}

4.4 - Mechanisms for providing direction and recommandation to the Board !amnn_u

4.5 - Linkage betwean compensation for the Board and sustainability w

performance

4.8 - Process to avold conflict of interests W

4.7 - Qualification and expertise of the Board in guiding sustainability strategy !gnmmj;[

/4.8 « Internally developed statements of mission, values, etc Section 4.1

4.9 - Procedures for the Board to oversee sustalnability performance I&_ﬂj_mj_._‘[

4,10 - Process o evaluate the Board's perfermance on sustainabllity ;ﬂg_f;_u_o_nj_._l

4.11 - Frocautionary principle i‘ﬁ“’”‘z

4.12 « Subscription to external charters, principles !mnn_n_d_,}.;&

4.13 - Membership in assoclations with advocacy organisations ;aﬁugnin

4.14 - Stakeholder groups Isection 4.3.2

4.15 - Basis of Identification and selection of stakeholdoers Ihgll_u_nj_.Ll (swe diagram 4.3 on the stakeheolders under the § CER
Strategic Thrusis)

4.16 - Approaches 1o stakeholder engagement Section 4.3.2

4.17 - Key topics and concems raised during stakeholder engagement iimlj_u_n_&_.}_.i

ﬁ Management Approaches.

5.1 Economic ;ﬁﬂ_ug_n_;

5.2 Environmental W

5.3 Labour Isection 7.2.3

5.4 Society Section 4.2.3, Sectlon 4.3.3, Section 7.4.6

5.5 Human Rights . Soction 4.3.2

5.6 Product Responsibllity Isection 7.4




